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April 6, 2022 

The Board of Directors 
Northern Marianas Housing Corporation 
P.O. Box 500514 
Saipan, MP 96950-0514 

Dear Members of the Board of Directors: 

We have performed an audit of the financial statements of the Northern Marianas Housing 
Corporation (”NMHC"), a division of the Commonwealth Development Authority, as of and for the 
year ended September 30, 2020 (the "financial statements”), in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America ("generally accepted auditing standards”) and 
have issued our report thereon dated April 6, 2022. 

We have prepared the following comments to assist you in fulfilling your obligation to oversee the 
financial reporting and disclosure process for which management of NMHC is responsible. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Directors, 
others within the entity, federal awarding agencies, pass-through entities, and the cognizant audit 
and other federal agencies and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than 
these specified parties. 

Very truly yours, 

Ame! 1%“:— 

cc: The Management of the Northern Marianas Housing Corporation 
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Our Responsibility under Generally Accepted Auditing Standards, Generally Accepted 
Government Auditing Standards and the Uniform Guidance 
 
Our responsibility under (1) generally accepted auditing standards, and (2) the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States (“generally accepted government auditing standards”) (generally accepted 
auditing standards and generally accepted government auditing standards are collectively referred 
to herein as the “Auditing Standards”), and (3) the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (the Uniform Guidance) has been described in our engagement 
letter dated February 26, 2021, a copy of which has been provided to you. As described in that letter, 
the objectives of an audit conducted in accordance with the Auditing Standards and the Uniform 
Guidance are to: 
 
• Express an opinion on whether the statements of net position, of revenues, expenses and 

changes in net position and of cash flows of NMHC’s basic financial statements and the 
accompanying supplementary information, in relation to the basic financial statements as a 
whole, for the year ended September 30, 2020, are presented fairly, in all material respects, 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“generally accepted accounting principles”), and perform specified procedures on the 
required supplementary information for the year ended September 30, 2020; 

 
• Express an opinion on whether the supplementary information that accompanies the financial 

statements, including the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and the 2020 Financial 
Data Schedule of NMHC’s Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers Program, as required by the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development, are fairly stated, in all material respects, in 
relation to the financial statements as a whole; 

  
• Report on NMHC’s internal control over financial reporting and on its compliance with certain 

provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters for the year 
ended September 30, 2020, based on an audit of financial statements performed in 
accordance with generally accepted government auditing standards; and 

 
• Express an opinion on NMHC’s compliance with requirements applicable to each major 

program and report on NMHC’s internal control over compliance in accordance with the 
Uniform Guidance. 

 
Our responsibilities under the Auditing Standards and the Uniform Guidance include forming and 
expressing an opinion about whether the financial statements that have been prepared with the 
oversight of management and the Board of Directors are presented fairly, in all material respects, in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The audit of the financial statements does 
not relieve management or the Board of Directors of their responsibilities. 
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Our Responsibility under Generally Accepted Auditing Standards, Generally Accepted 
Government Auditing Standards and the Uniform Guidance, Continued 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether caused 
by fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we considered internal control over financial 
reporting relevant to NMHC’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order 
to design audit procedures that were appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of NMHC’s internal control over financial reporting. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of NMHC’s internal control over 
financial reporting. Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was not designed 
to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be significant 
deficiencies or material weaknesses. 
 
We also considered NMHC’s internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a 
direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures 
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control 
over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance.  Our audit does not, however, provide 
a legal determination of NMHC’s compliance with those requirements. 
 
Significant Accounting Policies 
 
NMHC’s significant accounting policies are set forth in note 2 to NMHC’s 2020 financial statements. 
We are not aware of any significant changes in previously adopted accounting policies or their 
application during the year ended September 30, 2020. 
 
During the year ended September 30, 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 95, Postponement of the 
Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance, which postpones the effective dates of GASB 
Statement No.’s 84, 89, 90, 91, 92 and 93 by one year and GASB Statement No. 87 by 18 months; 
however, earlier application of the provisions addressed in GASB Statement No. 95 is encouraged 
and is permitted to the extent specified in each pronouncement as originally issued.  In accordance 
with GASB Statement No. 95, management has elected to postpone implementation of these 
statements. 
 
In January 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. This Statement is to improve 
guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting 
purposes and how those activities should be reported.  The requirements of this Statement will 
enhance consistency and comparability by (1) establishing specific criteria for identifying activities 
that should be reported as fiduciary activities and (2) clarifying whether and how business-type 
activities should report their fiduciary activities.  Management does not believe that this Statement, 
upon implementation, will have a material effect on the financial statements.  In accordance with 
GASB Statement No. 95, GASB Statement No. 84 will be effective for fiscal year ending September 
30, 2021. 
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Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 
 
In June 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases.  The objective of this Statement is to better 
meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial 
reporting for leases by governments.  This Statement increases the usefulness of governments’ 
financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that 
previously were classified as operating leases and as inflows of resources or outflows of resources 
recognized based on the payment provisions of the contract.  Management believes that this 
Statement, upon implementation, will have a material effect on the financial statements.  In 
accordance with GASB Statement No. 95, GASB Statement No. 87 will be effective for fiscal year 
ending September 30, 2022. 
 
In June 2018, GASB issued Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before the End 
of a Construction Period.  The objectives of this Statement are (1) to enhance the relevance and 
comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period 
and (2) to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period.  
Management does not believe that this Statement, upon implementation, will have a material effect 
on the financial statements.  In accordance with GASB Statement No. 95, GASB Statement No. 89 
will be effective for fiscal year ending September 30, 2022. 
 
In March 2018, GASB issued Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests - An Amendment of GASB 
Statements No. 14 and 61.  The primary objectives of this Statement are to improve the consistency 
and comparability of reporting a government’s majority equity interest in a legally separate 
organization and to improve the relevance of financial statement information for certain 
component units.  It defines a majority equity interest and specifies that a majority equity interest 
in a legally separate organization should be reported as an investment if a government’s holding of 
the equity interest meets the definition of an investment.  A majority equity interest that meets the 
definition of an investment should be measured using the equity method, unless it is held by a 
special-purpose government engaged only in fiduciary activities, a fiduciary fund, or an endowment 
(including permanent and term endowments) or permanent fund.  Those governments and funds 
should measure the majority equity interest at fair value.  Management does not believe that this 
Statement, upon implementation, will have a material effect on the financial statements.  In 
accordance with GASB Statement No. 95, GASB Statement No. 90 will be effective for fiscal year 
ending September 30, 2021. 
 
In May 2019, GASB issued Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations.  The primary objectives of 
this Statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and 
eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) 
arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures.  This 
Statement achieves those objectives by clarifying the existing definition of a conduit debt obligation; 
establishing that a conduit debt obligation is not a liability of the issuer; establishing standards for 
accounting and financial reporting of additional commitments and voluntary commitments 
extended by issuers and arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations; and improving 
required note disclosures.  Management does not believe that this Statement, upon 
implementation, will have a material effect on the financial statements.  In accordance with GASB 
Statement No. 95, GASB Statement No. 91 will be effective for fiscal year ending September 30, 
2023. 
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Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 
 
In January 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020.  The objectives of this Statement 
are to enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency 
of authoritative literature by addressing practice issues that have been identified during 
implementation and application of certain GASB Statements.  This Statement addresses a variety of 
topics and includes specific provisions about the effective date of Statement No. 87, Leases, and 
Implementation Guide No. 2019-3, Leases, for interim financial reports, the terminology used to 
refer to derivative instruments and the applicability of certain requirements of Statement No. 84, 
Fiduciary Activities, to postemployment benefits.  The requirements related to the effective date of 
GASB Statement No. 87 and Implementation Guide 2019-3, reissuance recoveries and terminology 
used to refer to derivative instruments are effective upon issuance.  The remaining requirements of 
GASB Statement No. 92 are effective for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022. 
 
In March 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates.  The 
primary objective of this Statement is to address those and other accounting and financial reporting 
implications of the replacement of an IBOR.  Management does not believe that this Statement, 
upon implementation, will have a material effect on the financial statements.  In accordance with 
GASB Statement No. 95, GASB Statement No. 93 will be effective for fiscal year ending September 
30, 2022. 
 
In March 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and 
Availability Payment Arrangements.  The primary objective of this Statement is to improve financial 
reporting by addressing issues related to public-private and public-public partnership 
arrangements.  This Statement also provides guidance for accounting and financial reporting for 
availability payment arrangements.  Management does not believe that this Statement, upon 
implementation, will have a material effect on the financial statements.  GASB Statement No. 94 
will be effective for fiscal year ending September 30, 2023. 
 
In May 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology 
Arrangements.  This Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for 
subscription-based information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users 
(governments).  This Statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-
use subscription asset - an intangible asset - and a corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides 
the capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, including implementation 
costs of a SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA.  Management does not believe 
that this Statement, upon implementation, will have a material effect on the financial statements.  
GASB Statement No. 96 will be effective for fiscal year ending September 30, 2023. 
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Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 
 
In June 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans - an 
amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a supersession of GASB Statement No. 32.  
The primary objectives of this Statement are to (1) increase consistency and comparability related 
to the reporting of fiduciary component units in circumstances in which a potential component unit 
does not have a governing board and the primary government performs the duties that a governing 
board typically would perform; (2) mitigate costs associated with the reporting of certain defined 
contribution pension plans, defined contribution other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans, and 
employee benefit plans other than pension plans or OPEB plans (other employee benefit plans) as 
fiduciary component units in fiduciary fund financial statements; and (3) enhance the relevance, 
consistency, and comparability of the accounting and financial reporting for Internal Revenue Code 
(IRC) Section 457 deferred compensation plans (Section 457 plans) that meet the definition of a 
pension plan and for benefits provided through those plans.  Management does not believe that 
this Statement, upon implementation, will have a material effect on the financial statements.  GASB 
Statement No. 97 will be effective for fiscal year ending September 30, 2022. 
 
We have evaluated the significant qualitative aspects of NMHC’s accounting practices, including 
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures and concluded that 
the policies are appropriate, adequately disclosed, and consistently applied by management. 
 
Accounting Estimates 
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and 
are based on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are ordinarily based on 
knowledge and experience about past and current events and on assumptions about future events.  
During the year ended September 30, 2020, we are not aware of any significant changes in 
accounting estimates or in management’s judgments relating to such estimates. 
 
Uncorrected Misstatements 
 
Our audit of the financial statements was designed to obtain reasonable, rather than absolute, 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether 
caused by error or fraud. We have included in this letter, as an attachment to Appendix B, a summary 
of uncorrected misstatements that we presented to management during the current audit 
engagement that were determined by management to be immaterial, both individually and in the 
aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
Corrected Misstatements 
 
Misstatements were brought to the attention of management as a result of our audit procedures 
and were corrected by management during the current period.  We have attached to this letter, as 
Appendix A, a summary of misstatements corrected by management. 
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Other Information in the Annual Report of NMHC  
 
When audited financial statements are included in documents containing other information such as 
Annual Reports, we will read such other information and consider whether it, or the manner of its 
presentation, is materially inconsistent with the information, or the manner of its presentation, in 
the financial statements audited by us. In the event that NMHC issues an Annual Report or other 
documentation that includes the audited financial statements, we will be required to read the other 
information in NMHC’s 2020 Annual Report and will inquire as to the methods of measurement and 
presentation of such information. If we note a material inconsistency or if we obtain any knowledge 
of a material misstatement of fact in the other information, we will discuss this matter with 
management. 
 
Disagreements with Management 
 
We have not had any disagreements with management related to matters that are material to 
NMHC’s 2020 financial statements.  
 
Our Views about Significant Matters That Were the Subject of Consultation with Other 
Accountants 
 
We are not aware of any consultations that management may have had with other accountants 
about auditing and accounting matters during 2020. 
 
Significant Findings or Issues Discussed, or Subject of Correspondence, with Management Prior to 
Our Engagement or Retention 
 
Throughout the year, routine discussions were held, or were the subject of correspondence, with 
management regarding the application of accounting principles or auditing standards in connection 
with transactions that have occurred, transactions that are contemplated, or reassessment of 
current circumstances. In our judgment, such discussions or correspondence were not held in 
connection with our retention as auditors.  
 
Other Significant Findings or Issues Arising From the Audit Discussed, or Subject of 
Correspondence, with Management  
 
Throughout the year, routine discussions were held, or were the subject of correspondence, with 
management. In our judgment, such discussions or correspondence did not involve significant 
findings or issues requiring communication to the Board of Directors. 
 
Significant Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
 
In our judgment, we received the full cooperation of NMHC’s management and staff and had 
unrestricted access to NMHC’s senior management in the performance of our audit. 
 
Management’s Representations 
 
We have made specific inquiries of NMHC’s management about the representations embodied in 
the financial statements. In addition, we have requested that management provide to us the written 
representations NMHC is required to provide to its independent auditors under generally accepted 
auditing standards. We have attached to this letter, as Appendix B, a copy of the representation 
letter we obtained from management. 
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Modification to our Opinion 
 
Management has not adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 
68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, which was effective October 1, 2014. As 
discussed in note 2 to the financial statements, NMHC has not recorded pension expense and 
related net pension asset or liability, deferred inflows of resources and deferred outflows of 
resources as of and for the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019.  GASB Statement No. 68 
requires an employer to recognize its proportionate share of the collective pension expense, as well 
as the net pension asset or liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources. The amount by which this departure would affect the assets and deferred outflows of 
resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, net position and expenses of NMHC has not 
been determined. 
 
Emphasis-of-Matter Paragraph 
 
COVID-19 
 
Economic uncertainties as a result of the COVID-19 coronavirus pandemic may negatively impact 
NMHC’s future financial results as described in note 12 to the financial statements. 
 
Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 
 
Control-Related Matters 
 
We have issued a separate report to you, also dated April 6, 2022, containing certain matters 
involving NMHC’s internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies under standards established by the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants, and on its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  Although we have included management’s 
written response to our comments in that report, such responses have not been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion or provide any form of assurance on the appropriateness of the responses or the 
effectiveness of any corrective actions described therein. 
 
We have also communicated to management, in a separate letter dated April 6, 2022, other matters 
that we identified during our audit. 
 
 

* * * * * * 
  



 
 

 
APPENDIX A 

 
Corrected Misstatements: 
 
Audit Adjustments 
 
# Name Debit Credit 
 
 
 1 AJE To reconcile retained earnings beginning balance 
0HL.35100 RETAINED EARNINGS 10,446   
417.21013 Deferred Revenue - HOME  10,446 
 
 2 AJE To record provision for loan guaranty 
0HL.54500 PROVISION FOR LOAN GUARANTY 139,191   
0HL.20655 LOAN GUARANTY RESERVE  139,191 
 
 3 AJE To reconcile interfund receivables/payables as of 09/30/2020 
0HL.41900 OTHER INCOME GENERAL 142,745   
0HL.11112 AR Interfund (Used for General)  142,745 
 
 4 AJE To record HCV program CARES Act funding on its proper account 
S8V.40810 Income Sec. 8 Admin COVID 19 159,496   
0HL.21011 UNEARNED INCOME  159,496 
 
 5 AJE To reconcile unearned revenues as of 09/30/2020 
DR1.42300 Planning Revenue 336,761 
313.21012 DEFERRED REVENUE - CDBG 42,236 
0HL.35300 Restricted Net Position - HOME Program 34,318   
699.353 Restricted Net Position - NSP1 62,887   
0HL.41900 OTHER INCOME GENERAL 32,771   
NMHC.DR1.21012 Unearned Revenue - CDBG-DR  474,655 
417.21013 Deferred Revenue - HOME  34,318 
 
 6 AJE To adjust allowance on active loans receivables 
0HL.14500 ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES 138,548   
0HL.11500 ALLOWANCE FOR UNCOLLECTIBLE INTEREST 1,670   
0HL.54300 DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS  140,218 
 
 7 AJE To record recovery on allowance for deferred loans receivables 
0HL.14603 ALLOWANCES FOR LOAN LOSSES - DEFERRED 222,110   
0HL.54300 DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS  222,110 
 
 8 AJE To reconcile finance lease receivables as of 09/30/2020 
0HL.11134 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - RENT TO OWN 92,580   
0HL.11523 Interest Receivable - Rent-To-Own  1,209   
0HL.41900 OTHER INCOME GENERAL  93,789 
 
 

 
 
 
  



APPENDIX B 

Management Representation Letter: 

NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION 
110. Box 500514, Saipan, MP 96950-0514 

Email: WEE-£2 
Yewfiéég Website: http://www.mnhcgov.net 

April 6, 2022 

Deloitte & Touche LLC 
Certified Public Accountants 
P.O. Box 500308 
Saipan, MP 969500308 

Gentlemen: 

We are providing this letter in connection with your audits of the financial statements of the 
Northern Marianas Housing Corporation ("NMHC"), a division of the Commonwealth 
Development Authority (CDA), as of and for the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, which 
comprise the statements of net position and the related statements of revenues, expenses, and 
changes in net position, and of cash flows, and the related notes to the financial statements for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the basic financial statements present fairly. 
in all material respects, the financial position, results of Operations, and cash flows, as applicable, 
of NMHC in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAP). We are also providing this letter in connection with your audit of the compliance 
requirements of NMHC’s U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)-assisted 
programs: Section 8 Housing Assistance Payments Program (HAP), Community Development 
Block Grants/Special Purpose Grants/Insular Area (CDBG), HOME Investment Partnerships 
Program (HOME) and Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers (HCV) for the year ended September 
30, 2020. 

We confirm that we are responsible for the following: 

a. The preparation and fair presentation in the basic financial statements of financial position, 
changes in net position and cash flows, in accordance with GAAP. 

b. The design, implementation, and maintenance of intemai control: 

- Relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

- To prevent and detect fraud. 

c. The review and approval of the financial statements and related notes, and we 
acknowledge your role in the preparation of this information. Specifically, we acknowledge 
that your role in the preparation of the financial statements was a matter of convenience 
rather than one of necessity. We have reviewed the financial statement preparation 
assistance provided by you and acknowledge that the financial statements are prepared in 
accordance with GAAP. Our review was based on the use of the financial statement 
disclosure checklist for stand-alone business-type activities obtained from the Government 
Finance Officers Association. Additionally, we agree with the adjusting entries included in 
Appendix A. 

“NMHC is an equal employment and fair homing public agency” 
Rota Field Office: Tel. (670) 532-9410 Tlnlan Field Office: Tel. (61'!) 433-9213 

Fax. (670) 532-9441 Fax. (670) 433-3690 
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Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. 
Items are considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of 
accounting information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the 
judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by 
the omission or misstatement. 

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and beiief, the following representations made to you 
during your audits. 

1. Except as discussed in the "Basis for Qualified Opinion" paragraph described in your 
independent Auditors’ Report, the basic financial statements referred to above are fairly 
presented in accordance with GAAP. In addition: 

a. Net position components (net investment in capital assets, restricted, and 
unrestricted) are properly classified and, if applicable, approved. 

b. Deposits are properly classified in the category of custodial credit risk. 

c. Capital assets, including infrastructure assets, are properly capitalized, reported, and, 
if applicable, depreciated. 

d. Required supplementary information is measured and presented within prescribed 
guidelines. 

e. Applicable laws and regulations are followed in adopting, approving, and amending 
budgets. 

f. Interfund, internal, and intra-entity activity and balances have been appropriately 
classified and reported. 

2. NMHC has provided to you all relevant information and access as agreed in the terms of the 
audit engagement letter. 

3. NMHC has made available to you: 

a. All minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or summaries of actions of 
recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared. 

b. All financial records and related data for all financial transactions of NMHC and for all 
funds administered by NMHC. The records, books, and accounts, as provided to you, 
record the financial and fiscal operations of all funds administered by NMHC and 
provide the audit trail to be used in a review of accountability. Information presented 
in financial reports is supported by the books and records from which the financial 
statements have been prepared, except as disclosed in the Schedule of Findings and 
Questioned Costs. 

c. Contracts and grant agreements (including amendments, if any) and any other 
correspondence that has taken place with federal agencies. 

4. There has been no: 

a. Action taken by NMHC management that contravenes the provisions of federal laws 
and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands (CNMI) laws and regulations, 
or of contracts and grants applicable to NMHC, except for instances of noncompliance 
included in the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. 
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b. Communications with other regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with or 
deficiencies in financial reporting practices or other matters that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements. 

5. CNMI law does not require component units to collateralize their bank accounts; however, 
NMHC elects to collateralize deposits with U.S. government obligations at the rate of 100%. 

6. We believe the effects of any uncorrected financial statement misstatements aggregated 
by you during the current audit engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented 
are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as 
a whole. A summary of such uncorrected misstatements has been attached as Appendix B. 

7. We believe the effects of the uncorrected financial statement misstatements detected in 
the current year that relate to the prior year presented, when combined with those 
misstatements aggregated by you during the prior year audit engagement and pertaining 
to the prior year presented, are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the 
financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2019 taken as a whole. A summary 
of such uncorrected misstatements has been attached as Appendix C. 

8. NMHC has not performed a formal risk assessment, including the assessment of the risk 
that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. However, 
NMHC has made available to you management’s understanding about the risks of fraud in 
NMi-llc and does not believe that the financial statements are materially misstated as a 
resu t a raud. 

9. We have no knowledge of any fmud or suspected fraud affecting NMHC involving: 

a. Management. 

b. Employees who have significant roles in NMHC’s internal control. 

c. Others, where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

10. We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting NMHC’s 
financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators, 
or others. 

11. There are no unasserted claims or assessments that we are aware of or that legal counsel 
has advised us are probable of assertion and must be disclosed in accordance with GASB 
Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards ("GASB 
Codification”) Section C50, Claims and Judgments, except for instances of noncompliance 
with grant contract provisions, laws, and regulations included in the Schedule of Findings 
and Questioned Costs. 

12. The methods, significant assumptions, and the data used by us in making the accounting 
estimates and the related disclosures are appropriate to achieve recognition, 
measurement, or disclosure that is in accordance with GAAP. 

13. We are responsible for the preparation of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, 
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards ("OMB Uniform Guidance"). We have identified and disclosed all of NMHC‘s 
government programs and related activities subject to the OMB Uniform Guidance 
compliance audit. In addition, we have accurately completed the appropriate sections of 
the data collection form. 



APPENDIX 3, CONTINUED 

April 6, 2022 
Page Four 

14. We are responsible for compliance with CNMI and federal laws, rules, and regulations, 
including compliance with the requirements of OMB Uniform Guidance and the provisions 
of grants and contracts relating to NMI-IC's operations. We are responsible for 
understanding and complying with the requirements of the federal statutes and 
regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards related to each of NMHC‘s 
federal programs. We are responsible for establishing and maintaining the components of 
internal control relating to our activities in order to achieve the objectives of providing 
reliable financial reports, effective and efficient operations, and compliance with laws and 
regulations. We are responsible for maintaining accounting and administrative control over 
revenues, obligationspexpenditures, assets, and liabilities. 

15. We have informed you of all investigations or legal proceedings that have been initiated 
during the year ended September 30, 2020 or are in process as of September 30, 2020. 

16. We are responsible for all nonaudit services performed by you during the year ended 
September 30, 2020 and through April 6, 2022. 

17. We are responsible for establishing and maintaining, and have established and maintained, 
effective internal control over compliance for federal programs that provides reasonable 
assurance that we are managing federal awards in compliance with federal statutes, 
regulations, and the terms and conditions of the federal awards that could have a material 
effect on its federal programs. 

18. We have disclosed to you all deficiencies in the design or operation of internal control over 
financial reporting identified as part of our evaluation, including separately disclosing to 
you all such deficiencies that are significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal 
control over financial reporting. 

19. No events have occurred subsequent to September 30, 2020, that require consideration as 
adjustments to or disclosures in the schedule of federal awards and related notes or that 
existed at the end of the reporting period that affect noncompliance during the reporting 
period. 

20. We have disclosed all known noncompliance with direct and material compliance 
requirements occurring subsequent to September 30, 2020. 

21. Other than those described in the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, no changes 
in internal control over compliance or other factors that might significantly affect internal 
control over financial reporting, including any corrective actions taken by NMl-IC with 
regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over 
compliance, have occurred subsequent to September 30, 2020. 

22. Federal awards expenditures have been charged in accordance with applicable cost 
principles. 

23. The Reporting Package submitted to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse (FAC) as defined by 
the OMB Uniform Guidance section 2CF3200.512(3)(c) does not contain protected 
personally identifiable information. 

24. We have disclosed all contracts or other agreements with service organizations. 

25. We have disclosed to you all communications from service organizations relating to 
noncompliance with the requirements of federal statutes, regulations, and terms and 
conditions of federal awards at those organizations. 
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26. We have: 

a. Identified and disclosed to you the requirements of federal statutes, regulations, and 
the terms and conditions of federal awards that are considered to have a direct and 
material effect on each major program under audit. 

b. Compiled, in all material respects, with the direct and material compliance 
requirements identified above in connection with federal awards, except as disclosed 
in the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. 

c. Identified and disclosed interpretations of any compliance requirements that have 
varying interpretations. 

d. Made available all federal awards (including amendments, if any) and any other 
correspondence relevant to federal programs and related activities that have taken 
place with federal agencies or pass-through entities. Management has made available 
all documentation related to compliance with the direct and material compliance 
requirements, including information related to federal program financial reports and 
claims for advances and reimbursements. Federal financial reports and claims for 
advances and reimbursements are supported by the books and records from which 
the financial statements have been prepared and are prepared on a basis consistent 
with that presented in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, except for 
instances of noncompliance included in the Schedule of Findings and Questioned 
Costs. The copies of federal program financial reports provided are true copies of the 
reports submitted, or electronically transmitted, to the federal agency or pass- 
through entity, as applicable. 

e. Identified and disclosed all amounts questioned and all known noncompliance with 
the direct and material compliance requirements of federal awards, including the 
results of other audits, program reviews, or any communications from federal 
awarding agencies and pass-through entities concerning possible noncompliance 
related to the objectives of the audit. 

f. Identified previous financial audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or 
other studies related to the objectives of the audit and the corrective actions taken to 
address significant findings and recommendations, including the status of follow-up 
on prior audit findings (and information about all management decisions) by federal 
awarding agencies and pass-through entities. 

g. Provided to you our views on the reported findings, conclusions, and 
recommendations for your report. 

h. Monitored subrecipients to determine that they have expended subawards in 
compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and terms and conditions of the 
subaward and have met the other pass-through entity requirements of OMB Uniform 
Guidance. 

i. Issued management decisions for audit findings that relate to federal awards made to 
subrecipients. Such management decisions were issued within six months of 
acceptance of the audit report by the FAC. Additionally, we have followed up to 
determine whether the subrecipient has taken timely and appropriate action on all 
deficiencies detected through audits, on-site reviews, and other means that pertain 
to the federal award provided to the subrecipient from NMHC. 

j. Considered the results of the subrecipient’s audits and made any necessary 
adjustments to NMHC’s own books and records. 
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2']. We are responsible for follow-up on all prior-year findings. We have prepared a summary 
schedule of prior-year findings by federal awarding agency and pass-through entity, 
including all management decisions, to report the status of our efforts in implementation 
of the prior-year‘s corrective action plan. The summary schedule of prior audit findings 
includes all findings required to be included in accordance with OMB Uniform Guidance. 

28. We are responsible for taking corrective action on audit findings and have developed a 
corrective action plan that meets the requirements of OMB Uniform Guidance. We have 
included in the corrective action plan for current-year findings the name of the person in 
our organization responsible for implementation of the actions, the best actions to be 
taken, and the estimate of a completion date. We have taken timely and appropriate steps 
to remedy fraud, illegal acts, violations of provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or 
abuse that you report. 

29. Management has identified and disclosed to you all laws and regulations that have a direct 
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. 

Except where otherwise stated below, immaterial matters less than $81,400 collectively are not 
considered to be exceptions that require disclosure for the purpose of the following 
representations. This amount is not necessarily indicative of amounts that would require 
adjustment to, or disclosure in, the basic financial statements. 

30. No evidence of fraud, possible irregularities, or dishonesty in fiscal operations of programs 
administered by NMHC has been discovered. 

31. Except as listed in Appendices B and C, there are no transactions that have not been 
properly recorded and reflected in the financial statements. 

32. NMi-IC has no plans or intentions that may affect the carrying value or classification of 
assets and liabilities. 

33. Regarding related parties, we have disclosed to you the identity of NMHC’s related parties 
and all the related-party relationships and transactions of which we are aware. 

34. In preparing the financial statements in accordance with GAAP. management uses 
estimates. All estimates have been disclosed in the financial statements for which known 
information available prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that both 
of the following criteria are met: 

a. It is reasonably possible that the estimate of the effect on the financial statements of 
a condition, situation, or set of circumstances that existed at the date of the financial 
statements will change in the near term due to one or more future confirming events. 

b. The effect of the change would be material to the financial statements. 

35. There are no: 

a. Instances of identified or suspected noncompliance with laws, regulations, or 
provisions of contracts or grant agreements whose effects should be considered when 
preparing the financial statements, or other instances that warrant the attention of 
those charged with governance, except as disclosed in the Schedule of Findings and 
Questioned Costs. 

b. Known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered 
when preparing the financial statements and that have not been disclosed to you and 
accounted for and disclosed in accordance with GAAP. 
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c. Known actual or likely instances of abuse that have occurred that could be 
quantitatively or qualitatively material to the financial statements. 

d. Other liabilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be accrued or 
disclosed by GASB Codification Section C50, Claims and Judgments, except as 
disclosed in note 10 to the financial statements. 

36. NMHC has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on 
such assets, nor has any asset been pledged as collateral, except as disclosed in the notes 
to the financial statements. 

37. NMHC has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that may affect the financial 
statements, except for instances of noncompliance included in the Schedule of Findings and 
Questioned Costs. 

38. No division of NMHC has reported a material instance of nOncompliance to us. 

39. Other than those described in note 13 to the financial statements, no events have occurred 
after September 30, 2020, but before April 6, 2022, the date the financial statements were 
available to be issued, that require consideration as adjustments to, or disclosures in, the 
financial statements. 

40. Regarding required supplementary information: 

a. We confirm that we are responsible for the required supplementary information. 

b. The required supplementary information is measured and presented in accordance 
with GASB. 

c. The methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information 
have not changed from those used in the prior period. 

41. Regarding supplementary information: 

a. We are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the supplementary 
information in accordance with the OMB Uniform Guidance. 

b. We believe the supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly 
presented in accordance with the OMB Uniform Guidance. 

c. The methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information 
have not changed from those used in the prior period. 

42. With regard to the fair value measurements and disclosu res of certain assets, liabilities, and 
specific components of equity, such as foreclosed properties and land: 

a. The measurement methods, including the related assumptions, used in determining 
fair value were appropriate, consistent with market participant assumptions where 
available without undue cost and effort, and were consistently applied in accordance 
with GAAP. 

b. The completeness and adequacy of the disciosures related to fair values are in 
accordance with GAAP. 
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c. No events have occurred after September 30, 2020, but before April 6, 2022, the date 
the financial statements were available to be issued that require adjustment to the 
fair value measurements and disclosures included in the financial statements. 

43. NMHC has performed a determination as to whether a capital asset has been impaired in 
accordance with GASB Codification Section 1400.181 - 1400.201, Impairment of Capital 
Assets. However, NMHC believes the magnitude of the decline in service utility, if any, is 
not significant and is unexpected. 

44. We have appropriately identified and properly recorded and disclosed in the financial 
statements all interfund transactions, including repayment terms. 

45. Arrangements with financial institutions involving compensating balances or other 
arrangements involving restrictions on cash balances, line of credit, or similar arrangements 
have been properly disclosed in the financial statements. 

46. For financial instruments with off-balance-sheet credit risk [e.g., obligations for loans sold 
with recourse (with or without floating rate provision), fixed-rate and variable-rate loan 
commitments, financial guarantees, note issuance facilities at floating rates, letters of 
credit], except for those instruments within the scope GASB Codification Section 040, 
Derivative Instruments, NMI-iC has disclosed the following: 

a. The face or contract amount. 

b. The nature and terms, including a discussion of the following: 
0 Credit, custodial credit risk, and interest rate risks, as applicable of those 

instruments. 
Foreign currency and concentration of credit risk, as applicable. 
Cash requirements of those instruments. 
Other disclosures required by GASB Codification Section I50, Investments. 
Related accounting policy pursuant to GASB Codification Section 2300, Notes to 
Financial Statements. 

c. NMHC’s policy for requiring collateral or other security to support financial 
instruments subject to credit risk, information about NMHC’s access to that collateral 
or other security, and the nature and brief description of the collateral or other 
security supporting those financial instruments. 

47. Receivables recorded in the financial statements represent valid claims against debtors for 
sales or other charges arising on or before September 30, 2020 and have been appropriately 
reduced to their estimated net realizable value. 

48. Quantitative and qualitative information regarding the credit quality of financing 
receivables has been properly disclosed in the financial statements. 

49. All impaired loans receivables have been properly recorded and disclosed in the financial 
statements. 

50. Loans that have been restructured to provide a reduction or deferral of interest or principal 
payments because of borrower financial difficulties have been properly recorded and 
disclosed in the financial statements. 

51. We have no intention of terminating our 401(k) plan or taking any other action that could 
result in an effective termination or reportable event for the plan. We are not aware of any 
occurrences that could result in the termination of our 401(k) plans to which we contribute. 
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52. On August 30, 2012, Public Law 17-79 was enacted to amend Title I of the Commonwealth 
Code to include the intent of the CNMI to participate in the retirement insurance system 
established by Title II of the U5. Federal insurance Contributions Act (FICA) and for 
participation to be extended to elected officials, employees, political subdivisions and 
instrumentalities of the CNMI. On September 11, 2012, Public Law 17-82 CNMI Pension 
Reform Recovery Act of 2012 was enacted. Unless specifically exempted or authorized by 
federal law, Public Law 17-82 provides for mandatory membership of CNMI Government 
employees and elected officials in the U.S. Social Security system and authorizes 
employees, who elect to, to buy quarters of service in the US. Social Security system from 
contributions made to the DB Plan. in addition, Public Law 17-82 provides active and 
inactive DB Plan members the option to voluntarily terminate membership in the DB Plan, 
withdraw or roll over contributions to the DC Plan and to participate in the U.S. Social 
Security system without termination of employment or penalty. Further, Public Law 17-82 
allows the CNMI Government to continue remitting its 4% employer contribution to the DC 
Plan unless the employee ceases to contribute its employee share. 

53. Real estate properties acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure are to be sold and 
are initially recorded at fair value at the date of foreclosure less estimated selling costs 
establishing a new cost basis. Valuations are periodically performed by management and 
adjustments are made to reflect the real estate at the lower of the carrying amount or fair 
value less estimated costs to sell. Operating expenses or income, reductions in estimated 
values, and gains or losses on disposition of such properties are charged to current 
operations. 

54. Unearned revenues is recognized when resource is received prior to being earned and 
relates to Housing Choice Voucher CARES Act funding from HUD of $159,496 as of 
September 30, 2020, which pertains to federal award money received before the qualifying 
expenditure is made, and recorded capital asset under the Community Development Block 
Grant program administered by NMHC of $380,000 and $351,693 as of September 30, 2020 
and 2019, respectively. 

55. Deferred inflows of resources represent unavailable revenue from the Community 
Development Block Grant Disaster Recovery (CDBG-DR) program, which is revenue that 
does not meet the "available" criterion for revenue recognition under the modified accrual 
basis of accounting. NMHC recorded deferred inflows of resources of $474,655 and 
$137,894 as of September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. 

56. On November 24, 2012, a binding and unappealable judgment was issued on a lawsuit filed 
against the architects, the construction manager and the contractor for deficiencies in the 
design and construction of homes in the Tottotville Subdivision, which awarded NMHC 
$694,851 in damages. NMHC recorded litigation judgment revenue of $-0- and $4,407 
during the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. 

57. On October 18, 2016, NMHC entered into a settlement agreement with USDA R0 for 
$1,871,000 to pay forty-eight seriously delinquent accounts in full with a principal amount 
of $4,097,440, which was paid on October 24, 2016. USDA RD assigned and transferred all 
interest under the delinquent loans and real estate deeds of trust. NMHC wrote-off other 
loans receivable and the attendant allowance for doubtful accounts of $4,104,170 as of 
September 30, 2017. NMHC recorded USDA RD defaulted loans receivable of $1,871,000 as 
of September 30, 2017 to recognize purchased loans at the lower of each loan's purchase 
price or the real property’s fair value less costs to sell. To recover costs and gain additional 
revenue, NMHC intends to sell each real property under a deed of trust to third parties and 
thus has recorded the amounts as current other receivables. 
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On October 24, through 25, 2018, the CNMI was devastated by So perTyphoon Yutu. During 
the year ended September 30, 2019, NMHC is developing a CNMI’s Action Plan for the 
CDBG-DR program application to be submitted to HUD. CDBG-DR program provides funds 
to be used for necessary expenses related to disaster relief, long~term recovery, and 
restoration of infrastructure, housing, and economic revitalization. NMHC recorded 
receivable from grantor and unearned revenue of $474,655 and $137,894 as of September 
30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, for administrative expenses incurred. 

58. NM HC does not have an indirect cost negotiation agreement and does not elect to use the 
de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance. NMHC developed 
allocations for indirect costs to programs, which was fully implemented in fiscal year 2020. 
NM HC developed estimates and allocable costs in compliance with the Uniform Guidance 
and Code of Federal Regulations 5200.404 Reasonable Costs, and §200.405 Allocable Costs. 

59. NMHC, on behalf of the CNMI, has been designated the responsibility of implementing and 
carrying out the objectives of the HOME program. The purpose of the program is to provide 
no-cost or low-cost financing assistance to very low and low-income families. Under 
NM HC’s policies and procedures, HOME loan applicants that have been determined to be 
eligible for financial assistance are required to comply with the terms of the homeowner 
rehabilitation assistance including the NMHC affordability period and principal residency 
requirements. Balances and transactions relating to the HOME program are included in 
NMHC’s financial statements. Loans made during the year and the balances of loans from 
previous years for which the federal government imposes continuing compliance 
requirements are included in the federal expenditures presented in the Schedule. As of 
September 30, 2020, the HOME Program expenditures include $107,243 in current year 
disbursements and $6,769,731 in outstanding HOME loans from previous years with 
continuing compliance requirements. The balance of HOME Investment Partnerships grant 
loans outstanding and recorded by NMHC at September 30, 2020 is $7,027,659, of which 
$6,990,789 have continuing compliance requirements. 

50. NMHC has no outstanding liability to the Northern Mariana Islands Retirement Fund and 
thus no liability to the CNMI as of September 30, 2020. 

61. In June 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Pensions and in November 2013, GASB issued Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for 
Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date 4 an amendment of GASB 
Statement No. 68, which revised and established new financial reporting requirements for 
most governments that provided their employees with pension benefits through plans that 
are administered through trusts. Management has determined that the CNMI is legally 
responsible for making contributions to NMISF as a non-employer entity and that net 
pension obligations are allocated in total to the CNMI. Management acknowledges the 
requirement to recognize revenue in an amount equal to the non-employer contributing 
entities' (CNMI) total proportionate share of the collective pension expense that is 
associated with NMHC. NMHC has not recorded related revenues and pension expense for 
the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019 as amounts were not available. 

62. During the year ended September 30, 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 95, Postponement 
of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance, which postpones the effective 
dates of GASB Statement No.’s 84, 89, 90, 91, 92 and 93 by one year and GASB Statement 
No. 87 by 18 months; however, earlier application of the provisions addressed in GASB 
Statement No. 95 is encouraged and is permitted to the extent specified in each 
pronouncement as originally issued. in accordance with GASB Statement No. 95, 
management has elected to postpone implementation of these statements. 



APPENDIX B, CONTINUED 

April 6, 2022 
Page Eleven 

In January 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. This Statement is to 
improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and 
financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported. The 
requirements of this Statement will enhance consistency and comparability by (1) 
establishing specific criteria for identifying activities that should be reported as fiduciary 
activities and (2) clarifying whether and how business-type activities should report their 
fiduciary activities. Management does not believe that this Statement, upon 
implementation, will have a material effect on the financial statements. In accordance with 
GASB Statement No. 95, GASB Statement No. 84 will be effective for fiscal year ending 
September 30, 2021. , 

In June 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. The objective of this Statement is to 
better meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting 
and financial reporting for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness 
of governments’ financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and 
liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and as inflows of 
resources or outflows of resources recognized based on the payment provisions o f  the 
contract. Management believes that this Statement, upon implementation, will have a 
material effect on the financial statements. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 95, 
GASB Statement No. 87 will be effective for fiscal year ending September 30, 2022. 

In June 2018, GASB issued Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before 
the End of a Construction Period. The objectives of this Statement are (1) to enhance the 
relevance and comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing 
for a reporting period and (2) to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the 
end of a construction period. Management does not believe that this Statement, upon 
implementation, will have a material effect on the financial statements. In accordance with 
GASB Statement No. 95, GASB Statement No. 89 will be effective for fiscal year ending 
September 30, 2022. 

In March 2018, GASB issued Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests - An Amendment 
of GASB Statements No. 14 and 61. The primary objectives of this Statement are to improve 
the cansistency and comparability of reporting a government’s majority equity interest in 
a legally separate organization and to improve the relevance of financial statement 
information for certain component units. It defines a majority equity interest and specifies 
that a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization should be reported as an 
investment if a government's holding of the equity interest meets the definition of an 
investment. A majority equity interest that meets the definition of an investment should 
be measured using the equity method, unless it is held by a special-purpose government 
engaged only in fiduciary activities, a fiduciary fund, or an endowment (including 
permanent and term endowments) or permanent fund. Those governments and funds 
should measure the majority equity interest at fair value. Management does not believe 
that this Statement, upon implementation, will have a material effect on the financial 
statements. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 95, GASB Statement No. 90 will be 
effective for fiscal year ending September 30, 2021. 
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In May 2019, GASB issued Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations. The primary 
objectives of this Statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt 
obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments 
extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) 
related note disclosures. This Statement achieves those objectives by clarifying the existing 
definition of a conduit debt obligation; establishing that a conduit debt obligation is not a 
liability of the issuer; establishing standards for accounting and financial reporting of 
additional commitments and voluntary commitments extended by issuers and 
arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations; and improving required note 
disclosures. Management does not believe that this Statement, upon implementation, will 
have a material effect on the financial statements. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 
95, GASB Statement No. 91 will be effective for fiscal year ending September 30, 2023. 

In January 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020. The objectives of this 
Statement are to enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to 
improve the consistency of authoritative literature by addressing practice issues that have 
been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements. This 
Statement addresses a variety of topics and includes specific provisions about the effective 
date of Statement No. 87, Leases, and Implementation Guide No. 2019-3, Leases, for 
interim financial reports, the terminology used to refer to derivative instruments and the 
applicability of certain requirements of Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, to 
pastemployment benefits. The requirements related to the effective date of GASB 
Statement No. 87 and Implementation Guide 2019-3, reissuance recoveries and 
terminology used to refer to derivative instruments are effective upon issuance. The 
remaining requirements of GASB Statement No. 92 is effective for the fiscal year ending 
September 30, 2022. 

In March 2020, GASB issued Statement Na. 93, Replacement of interbank afiered Rates. 
The primary objective of this Statement is to address those and other accounting and 
financial reporting implications of the replacement of an IBOR. Management does not 
believe that this Statement, upon implementation, will have a material effect on the 
financial statements. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 95, GASB Statement No. 93 
will be effective for fiscal year ending September 30, 2022. 

In March 2020, GASB issued Statement Na. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships 
and Availability Payment Arrangements. The primary objective of this Statement is to 
improve financial reporting by addressing issues related to public-private and public-public 
partnership arrangements. This Statement also provides guidance for accounting and 
financial reporting for availability payment arrangements. Management does not believe 
that this Statement, upon implementation, will have a material effect on the financial 
statements. GASB Statement No. 94 will be effective for fiscal year ending September 30, 
2023. 

In May 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology 
Arrangements. This Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting 
for subscription-based information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government and 
users (governments). This Statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results 
in a right-to-use subscription asset - an intangible asset - and a corresponding subscription 
liability; (3) provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription 
payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures 
regarding a SBITA. Management does not believe that this Statement, upon 
implementation, will have a material effect on the financial statements. GASB Statement 
No. 96 will be effective for fiscal year ending September 30, 2023. 
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In June 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred 
Compensation Plans - an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a 
supersessfon of GASB Statement No. 32. The primary objectives of this Statement are to 
(1) increase consistency and comparability related to the reporting of fiduciary component 
units in circumstances in which a potential component unit does not have a governing 
board and the primary government performs the duties that a governing board typically 
would perform; (2) mitigate costs associated with the reporting of certain defined 
contribution pension plans, defined contribution other postemployment benefit (OPEB) 
plans, and employee benefit plans other than pension plans or OPEB plans (other employee 
benefit plans) as fiduciary component units in fiduciary fund financial statements; and (3) 
enhance the relevance, consistency, and comparability of the accounting and financial 
reporting for Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457 deferred compensation plans 
(Section 457 plans) that meet the definition of a pension plan and for benefits provided 
through those plans. Management does not believe that this Statement, upon 
implementation, will have a material effect on the financial statements. GASB Statement 
No. 97 will be effective for fiscal year ending September 30, 2022. 

63. NMHC has evaluated the effects of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act 
(the “CARES Act") and determined that the related financial reporting considerations are 
accounted for and reported appropriately under the applicable financial accounting 
reporting framework. 

We are providing additional representations in connection with your audit of the compliance 
requirements of NMHC’s federal award programs. 

64. No subsequent events that provide additional evidence with respect to conditions that 
existed at the end of the reporting period that affect noncompliance during the reporting 
period have occurred subsequent to September 30, 2020. 

65. Other than those described in the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, no instances 
of noncompliance with direct and material compliance requirements have occurred 
subsequent to September 30, 2020. 

66. NMHC management has charged costs to federal awards in accordance with applicable cost 
principles, except as disclosed in the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. 

67. NMHC has made available to you all financial records and related data for all financial 
transactions of NMHC. The records, books, and accounts, as provided to you, record the 
financial and fiscal operations of all funds administered by NMHC and provide the audit trail 
to be used in a review of accountability. Information in federal financial reports and claims 
for advances and reimbursements is supported by the books and records from which the 
financial statements have been prepared, except as disclosed in the Schedule of Findings 
and Questioned Costs. 

68. NMHC has obligated, expended, received, and used public funds of NMHC in accordance 
with the purpose for which such funds have been appropriated or otherwise authorized by 
local or federal law. Such obligation, expenditure, receipt, or use of public funds was in 
accordance with any limitations, conditions, or mandatory directions imposed by local or 
federal law, except as disclosed in the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. 

69. Money or similar assets handled by NMHC on behalf of the mm or Federal Government 
have been properly and legally administered, and the accounting and record keeping 
related thereto is proper, accurate, and in accordance with law, except as disclosed in the 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. 



APPENDIX B, CONTINUED 

April 6, 2022 
Page Fourteen 

70. NMHC has identified and disclosed all of NMHC’s government programs and related 
activities subject to the OMB Uniform Guidance compliance audit and have included 
expenditures made during the period being audited for all awards provided by federal 
agencies or pass-through entities in the form of grants, federal cost-reimbursement 
contracts, loans, loan guarantees, property (including donated surplus property), 
cooperative agreements, interest subsidies, insurance, food commodities, direct 
appropriations, and other direct assistance. 

Except where otherwise stated below, matters less than $25,000 collectively are not considered 
to be exceptions thatrequire disclosure for the purpose of the following representations. This 
amount is not necessarily indicative of amounts that would require adjustment to, or disclosure 
in, the financial statements. 

71. No evidence of fraud, possible irregularities, or dishonesty in fiscal operations of programs 
administered by NMHC has been discovered. 

72. We have no knowledge of identified or suspected conflict of interest pertaining to projects 
and activities that are federally funded. 

73. No events have occurred subsequent to September 30, 2020, that require consideration as 
adjustments to or disclosures in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and 
related notes or that existed at the end of the reporting period that affect noncompliance 
during the reporting period, except as disclosed in the Schedule of Findings and Questioned 
Costs. 

Very truly yours, 

Adi 
Mar ie M. Tomo an 

Housing Division Man er, HAP 
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To reconcile retained earnings beginning balance 

AIE'I’o record trovIsiGonMM for loan guaranty 
DHLSASDD PROVISION FOR OANG 139.151 
ouczosss com GUARANTV RESERVE“ 139.191 

To record provision for loan guaranty 

3 A15 To remnclle lnterlund receivables/payable 
”41.41900 OTHER INCOME GE NE 141345 
OHL.11112 AR lnteriund (Used for General! 141.?! 

To reconcile lnterfund receivableslpayables as oi 0913012020 
4 A15 To record i-lCVpro ram CARI Act landing on Its proper account 

SEVADEN Income Sec. 8 Admin COVID 19 153.135 
DHL21011 UNEARNED INCOME 159415 

To record Hcv program CARES Act funding on its proper account 

5 A15 To recoencile unearned revenues as of 09/30/2020 
DRIAZBID Plann 336,761 
31311012 DEFERR D REVENUE CDBG 42.236 
OHL35300 Restricted Net Position- HOME Program 34.315 
693.353 Restricted Net Position- NSP 1 62.887 
DHLAIBOO OTHER NCOME GENERAL 32,771 
NMHCDRIJIOI! Unearnied Revenue . CDBG DR 414.655 
417.2101: Deierred Revenue ‘ HOME 34,318 

To reconcile unearned revenues asoi 0913012020 

6 AIEW To ad t allowance on active loans receivables 
DHLMSOD FOR LOANLO LOSSES 135.548 
OHLIISOD ALLOWANCE FOR UNCOLLEC‘I’IELE INTEREST 1.570 
WLSdBOD DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS "Hal 

To adjust allowance on active loans receivables 

7 AI: To record recove on allowance for delerred loans 
aHLqa MLDWANCES FOR LOA lDSSEs - DEFERRED 221.111! 
nHLsaaoe DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS 121.111} 

To record recovery an allowance for deferred loanc receivables 

I AIE To reconcile ilnance lease receivables 
i'IHL1. .134 ACCOUNTS RECEIVAELE - RENTTO OWN 92.580 
IIHI..1. .523 interest Receivable ~ Rent-To-Own 1.209 
OHM 1900 OTHER INCOME GENERAL 33.18 

To reconcile finance lease receivables as ores/amaze 



APPENDIX 3, CONTINUED 

APPENDIX B 

SUMMARY OF UNODRRECI’ED MISSI'ATEMENTS - CURRENT PERIOD 
Desalgllon of Mlssmernent Asse_t_s liabilities . Egulty Income TOTAL 

Dr. Cr. Dr. Cr. Dr. Cr. 0r. Cr. 
Current-Period Minutemen“: 

PAIE #1 
To record FEMA federally funded retelvable and expendnum 
Incurred in FY2020 at 09/30/20 
DR llecelvahle lrnrn annlur 11,615 11,616 
00 Federal expendllures 11.516 11.616 
CR Federal cantrlbullons 11.51! (11.616) 
CR Local expenditures 11.616 (11.616) 

mm: 
To some unrecorded "abilities as of 09/30/1020 
Dr. 03153200 Professional Fees 83.630 aim 
Cr. DHLJDSH Accrued Expenses 83.630 103,530] 

11,615] ill—537531) o o MEI—13.232 a 



APPENDIX B, CONTINUED 

APPENDIX C 

SUMMARY OF UNL'DRREC'I’ED MISSTATEMENTS - PRIOR PERIOD 
Desalflnn of Misslatement Assets “abilities Equlty luwme TOTAL 

Dr. Cr. Dr. Cr. Dr. Cr. Dr. Cr. 
Prior-Perlod Mlsstatementi 

PAIE l1 
To record FEMA federally funded receivable 
and expendltum: Incurred In FY2019 at 
00/30/19 
DR Receivable from granlcr 17.043 17,043 
CR Federal mnhributlans 17,043 (17,043) 

17,043 0 0 0 0 O 0 17.04 D 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
April 6, 2022 
 
 
 
Mr. Jesse S. Palacios 
Corporate Director 
Northern Marianas Housing Corporation 
 
 
Dear Mr. Palacios: 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the Northern Marianas 
Housing Corporation (NMHC) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2020 (on which we have 
issued our report dated April 6, 2022) and which report was modified to include an explanatory 
paragraph concerning our inability to determine the effects of Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions on 
NMHC’s financial statements, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, we considered 
NMHC’s internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of NMHC’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion on the effectiveness of NMHC’s internal control over financial reporting. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose 
described in the preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over financial reporting. However, in connection with our audit, we identified, and 
included in the attached Appendix I, deficiencies related to NMHC’s internal control over financial 
reporting and other matters as of September 30, 2020, that we wish to bring to your attention. 
 
We have also issued a separate report to the Board of Directors and management, also dated April 
6, 2022, which includes certain matters involving NMHC’s internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters that we consider to be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies under standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.  
 
The definition of a deficiency is also set forth in the attached Appendix I. 
 
A description of the responsibility of management for establishing and maintaining internal control 
over financial reporting and of the objectives of and inherent limitations of internal control over 
financial reporting, is set forth in the attached Appendix II and should be read in conjunction with 
this report. 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Directors, 
the Office of the Public Auditor and others within the organization and is not intended to be, and 
should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.  However, this report is also a 
matter of public record. 
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Deloitte. 

We will be pleased to discuss the attached comments with you and, if desired, to assist you in 
implementing any of the suggestions. 

We wish to thank the staff and management of NMHC for their cooperation and assistance during 
the course of this engagement. 

Very truly yours, 

flMJ/m’é <<c 



 

 

 
 

APPENDIX I 
 
SECTION I - CONTROL DEFICIENCIES 
 
We identified no control deficiencies involving the NMHC’s internal control over financial reporting 
as of September 30, 2020 other than those control deficiencies identified as significant deficiencies 
in our Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters 
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards. 
 
SECTION II - OTHER MATTERS 
 
We identified, and have included below, other matters involving NMHC’s internal control over 
financial reporting as of September 30, 2020 that we wish to bring to your attention: 
 
(1) Loans Receivable 
 
Tests of thirty-nine loans receivable, totaling $1,887,870, noted the following: 
 
a. During 2020, mortgaged properties were partially or not insured for twenty-three loans, 

aggregating $1,071,985. 
   Expiration Date 
  Date of Loan of Most Recent Outstanding 
 Loan Number Agreement Insurance in File Loan Balance 
 

 DF-002-06 02/21/06 10/14/10 - 10/14/11 $ 30,927 
 DF-32-97A 11/06/09 10/14/10 - 10/14/11  37,273 
 DFHL2097A 09/18/98 10/14/10 - 10/14/11  52,791 
 DFRD-03 12/01/17 Not in file  13,727 
 DFRD-06 08/30/19 Not in file  69,708 
 DFRD-08 08/27/19 Not in file  49,447 
 DFRD-11 11/05/19 Not in file  56,913 
 DFRD-14 09/11/20 Not in file  30,685 
 HL-190 07/13/05 08/21/19 - 07/31/20  28,169 
 HNC-403 07/06/10 06/26/19 - 06/26/20  41,237 
 HNC-516C 01/20/12 04/15/18 - 04/15/19  26,126 
 HNC-601 05/27/16 05/15/19 - 05/15/20  52,003 
 HP-518 03/20/12 12/11/15 - 12/11/16  46,833 
 HP-607 04/17/15 05/05/19 - 05/07/20  44,612 
 PIHL-34 10/20/05 Not in file  46,420 
 NSP3-08A 02/10/16 06/13/18 - 06/13/19  66,151 
 BOG-12A 08/15/11 01/29/18 - 01/29/19  50,932 
 GS-100 05/22/00 01/31/08 - 01/31/09  53,662 
 TKT-48A 03/30/15 01/31/03 - 01/31/04  64,862 
 TKT-57 04/18/17 Not in file  50,001 
 DHL-249 01/18/11 01/29/19 - 01/29/20  60,358 
 DHNC-460 04/08/11 07/28/11 - 07/28/12  56,000 
 DHR-364 01/18/11 09/13/10 - 09/13/11       43,148 
 
    $ 1,071,985 

 
b. For loan no. HFLP-02, insurance coverage of $71,549 is less than the loan balance of $82,159 

as of September 30, 2020. 
 

c. For three loans, aggregating $128,279, the latest amortization due date is outstanding for 
over 120 days. Letters of initial and final notices of non-payment and documentation of other 
appropriate actions were provided; however, these accounts had not been transferred to 
inactive loans as of September 30, 2020.  
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APPENDIX I, CONTINUED 
 
SECTION II - OTHER MATTERS, CONTINUED 
 
(1) Loans Receivable, Continued 
 

 Loan No. Principal Aging (Days) Last Due Date 
 
 DF-002-06 $ 30,927 3,799 05/07/10 
 BOG-12A  50,932 244 01/30/20 
 PIHL-34    46,420 853 05/31/18 
 
  $ 128,279 
 

d. For one loan outstanding for over 120 days, delinquency notice is not in file. 
 

 Loan No. Principal Aging (Days) Last Due Date 
 
 HP-555 $ 46,656 307 11/28/19 

 
e. Loan no. DFRD-11 was improperly classified as a foreclosed mortgage loan since a public sale 

of the property did not occur. 
 
We recommend that NMHC evaluate and determine proper classification of delinquent borrowers 
and commence necessary action. In addition, recommend that all mortgaged properties be 
insured. These matters were brought to management’s attention in our previous letters dated 
September 30, 2020, June 25, 2019, August 29, 2018, January 24, 2018, October 11, 2016, April 22, 
2015, June 3, 2014, June 19, 2013, September 11, 2012, October 5, 2011 and October 18, 2010. 
Item c) was brought to management’s attention in our previous letters dated September 30, 2020, 
June 25, 2019, August 29, 2018 and January 24, 2018. 
 
(2) Allowance for Doubtful Loans 
 
An analysis of NMHC’s past due loans was performed to determine the propriety of the September 
30, 2020 allowance for doubtful loans. This analysis revealed that loans, including interest, which 
are over one hundred and twenty (120) days past due amounted to $1,546,138 or 19.35% of 
$7,988,639 in total loans and interest outstanding, excluding HOME deferred loans receivable as of 
September 30, 2020. A net audit adjustment of $140,218 was proposed to correct the September 
30, 2020 allowance for loans receivable. We recommend that NMHC adhere to follow-up 
procedures, perform evaluations of loans, and develop and document corrective action. Legal 
action should be considered for those loans considered unlikely to be serviceable. This matter was 
brought to management’s attention in our previous letter dated September 30, 2020. 
 
(3) Capital Assets 
 
We noted a physical count of capital assets was not completed by NMHC in the last two fiscal 
years. We recommend that NMHC regularly perform physical counts of its capital assets in 
accordance with its policies and procedures and determine if all assets are in good working 
condition. This matter was brought to management’s attention in our previous letters dated 
September 30, 2020 and June 25, 2019. 
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APPENDIX I, CONTINUED 
 
SECTION II - OTHER MATTERS, CONTINUED 
 
(4) Nondepreciable Assets 
 
Valuations of real estate acquired through, or in lieu of, foreclosure, including other non-
depreciable assets, should be periodically performed by management and adjustments should be 
made to reflect the real estate at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less estimated 
costs to sell. At September 30, 2020, for all properties tested, NMHC did not perform an 
assessment of the carrying values of the foreclosed properties and land. We recommend that 
management report foreclosed real estate and land at the lower of the carrying amount or fair 
value less estimated costs to sell. This matter was brought to management’s attention in our 
previous letters dated September 30, 2020, June 25, 2019, August 29, 2018, January 24, 2018, 
October 11, 2016, April 22, 2015 and June 3, 2014. 
 
(5) Reserve for Loan Guaranty 
 
NMHC has existing loan guarantee and purchase agreements with certain financial institutions. As 
of September 30, 2020, NMHC’s related loan guarantees amounted to $5,755,138. Of that total, 
approximately $2,773,125 is delinquent and past due, of which NMHC has received demand 
notices of $61,112 and recorded liabilities of $1,884,659; however, NMHC is unable to determine 
if an additional reserve should be established due to limited information provided by the 
institutions. An audit adjustment of $139,191 was proposed to correct the reserve for loan 
guaranty as of September 30, 2020. We recommend that NMHC periodically assess and review the 
adequacy of the reserve for guaranteed loans. Additionally, NMHC should establish policies and 
procedures to assess the adequacy of the reserve for guaranteed loans, both past due and current. 
This matter was brought to management’s attention in our previous letter dated September 30, 
2020. 
 
(6) Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) 
 
The September 30, 2020 SEFA includes a loan guarantee of $6,796,731, which is less than the 
reconciled amount of $6,934,282, resulting in a variance of $137,551. We recommend that NMHC 
perform timely reconciliation of the SEFA. This matter was brought to management’s attention in 
our previous letters dated September 30, 2020 and June 25, 2019. 
 
Additionally, NMHC incurred typhoon repair related expenses amounting to $17,043 and $11,616 
during fiscal years 2019 and 2020, respectively, for which NMHC expects to receive 
reimbursement from the U.S. Department of Homeland Security under the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA) Public Assistance grant program but were not reported in the SEFA 
for fiscal years 2019 and 2020.  NMHC’s Project Worksheet 113 was awarded on September 2, 
2019 and Project Worksheet 117 were signed between October 23, 2019 and November 6, 2019, 
accordingly, eligible typhoon related expenses incurred by NMHC during fiscal years 2019 and 
2020 should be reported in fiscal years 2019 and 2020 SEFA.  Management did not consider the 
amount sufficiently material to the financial statements to warrant an adjustment. We 
recommend that NMHC properly monitor and account for federal program expenditures.     
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APPENDIX I, CONTINUED 
 
SECTION III - DEFINITION 
 
The definition of a deficiency is as follows: 
 
A deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and 
correct misstatements on a timely basis. A deficiency in design exists when (a) a control necessary 
to meet the control objective is missing or (b) an existing control is not properly designed so that, 
even if the control operates as designed, the control objective would not be met. A deficiency in 
operation exists when (a) a properly designed control does not operate as designed, or (b) the 
person performing the control does not possess the necessary authority or competence to 
perform the control effectively. 
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APPENDIX II 
 
MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR, AND THE OBJECTIVES AND LIMITATIONS OF, INTERNAL 
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
 
The following comments concerning management’s responsibility for internal control over 
financial reporting and the objectives and inherent limitations of internal control over financial 
reporting are adapted from auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 
NMHC’s management is responsible for the overall accuracy of the financial statements and their 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. In this regard, management is also 
responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting. 
 
Objectives of Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
 
Internal control over financial reporting is a process effected by those charged with governance, 
management, and other personnel and designed to provide reasonable assurance about the 
achievement of the entity’s objectives with regard to reliability of financial reporting, effectiveness 
and efficiency of operations, and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. Internal control 
over the safeguarding of assets against unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition may include 
controls related to financial reporting and operations objectives. Generally, controls that are 
relevant to an audit of financial statements are those that pertain to the entity’s objective of 
reliable financial reporting (i.e., the preparation of reliable financial statements that are fairly 
presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles). 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting  
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due 
to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Northern Marianas Housing Corporation: 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements  
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Northern Marianas Housing 
Corporation (NMHC), a division of the Commonwealth Development Authority (CDA), which 
comprise the statements of net position as of September 30, 2020 and 2019, and the related 
statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position and of cash flows for the years then 
ended and the related notes to the financial statements. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements  
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility  
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our qualified audit opinion. 
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Basis for Qualified Opinion 
  
Management has not adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 
68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, which was effective October 1, 2014. As 
discussed in note 2 to the financial statements, NMHC has not recorded pension expense and 
related net pension asset or liability, deferred inflows of resources and deferred outflows of 
resources as of and for the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019.  GASB Statement No. 68 
requires an employer to recognize its proportionate share of the collective pension expense, as 
well as the net pension asset or liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources. The amount by which this departure would affect the assets and deferred outflows of 
resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, net position and expenses of NMHC has 
not been determined. 
 
Qualified Opinion  
  
In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” 
paragraph, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Northern Marianas Housing Corporation as of September 30, 2020 and 
2019, and the changes in its net position and its cash flows thereof for the years then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Emphasis-of-Matter 
 
Economic uncertainties as a result of the COVID-19 coronavirus pandemic may negatively impact 
NMHC’s future financial results as described in note 12 to the financial statements. 
 
Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 
 
Other Matters  
 
As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the financial position, changes in net 
position and cash flows of NMHC.  They are not intended to present the financial position, changes 
in net position and cash flows of CDA in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 through 11 be presented to supplement the 
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, 
is required by GASB who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have 
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries 
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information 
for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and 
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures 
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
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Deloitte. 

Other Information 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise NMHC's basic financial statements. The 2020 Financial Data Schedule of 
NMHC’s Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers Program on pages 31 through 35, as required by the 
US. Department of Housing and Urban Development, is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The 2020 Financial Data 
Schedule of NMHC's Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers Program is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to 
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the 
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 2020 
Financial Data Schedule of NMHC's Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers Program is fairly stated, in 
all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 6, 
2022 on our consideration of NMHC's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and 
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide 
an opinion on the effectiveness of NMHC's internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering NMHC's internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

fl M  af /M 4 4 c  
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020 

 
 
This Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section of the Northern Marianas Housing 
Corporation’s (NMHC) financial statements for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020 is 
provided as a supplement to NMHC’s financial statements for the same period, with selected 
comparative information for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018. The MD&A 
focuses on significant financial issues, provides an overview of NMHC’s financial activities, 
identifies changes in NMHC’s financial position and identifies individual fund issues or concerns. 
This section must be read in conjunction with the basic financial statements following this 
section. 
 
This MD&A is presented in accordance with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) financial reporting model as set forth in GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial 
Statements - and Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments, as 
amended by GASB Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statements - and Management’s Discussion 
and Analysis - for State and Local Governments: Omnibus. 
 
As required under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, 
NMHC uses the accrual basis of accounting to prepare its basic financial statements. Under this 
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned and 
expenses, including depreciation, are recognized in the period in which they are incurred. All 
assets and liabilities associated with the operation of NMHC are included in the statement of net 
position. 
 
I. OVERVIEW OF NMHC 
 

Major Programs of NMHC 
 

NMHC operates the following programs: 
 
• Housing Choice Voucher Program (HCVP): 

 
Under this Program, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 
provides rental supplements to the owners of existing private housing who rent to 
qualifying individuals. NMHC processes all applicants for HCVP, places approved 
applicants in housing and pays the owner of the private housing a monthly rental 
supplement. Under the conditions of an annual contributions contract, HUD 
reimburses NMHC for the rental supplements and the administrative cost of 
managing the program, up to a per unit limit established in the annual contributions 
contract. 
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I. OVERVIEW OF NMHC, CONTINUED 
 

Major Programs of NMHC, Continued 
 

• Section 8 Housing Assistance Payment Program (HAP): 
 
The HAP Program is HUD‐funded under which NMHC receives rental subsidies 
pursuant to a HAP contract to provide housing for very low- income families, low-
income families, elderly and non-elderly disabled individuals. Under NMHC’s HAP 
contract, NMHC provides 118 housing rental units for which Section 8 assistance will 
be provided. The Program restricts eligible families to citizens of the United States and 
noncitizens of the United States who have achieved certain eligible immigration status. 
In fiscal years 2020, 2019 and 2018, NMHC received $1,371,555, $1,272,062 and 
$1,249,733, respectively, under this Program. 

 
• HOME Investment Partnerships Program (HOME) 

 
Under this Program, NMHC provides single-family housing loans and grants to eligible 
low-income families to construct new homes, acquire and rehabilitate homes or 
rehabilitate existing homes. For program year 2019 (FY 2020), the HOME allocation 
received was in the amount of $429,574. 

 
• Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

 
CDBG is a HUD-funded program provided to the Commonwealth of the Northern 
Mariana Islands (CNMI) as a U.S territory, to fund CNMI community projects that 
benefit low and moderate-income people, to prevent or eliminate slums or blight and 
to address the threat to health or safety. Community projects may include acquisition, 
relocation, demolition and rehabilitation of housing and commercial buildings, 
construction of public facilities and capital improvements, construction and 
maintenance of neighborhood centers, conversion of school buildings, public services, 
economic development and job creation/retention activities. CDBG funds can also be 
used for preservation and restoration of historic properties in low-income 
neighborhoods. 

 
• Community Development Block Grant-Disaster Recovery (CDBG-DR) 

 
CDBG-DR is a flexible HUD-funded program provided as a special appropriation by 
Congress to states, territories, counties, and municipalities to assist with long-term 
recovery, disaster relief, restoration of housing and infrastructure and economic 
revitalization in the most distressed and impacted communities following a 
Presidentially-declared disaster. It allows grantees to deploy funding to carry out a 
wide range of recovery activities and prioritizes low- and moderate- income (LMI) 
persons and geographies. 
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I. OVERVIEW OF NMHC, CONTINUED 
 

Major Programs of NMHC, Continued 
 

• Community Development Block Grant-COVID (CDBG-CV) 
 
CDBG-CV provides grants to states, insular areas, and local governments to prevent, 
prepare for, and respond to the spread of COVID-19. The CNMI received a total of two 
CDBG-CV allocations. The CDBG-CV first allocation was used for the purchase of a 
mobile clinic for the Commonwealth Healthcare Corporation (CHCC). The CHCC 
mobile clinic is designed to complement traditional care settings and extend care to 
high-risk individuals who do not access care in traditional settings due to distrust of 
traditional health care services, perceived stigma, and financial barriers, among other 
reasons.  The CDBG-CV second allocation was used to provide mortgage assistance to 
income-eligible applicants who were impacted by COVID-19.  Eligible activities include 
public services, public facilities and improvements, housing-related activities, 
activities to acquire real property, economic development activities, and general 
administrative and planning activities. 

 
• Neighborhood Stabilization Program (NSP) 

 
NSP is a HUD-funded program established by the U.S. Congress to stabilize 
communities that have suffered from housing loan foreclosures and abandonment 
through the purchase and redevelopment of foreclosed and abandoned homes and 
residential properties. No new projects were committed in FY 2020 and the Mortgage 
and Credit Division only monitors and services previously issued loans. 

 
• Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) 

 
HUD provides funds to NMHC under the ESG Program to provide financial assistance 
such as rental and utility assistance for up to 10 months to families and individuals 
who are literally homeless and at risk of being homeless. The ESG provides funding to 
NMHC for administering the program such as case management services, maintaining 
the Homeless Management Information System database software and 
administrative services. 

 
• Emergency Solutions Grant-COVID (ESG-CV) 

 
The Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act appropriated funding 
through the ESG Program “to prevent, prepare for, and respond to coronavirus, 
among individuals and families who are homeless or receiving homeless assistance 
and to support additional homeless assistance and homelessness prevention activities 
to mitigate the impacts created by coronavirus under the Emergency Solutions Grants 
program (42 U.S.C. 11371).”  The CNMI received a total of three ESG-CV allocations.  
The ESG-CV first, second and third allocations were used for rapid rehousing 
assistance, homeless prevention assistance, housing relocation and stabilization 
services, homeless management information systems, and general administrative and 
planning activities. Income-eligible applicants will receive a total of twelve months 
rental assistance, financial assistance (e.g. security deposit, utility deposit, and utility 
assistance) for the applicable assistance period. 

 
• Continuum of Care (CoC) 

 
NMHC, in collaboration with the CNMI’s Homeless Prevention Coalition (the 
Coalition), applied for funding through HUD’s CoC program. NMHC and the Coalition 
received funding in FY 2020 totaling $14,244 in planning funds.  
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I. OVERVIEW OF NMHC, CONTINUED 
 

Major Programs of NMHC, Continued 
 
• Low-Income Housing Projects in Lieu of Tax Credits (LIHTC) Program 

 
NMHC is the government agency authorized to administer the LIHTC Program in the 
CNMI. The LIHTC Program is available to owners/developers of qualifying buildings 
and projects that meet certain low-income occupancy and rent restrictions. Section 
42 of the Internal Revenue Code provides that the CNMI prepare a Qualified 
Allocation Plan (QAP) to determine housing priorities and to give preference to 
projects serving the lowest income tenants and projects obligated to serve qualified 
tenants for the longest periods. 
 
NMHC has developed a QAP for 2020 which describes the basis NMHC will use to 
allocate LIHTCs among qualified owners/developers. The tax credit allocated to the 
CNMI for 2020 was $3,217,500. The due date for the application submission is January 
31, 2020. 

 
Asset Management Division (AMD) 
 
AMD handles NMHC’s assets and provides technical and maintenance assistance to the HAP, 
HOME and CDBG programs. The goals of AMD are to maximize resources for the continuity 
of NMHC programs, expedite the process of turnaround time for vacant units, maintain full 
occupancy of Mihaville and Koblerville projects, ensuring units are safe, decent and 
sanitary, obtain high scores in Real Estate Assessment Center (REAC) inspections, develop 
systemic quarterly inspections minimizing maintenance costs, improve collection of tenant 
damage costs and provide home care counseling to tenants and consistent program 
requirements training to personnel. Additionally, AMD managed and implemented related 
repairs from damage sustained during Supertyphoon Yutu. Repair work included Mihaville 
and Koblerville projects, NMHC’s central Saipan office, and other related repairs for satellite 
properties owned or managed by NMHC. 
 
HUD helps make homes affordable through several rental assistance programs. HUD 
inspects these properties based on federal inspections standards set by HUD’s REAC. 
Multifamily properties are inspected every one to three years. How often they are 
inspected is based on their previous inspection score. Properties that score well are 
inspected less often. For the last REAC inspection in September 2021, Mihaville scored 87b 
and Koblerville scored 84b. 

 
II. OVERVIEW OF THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

This MD&A is intended to provide general explanations to NMHC’s basic financial 
statements. 
 
The Statement of Net Position presents information on NMHC’s assets and liabilities, with 
the difference between the two reported as net position. Assets and liabilities are 
presented in the order of liquidity and are classified as “current” (convertible to cash within 
one year) and “noncurrent”. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as 
useful indicators as to whether NMHC’s financial health is improving or deteriorating. 
 
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position illustrates how NMHC’s 
net position changed during the year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as 
the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related 
cash flows. Therefore, revenues and expenses are reported for some items that will only 
result in cash flows in subsequent years.  
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II. OVERVIEW OF THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED 
 
The Statement of Cash Flows conveys how NMHC’s cash was used in and provided by its 
operating, noncapital financing and investing activities during the periods reported. The net 
of these activities is added to the beginning year cash balance to reconcile to the cash 
balances at September 30, 2020 and 2019. NMHC uses the direct method of presenting 
cash flows, which includes a reconciliation of operating activities to operating income. 
These statements provide answers to such questions as where cash came from, how cash 
was used and what the change was in the cash balance during the year. 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements provide financial statement disclosures that are an 
integral part of the basic financial statements. Such disclosures are essential to a 
comprehensive understanding of the information provided in the basic financial 
statements. 

 
III. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 

• Total assets decreased by less than 1% from $22,427,674 in 2019 to $22,364,311 in 
2020 and increased by 4% from $21,473,756 in 2018 to $22,427,674 in 2019. Current 
assets of $5,018,226, $5,019,402 and $4,928,773 as of September 30, 2020, 2019 and 
2018, respectively, are primarily comprised of cash, current portion of loans 
receivable, finance lease receivables, and receivables from tenants. 
 

• Total other assets as of September 30, 2020 and 2019 was $3,375,401 and $3,264,513, 
respectively, which is an increase of 3% in restricted cash and cash equivalents. Total 
other assets as of September 30, 2019 and 2018 was $3,264,513 and $2,895,748, 
respectively, which is an increase of 13% in restricted cash and cash equivalents. 
 

• Foreclosed real estate increased by 9% from $488,698 in 2019 to $530,698 in 2020. 
This increase was due primarily to the Rural Development foreclosed units. Foreclosed 
real estate decreased by 18% from $594,771 in 2018 to $488,698 in 2019. This 
decrease was due primarily to NMHC’s execution of foreclosures during fiscal year 
2019. 

 
• NMHC’s total net position decreased by 4% from $$19,044,297 in 2019 to 

$18,307,559 in 2020 and increased by 2% from $18,590,113 in 2018 to $19,044,297 
in 2019. Net position represents NMHC’s equity after liabilities are subtracted from 
assets. Net position is divided into two major categories. The first category, net 
investment in capital assets, indicates NMHC’s equity in land, buildings and 
improvement and machinery and equipment, net of related outstanding debt. The 
second category, restricted net position, has external limitations on the way in which 
these assets can be used. 

 
• As of September 30, 2020, NMHC’s current assets of $5,018,226 exceed current 

liabilities of $3,042,601 by $1,975,625. As of September 30, 2019, NMHC’s current 
assets of $5,019,402 exceed current liabilities of $2,893,790 by $2,125,612. As of 
September 30, 2018, NMHC’s current assets of $4,928,773 exceed current liabilities 
of $2,841,131 by $2,087,642. 

 
• NMHC’s operating (loss) income during fiscal years 2020, 2019 and 2018 was 

$(658,487), $442,684 and $(278,908), respectively. 
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IV. FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 

a. Statements of Net Position 
 
     2018 
 2020 2019 $ Change % Change (As Restated) 

 
Current assets $   5,018,226 $   5,019,402 $        (1,176) -0% $   4,928,773 
Other assets 3,375,401 3,264,513 110,888 3% 2,895,748 
Capital assets, net 8,936,827 9,239,971 (303,144) -3% 9,355,806 
Foreclosed real estate 530,698 488,698 42,000 9% 594,771 
Noncurrent assets   4,503,159   4,415,090       88,069 2%   3,698,658 
 
Total assets $ 22,364,311 $ 22,427,674 $      (63,363) -0% $ 21,473,756 
 
Current liabilities $   3,042,601 $   2,893,790 $     148,811 5% $   2,841,131  
Noncurrent liabilities      539,496      351,693     187,803 53%        42,512 
 
Total liabilities   3,582,097   3,245,483     336,614 10%   2,883,643 
      
Deferred inflows of resources      474,655      137,894     336,761 244%                    - 
 
Net investment in capital assets 8,936,827 9,239,971 (303,144) -3% 9,355,806 
Restricted   9,370,732   9,804,326    (433,594) -4%   9,234,307 
 
Total net position 18,307,559 19,044,297    (736,738) -4% 18,590,113 
 
Total liabilities and net position $ 22,364,311 $ 22,427,674 $      (63,363) -0% $ 21,473,756  

 
b. Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

 
     2018 
 2020 2019 $ Change % Change (As Restated) 
 

Operating revenues $   7,341,868 $   6,844,365 $     497,503 7% $   6,241,080 
Recovery      295,924      538,158    (242,234) -45%          3,616 
 
Net operating revenues 7,637,792 7,382,523 255,269 3% 6,244,696 
Operating expenses   8,296,279   6,939,839  1,356,440 20%   6,523,604 
 
Operating (loss) income (658,487) 442,684 (1,101,171) -249% (278,908) 
Nonoperating revenues        18,954        11,500         7,454 65%        65,669 
 
Income (loss) before capital 
 contributions (639,533) 454,184 (1,093,717) -241% (213,239) 
Capital grants and contributions       (97,205)           -              (97,205) 100%   1,359,489  
 
Change in net position (736,738) 454,184 (1,190,922) -262% 1,146,250 
 
Net position - beginning, 
 as restated 19,044,297 18,590,113     454,184 2% 17,443,863 
 
Net position - ending $ 18,307,559 $ 19,044,297 $    (736,738) -4% $ 18,590,113 

 
c. Statements of Cash Flows 

 
 2020 2019 $ Change % Change 2018 

Cash flows from operating 
 activities $     (210,747) $     (90,069) $    (120,678) 134% $    456,952 
Cash flows from capital and 
 related financing activities 200,897 391,187 (190,290) -49% 226,258 
Cash flows from investing 
 activities       (91,934)   (361,672)     269,738 -75%    336,736 
  
Net (decrease) increase in cash 
 and cash equivalents (101,784) (60,554) (41,230) 68% 1,019,946 
 
Cash and cash equivalents 
 at beginning of year   2,274,109 2,334,663      (60,554) -3% 1,314,717 
 
Cash and cash equivalents 
 at end of year $   2,172,325 $ 2,274,109 $    (101,784) -4% $ 2,334,663 
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IV. FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, CONTINUED 
 

d. Capital Assets 
 
At September 30, 2020, 2019 and 2018, NMHC had $8,936,827, $9,239,971 and 
$9,355,806, respectively, net investment in capital assets, net of depreciation where 
applicable. This represents a net decrease of $303,144 or 3% during fiscal year 2020, 
a net decrease of $115,835 or 1% during fiscal year 2019 and a net increase of 
$1,311,290 or 16% during fiscal year 2018. 

 
 2020 2019 2018 
Depreciable capital assets, 
 net of accumulated depreciation $ 1,648,645 $    592,300 $    708,135 
Nondepreciable capital assets 7,288,182 8,647,671 8,647,671 

 
 $ 8,936,827 $ 9,239,971 $ 9,355,806 

 
See notes 2 and 7 to the financial statements for more detailed information on 
NMHC’s capital assets and changes therein. 

 
V. ECONOMIC FACTORS AFFECTING NMHC’S FUTURE 
 

Economic uncertainties as a result of the COVID-19 coronavirus pandemic may negatively 
impact NMHC’s future financial results. See note 12 to the financial statements for more 
detailed information. 
 
NMHC’s program and operating revenues are primarily provided by the U.S federal 
government through operating subsidies, Section 8 HAP payments and other minor grants. 
The operating subsidy for 2019 was $5,953,234. Based on the CNMI’s annual awards and 
the contract with HUD, NMHC anticipates that HUD assistance programs will continue into 
the foreseeable future. 
 
Nevertheless, U.S. Congress continues to increase Section 8 housing assistance funding. The 
increase in funding impacts NMHC’s operating capabilities and financial position. During 
2019, NMHC received $1,272,062 in federal funds for its housing. Such assistance has 
typically come with use restrictions and generally limits NMHC’s ability to encumber or 
leverage debt financing against HUD properties in its asset portfolio. 
 
On September 24, 2020, Executive Order 2020-21 established NMHC as the successor 
agency to the former Mariana Islands Housing Authority pursuant to Public Law 20-87 and 
rescinded NMHC’s assignment to the Commonwealth Development Authority (CDA). The 
operations of NMHC shall continue under the direction and control of the CDA Board of 
Directors until all positions of the NMHC Board of Directors are appointed and confirmed. 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis for the year ended September 30, 2019 is set forth 
in NMHC’s report on the audit of financial statements, which is dated September 30, 2020. 
That Discussion and Analysis explains the major factors impacting the 2019 financial 
statements and can be viewed at the Office of the Public Auditor’s website at 
www.opacnmi.com.  

  

http://www.opacnmi.com/
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VI. REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 
 

This financial report is designed to provide the reader with a general overview of NMHC’s 
finances and to demonstrate NMHC’s financial accountability over its resources. Questions 
concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial 
information should be addressed to: 
 
Jesse S. Palacios Corporate Director 
Northern Marianas Housing Corporation 
P.O. Box 500514 Saipan, MP 96950-0514 
Telephone: (670) 234-6866/9447 
Facsimile: (670) 234-9021/233-6870 
Email: jspalacios@nmhcgov.net  

mailto:jspalacios@nmhcgov.net


2020 2019
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 2,172,325$      2,274,109$      
Receivables:

Current portion of loans receivable, net 1,442,376        1,336,607        
Current portion of finance lease receivable 12,343              17,527              
Rent, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $652,259 and 

$572,299 at September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. 329,289            314,084            
Accrued interest, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $47,888

and $49,558 at September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively 83,827              32,022              
Due from grantor - Disaster Recovery Grant 474,655            137,894            
Employees 8,086                7,714                
Other 495,325            899,445            

Total current assets 5,018,226        5,019,402        

Other assets:
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted 3,375,401        3,264,513        

Noncurrent assets:
Loans receivable, net of current portion 3,727,585        3,577,132        
Finance lease receivable, net of current portion 775,574            837,958            
Depreciable capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 1,648,645        592,300            
Nondepreciable capital assets 7,288,182        8,647,671        
Foreclosed real estate 530,698            488,698            

Total noncurrent assets 13,970,684      14,143,759      

22,364,311$    22,427,674$    

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 735,938$          718,258$          
Due to grantor agency 282,813            522,169            
Reserve for loan guaranty 2,023,850        1,653,363        

Total current liabilities 3,042,601        2,893,790        

Unearned revenues 539,496            351,693            

Total liabilities 3,582,097        3,245,483        

Deferred inflows of resources:
Unearned revenues 474,655            137,894            

Total deferred inflows of resources 474,655            137,894            

Contingencies

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 8,936,827        9,239,971        
Restricted 9,370,732        9,804,326        

Total net position 18,307,559      19,044,297      

22,364,311$    22,427,674$    

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

ASSETS

NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION

Statements of Net Position
September 30, 2020 and 2019

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION
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2020 2019
Operating revenues:

Section 8 income:
Federal housing assistance rentals 4,758,404$      4,453,610$      
Tenant share 227,506            307,428            

Community Development Block Grants (CDBG) Program 1,521,428         971,886            
Interest and fees on loans 261,523            131,872            
Recovery from provision for foreclosed properties 129,847            164,165            
Low Income Housing Tax Credit 94,711              156,041            
Emergency Shelter Grants (ESG) Program 82,432              97,220              
HOME Investment Partnership Program Grant 71,337              332,311            
Housing rental 48,209              36,513              
HOME Investment Partnership Grant program income 35,906              98,348              
Other 110,565            94,971              

7,341,868         6,844,365         
Recovery 295,924            538,158            

Net operating revenues 7,637,792         7,382,523         

Operating expenses:
Section 8 rental 2,674,341         2,482,947         
CDBG Program 1,518,783         971,886            
HOME Investment Partnership Program Grant 107,243            430,267            
ESG Program 86,494              97,220              
Continuum of Care Program 3,478                 -                     
HOME Investment Partnership Grant program income -                     392                    
Operations:

Salaries and wages 1,369,053         1,175,637         
Employee benefits 469,404            269,019            
Repairs and maintenance 442,619            384,446            
Utilities 375,386            295,274            
Provision for loan guaranty 370,487            82,124              
Depreciation 308,046            128,103            
Professional fees 175,257            71,835              
Supplies 41,387              5,031                 
Travel 11,394              120,195            
Office rent 8,836                 9,656                 
Other 334,071            415,807            

Total operating expenses 8,296,279         6,939,839         

Operating (loss) income (658,487)           442,684            

Nonoperating revenues:
Litigation judgment -                     4,407                 
Interest income 18,954              7,093                 

Total nonoperating revenues 18,954              11,500              

(Loss) income before capital contributions (639,533)           454,184            

Capital grants and contributions:
HOME Investment Partnership Program Grant (34,318)             
NSP Grant (62,887)             -                     

(97,205)             -                     

Change in net position (736,738)           454,184            

Net position - beginning 19,044,297      18,590,113      

Net position - ending 18,307,559$    19,044,297$    

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Years Ended September 30, 2020 and 2019
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2020 2019
Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from interest and fees on loans receivable 211,388$        193,558$        
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (1,301,007)     (720,898)         
Cash received from customers 453,062          337,793          
Cash payments to employees for services (1,573,952)     (1,520,074)     
Cash received from HCV Program CARES Act 159,496          -                   
Cash received from other federal grant awards 6,230,151       5,949,182       
Cash payments from federal grant awards (4,389,885)     (4,329,630)     

Net cash used for operating activities (210,747)         (90,069)           

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition of capital assets (4,902)             (12,268)           
Net proceeds from loans receivable 177,452          48,310            
Proceeds from sale of foreclosed real estate 28,347            350,738          
Interest received from litigation judgment -                   4,407               

Net cash provided by capital and related financing activities 200,897          391,187          

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of restricted cash and cash equivalents (110,888)         (368,765)         
Interest received 18,954            7,093               

Net cash used for investing activities (91,934)           (361,672)         

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (101,784)         (60,554)           
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2,274,109       2,334,663       

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 2,172,325$    2,274,109$    

Reconciliation of operating (loss) income to net cash used for operating activities:
Operating (loss) income (658,487)$       442,684$        
Adjustments to reconcile operating (loss) income to net cash used for operating activities:

Provision for loan guaranty 370,487          82,124            
Depreciation 308,046          128,103          
Recovery from doubtful accounts (295,924)         (538,158)         
Recovery from foreclosed properties (129,847)         (164,165)         
Capital grants and contributions (97,205)           -                   
(Increase) decrease in assets:

Receivables:
Finance lease 67,568            (116,458)         
Rent (95,125)           (133,062)         
Employees (372)                 (7,640)             
Accrued interest (50,135)           61,686            
Other 404,120          184,282          

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 17,680            (25,272)           
Due to grantor agency (239,356)         (4,193)             
Unearned revenues 187,803          -                   

Net cash used for operating activities (210,747)$       (90,069)$         

Supplemental disclosure of noncash capital and related financing activities:
Recognition of loans receivable:

Noncash increase in loans receivable 43,373$          447,075$        
Noncash increase in allowance for doubtful accounts (43,373)           -                   
Noncash increase in unearned revenues -                   (447,075)         

-$                 -$                 
Recognition of foreclosed properties:

Noncash (decrease) increase in foreclosed properties (59,500)$         80,500$          
Noncash increase (decrease) in loans receivable 59,500            (126,574)         
Noncash increase in finance lease receivable -                   46,074            

-$                 -$                 
Recognition of due from grantor - Disaster Recovery Grant:

Noncash increase in due from grantor - Disaster Recovery Grant 336,761$        -$                 
Noncash increase in deferred inflows of resources - unearned revenues (336,761)         -                   

-$                 -$                 

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION

Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended September 30, 2020 and 2019
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NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 2020 and 2019 

 
 
(1) Reporting Entity 
 

The Northern Marianas Housing Corporation (NMHC), a division of the Commonwealth 
Development Authority (CDA), formerly the Mariana Islands Housing Authority (MIHA), was 
established to assist in the development and administration of low-cost residential housing 
in the Northern Mariana Islands.  MIHA was empowered to provide low cost residential 
housing and employment through the construction, maintenance, and repair of such 
housing.  On October 20, 1994, Executive Order 94-3 became effective which abolished MIHA 
and all of its functions, assets and liabilities were transferred to CDA.  CDA established NMHC 
as a division to account for the operations, assets and liabilities of MIHA.  On September 24, 
2020, the Governor of the CNMI signed Executive Order 2020-21 to rescind Section 407 of 
Executive Order 94-3, pertaining to the functions of NMHC and its assignment to CDA and 
allowing for NMHC to remain the successor agency to MIHA pursuant to Public Law 20-87. 
The operations of NMHC shall continue under the direction and control of the CDA Board of 
Directors until all positions of the NMHC Board of Directors are appointed and confirmed.  
NMHC is governed by a seven-member Board of Directors appointed by the Board of 
Directors of CDA.  The purpose and functions of NMHC are as follows: 
 
• To administer direct loans to qualified individuals for housing construction; 
• To participate as guarantor or trustee in housing loan programs; 
• To develop and construct rental housing; 
• To construct and/or administer various other Federal and local residential and housing 

projects; 
• To participate in projects subsidized by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 

Development (HUD).  Upon completion of the projects, the residential units are rented 
to qualifying families and individuals; and 

• To provide grant funding through the Community Development Block Grants/Special 
Purpose Grants/Insular Area program for community planning and development 
projects that will benefit low-moderate income communities. 

 
As such, NMHC considers all its net position, except net position invested in capital assets, to 
be restricted for such purposes. 

 
 
(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

The accounting policies of NMHC conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America, as applicable to governmental entities, specifically proprietary 
funds. NMHC utilizes the flow of economic resources measurement focus. The Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing 
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.   

 
Basis of Accounting 
 
All proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus.  
With this measurement focus, all assets and liabilities associated with the operation of this 
fund are included on the statements of net position.  Proprietary fund operating statements 
present increases (e.g. revenues) and decreases (e.g. expenses) in net position.  The accrual 
basis of accounting is utilized by proprietary funds.  Under this method, revenues are 
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. 
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NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 2020 and 2019 

 
 
(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 
 

Budgets 
 
In accordance with Public Law 3-68, the Planning and Budgeting Act of 1983, NMHC submits 
an annual budget to the CNMI Office of the Governor. 

 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 
GASB Statement No. 40 addresses common deposit risks related to credit risk and 
concentration of credit risk.  GASB Statement No. 40 also requires disclosure of formal 
policies related to deposit risks. NMHC does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit 
risk. 

 
For purposes of the statements of net position and cash flows, cash and cash equivalents is 
defined as cash held in demand deposits and savings. At September 30, 2020 and 2019, total 
unrestricted cash and cash equivalents were $2,172,325 and $2,274,109, respectively, and 
the corresponding bank balances were $2,720,539 and $2,467,515, respectively, which are 
maintained in financial institutions subject to Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).  
CNMI law does not require component units to collateralize their bank accounts; however, 
NMHC elects to collateralize deposits with U.S. government obligations at the rate of 100%. 

 
Prepaid Expenses 

 
Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit future periods are recorded as 
prepaid expenses. 

 
Capital Assets 

 
Capital assets are recorded at cost.  Depreciation is provided by using the straight-line 
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.  Current policy is to capitalize items in 
excess of $5,000. 

 
Long-lived assets for which management has committed to a plan to dispose of the assets, 
whether by sale or abandonment, are reported at the lower of carrying amount or fair value 
less costs to sell. 

 
Land 
 
Land is recorded at fair market value at the date of acquisition.  Valuations are periodically 
performed by management and adjustments are made to reflect the land at the lower of the 
carrying amount or fair market value.  The carrying amount of the land is evaluated on an 
annual basis to determine impairment by estimating the recoverable value.  Recoverable 
value is based on management’s historical knowledge and changes in market conditions 
from the time of valuation.  An impairment loss is recognized in the period in which it arises.   
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Notes to Financial Statements 
  September 30, 2020 and 2019 
 
 
(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 
 

Foreclosed Real Estate 
 
Real estate properties acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure are to be sold and are 
initially recorded at fair value at the date of foreclosure less estimated selling costs 
establishing a new cost basis.  Valuations are periodically performed by management and 
adjustments are made to reflect the real estate at the lower of the carrying amount or fair 
value less estimated costs to sell.  Operating expenses or income, reductions in estimated 
values, and gains or losses on disposition of such properties are charged to current 
operations. 

 
Loans Receivable, Interest Receivable and Allowance for Loan Losses 

 
Loans and interest receivable are stated at the amount of unpaid principal and interest, 
reduced by an allowance for loan losses.  Interest on loans is calculated by using the simple 
interest method on daily balances of the principal amount outstanding.  The allowance for 
loan losses is established through a provision for doubtful accounts charged to expense.  
Loans are charged against the allowance for loan losses when management believes that the 
collection of the principal is unlikely.  The allowance is an amount that management believes 
will be adequate to absorb possible losses on existing loans that may be uncollectible, based 
on evaluations of the collectability of loans and prior loan loss experience.  The evaluations 
take into consideration such factors as changes in the nature and volume of the loan 
portfolio, overall portfolio quality, review of specific problem loans and current economic 
conditions that may affect the borrowers’ ability to pay. 

 
Other Receivable 
 
U.S. Department of Agriculture Rural Development (USDA RD) defaulted loans receivable is 
recorded at its purchase price or the real property’s fair value less cost to sell.  Other 
receivables are stated at the amount of unpaid balances. 

 
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 
As described in note 1, NMHC administers various Federal and local residential and housing 
projects.  In administering these programs, NMHC is required to maintain certain funds as 
collateral or in accounts which are restricted for specific purposes. 

 
Revenue Recognition 
 
Operating revenues include all direct revenues such as interest and fees on loans, 
administrative fee, federal grants and interest on investments. 

 
Interest on loans is calculated by using the simple interest method on daily balances of the 
principal amount outstanding.  Interest on loans is accrued and credited to income based on 
the principal amount outstanding for both performing and nonperforming loans.  Due to 
current confines of NMHC’s system, interest on nonperforming loans is accrued and credited 
to income; however, a bad debt expense is recognized for the amount of interest deemed 
uncollectible.  NMHC is currently working to be able to prospectively cease recognition of 
interest income on nonperforming loans. 
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(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 
 

Revenue Recognition, Continued 
 

Administrative fee revenue represents 75% of the 5% tax credit reserved for approved 
applicants of the Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC). NMHC is the government agency 
authorized to administer the LIHTC program in the CNMI. The LIHTC program is available to 
owners/developers of qualifying buildings and projects that meet certain low-income 
occupancy and rent restrictions. NMHC recorded LIHTC administrative fee revenue of 
$94,711 and $156,041 as of September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. 
 
Federal grant revenues are recognized when allowable expenses are incurred.  Non-
operating revenues primarily result from capital and financing activities and from forgiveness 
of debt. 

 
Unearned Revenues 
 
Unearned revenues are recognized when resource is received prior to being earned and 
relates to Housing Choice Voucher CARES Act funding from HUD of $159,496 as of 
September 30, 2020, which pertains to federal award money received before the qualifying 
expenditure is made, and recorded capital asset under the Community Development Block 
Grant program administered by NMHC of $380,000 and $351,693 as of September 30, 2020 
and 2019, respectively. 

 
 Compensated Absences 
 
 Vested or accumulated vacation leave is recorded as benefits accrue to employees.  No 

liability is recorded for nonvesting accumulating rights to receive sick pay benefits.    
Accumulated sick pay benefits as of September 30, 2020 and 2019 was $526,932 and 
$397,940, respectively. 

 
 Deferred Inflows of Resources 
 
 Deferred inflows of resources represent unavailable revenue from the Community 

Development Block Grant Disaster Recovery (CDBG-DR) program, which is revenue that does 
not meet the “available” criterion for revenue recognition under the modified accrual basis 
of accounting. NMHC recorded deferred inflows of resources of $474,655 and $137,894 as of 
September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. 

 
 Litigation Judgment 
 

On November 24, 2012, a binding and unappealable judgment was issued on a lawsuit filed 
against the architects, the construction manager and the contractor for deficiencies in the 
design and construction of homes in the Tottotville Subdivision, which awarded NMHC 
$694,851 in damages. NMHC recorded litigation judgment revenue of $-0- and $4,407 during 
the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. 
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(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 
 
 Retirement Plan 
 

NMHC contributed to the Northern Mariana Islands Retirement Fund’s (NMIRF) defined 
benefit plan (DB Plan), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer plan established and now 
administered by the CNMI.  On September 30, 2013, the DB Plan was transferred to the 
Northern Mariana Islands Settlement Fund (NMISF).  NMHC also contributes to a defined 
contribution plan (DC Plan). 

 
On August 30, 2012, Public Law 17-79 was enacted to amend Title I of the Commonwealth 
Code to include the intent of the CNMI to participate in the retirement insurance system 
established by Title II of the U.S. Federal Insurance Contributions Act (FICA) and for 
participation to be extended to elected officials, employees, political subdivisions and 
instrumentalities of the CNMI. On September 11, 2012, Public Law 17-82 CNMI Pension 
Reform Recovery Act of 2012 was enacted.  Unless specifically exempted or authorized by 
federal law, Public Law 17-82 provides for mandatory membership of CNMI Government 
employees and elected officials in the U.S. Social Security system and authorizes employees, 
who elect, to buy quarters of service in the U.S. Social Security system from contributions 
made to the DB Plan.  In addition, Public Law 17-82 provides active and inactive DB Plan 
members the option to voluntarily terminate membership in the DB Plan, withdraw or roll 
over contributions to the DC Plan and to participate in the U.S. Social Security system 
without termination of employment or penalty.  Further, Public Law 17-82 allows the CNMI 
Government to continue remitting its 4% employer contribution to the DC Plan unless the 
employee ceases to contribute the employee share. 

 
On March 11, 2013, Public Law 18-02 was enacted to amend Public Law 17-82 to clarify those 
provisions necessary to expedite the refunds and to prevent any further frustration of the 
process.  Included in the public law is the amendment of Section 203(a) of Title 1, Division 8, 
Part 3, which states that the government obligation to withhold and remit the employee’s 
portion to the employee’s defined account shall continue with respect to employees who do 
not terminate membership in the DB Plan. All active NMHC employees voluntarily 
terminated membership in the DB Plan. 

 
Defined Contribution Plan (DC Plan) 
 
On June 16, 2006, Public Law No. 15-13 was enacted which created the DC Plan, a multi-
employer pension plan and is the single retirement program for all employees whose first 
time CNMI government employment commences on or after January 1, 2007.   Each member 
of the DC Plan is required to contribute to the member’s individual account an amount equal 
to 10% of the member’s compensation.  NMHC is required to contribute to each member’s 
individual account an amount equal to 4% of the member’s compensation. NMHC’s recorded 
DC contributions for the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019 were $20,121 and 
$20,890, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. 

 
Members of the DC Plan, who have completed five years of government service, have a 
vested balance of 100% of both member and employer contributions plus any earnings 
thereon. 
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(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 
 

Net Position 
 
NMHC’s net position is classified as follows: 

 
• Net investment in capital assets; capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation. 
 
• Restricted: 

 
Nonexpendable - Net position subject to externally imposed stipulations that NMHC 
maintain them permanently.  At September 30, 2020 and 2019, NMHC does not have 
nonexpendable net position. 

 
Expendable - Net position whose use by NMHC is subject to externally imposed 
stipulations that can be fulfilled by actions of NMHC pursuant to those stipulations or 
that expire by the passage of time.  As described in note 1, NMHC considers all assets, 
except net investment in capital assets, to be restricted for economic development. 
NMHC’s restricted expendable net position pertains to HUD and local funds. 

 
• Unrestricted; net position that is not subject to externally imposed stipulations.  As 

NMHC considers all assets, except net investment in capital assets, to be restricted for 
economic development, NMHC does not have unrestricted net position of September 
30, 2020 and 2019. 

 
GASB Statement No. 68 
 
In June 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Pensions and in November 2013, GASB issued Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for 
Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date - an amendment of GASB 
Statement No. 68, which revised and established new financial reporting requirements for 
most governments that provided their employees with pension benefits through plans that 
are administered through trusts. Management has determined that the CNMI is legally 
responsible for making contributions to NMISF as a non-employer entity and that net 
pension obligations are allocated in total to the CNMI.  Management acknowledges the 
requirement to recognize revenue in an amount equal to the non-employer contributing 
entities’ (CNMI) total proportionate share of the collective pension expense that is 
associated with NMHC.  NMHC has not recorded related revenues and pension expense for 
the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019 as amounts were not available. 

 
New Accounting Standards 

 
During the year ended September 30, 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 95, Postponement of 
the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance, which postpones the effective dates of 
GASB Statement No.’s 84, 89, 90, 91, 92 and 93 by one year and GASB Statement No. 87 by 
18 months; however, earlier application of the provisions addressed in GASB Statement No. 
95 is encouraged and is permitted to the extent specified in each pronouncement as 
originally issued.  In accordance with GASB Statement No. 95, management has elected to 
postpone implementation of these statements. 
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(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 
 

New Accounting Standards, Continued 
 

In January 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. This Statement is to 
improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and 
financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported.  The requirements 
of this Statement will enhance consistency and comparability by (1) establishing specific 
criteria for identifying activities that should be reported as fiduciary activities and (2) 
clarifying whether and how business-type activities should report their fiduciary activities.  
Management does not believe that this Statement, upon implementation, will have a 
material effect on the financial statements.  In accordance with GASB Statement No. 95, 
GASB Statement No. 84 will be effective for fiscal year ending September 30, 2021. 

 
In June 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases.  The objective of this Statement is to 
better meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and 
financial reporting for leases by governments.  This Statement increases the usefulness of 
governments’ financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and 
liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and as inflows of 
resources or outflows of resources recognized based on the payment provisions of the 
contract.  Management believes that this Statement, upon implementation, will have a 
material effect on the financial statements.  In accordance with GASB Statement No. 95, 
GASB Statement No. 87 will be effective for fiscal year ending September 30, 2022. 

 
In June 2018, GASB issued Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before the 
End of a Construction Period.  The objectives of this Statement are (1) to enhance the 
relevance and comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing 
for a reporting period and (2) to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the end 
of a construction period.  Management does not believe that this Statement, upon 
implementation, will have a material effect on the financial statements.  In accordance with 
GASB Statement No. 95, GASB Statement No. 89 will be effective for fiscal year ending 
September 30, 2022. 

 
In March 2018, GASB issued Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests - An Amendment of 
GASB Statements No. 14 and 61.  The primary objectives of this Statement are to improve 
the consistency and comparability of reporting a government’s majority equity interest in a 
legally separate organization and to improve the relevance of financial statement 
information for certain component units.  It defines a majority equity interest and specifies 
that a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization should be reported as an 
investment if a government’s holding of the equity interest meets the definition of an 
investment.  A majority equity interest that meets the definition of an investment should be 
measured using the equity method, unless it is held by a special-purpose government 
engaged only in fiduciary activities, a fiduciary fund, or an endowment (including permanent 
and term endowments) or permanent fund.  Those governments and funds should measure 
the majority equity interest at fair value.  Management does not believe that this Statement, 
upon implementation, will have a material effect on the financial statements.  In accordance 
with GASB Statement No. 95, GASB Statement No. 90 will be effective for fiscal year ending 
September 30, 2021. 

 
 
 
 
 

- 21 - 



NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 2020 and 2019 

 
 
(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 
 

New Accounting Standards, Continued 
 

In May 2019, GASB issued Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations.  The primary 
objectives of this Statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt 
obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments 
extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) 
related note disclosures.  This Statement achieves those objectives by clarifying the existing 
definition of a conduit debt obligation; establishing that a conduit debt obligation is not a 
liability of the issuer; establishing standards for accounting and financial reporting of 
additional commitments and voluntary commitments extended by issuers and arrangements 
associated with conduit debt obligations; and improving required note disclosures.  
Management does not believe that this Statement, upon implementation, will have a 
material effect on the financial statements.  In accordance with GASB Statement No. 95, 
GASB Statement No. 91 will be effective for fiscal year ending September 30, 2023. 

 
In January 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020.  The objectives of this 
Statement are to enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to 
improve the consistency of authoritative literature by addressing practice issues that have 
been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements.  This 
Statement addresses a variety of topics and includes specific provisions about the effective 
date of Statement No. 87, Leases, and Implementation Guide No. 2019-3, Leases, for interim 
financial reports, the terminology used to refer to derivative instruments and the 
applicability of certain requirements of Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, to 
postemployment benefits.  The requirements related to the effective date of GASB 
Statement No. 87 and Implementation Guide 2019-3, reissuance recoveries and terminology 
used to refer to derivative instruments are effective upon issuance.  The remaining 
requirements of GASB Statement No. 92 are effective for the fiscal year ending September 
30, 2022. 
 
In March 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates.  The 
primary objective of this Statement is to address those and other accounting and financial 
reporting implications of the replacement of an IBOR.  Management does not believe that 
this Statement, upon implementation, will have a material effect on the financial statements.  
In accordance with GASB Statement No. 95, GASB Statement No. 93 will be effective for 
fiscal year ending September 30, 2022. 

 
In March 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships 
and Availability Payment Arrangements.  The primary objective of this Statement is to 
improve financial reporting by addressing issues related to public-private and public-public 
partnership arrangements.  This Statement also provides guidance for accounting and 
financial reporting for availability payment arrangements.  Management does not believe 
that this Statement, upon implementation, will have a material effect on the financial 
statements.  GASB Statement No. 94 will be effective for fiscal year ending September 30, 
2023. 
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(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 
 

New Accounting Standards, Continued 
 

In May 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology 
Arrangements.  This Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting 
for subscription-based information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end 
users (governments).  This Statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results 
in a right-to-use subscription asset - an intangible asset - and a corresponding subscription 
liability; (3) provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, 
including implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures regarding a 
SBITA.  Management does not believe that this Statement, upon implementation, will have a 
material effect on the financial statements.  GASB Statement No. 96 will be effective for 
fiscal year ending September 30, 2023. 

 
In June 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred 
Compensation Plans - an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a 
supersession of GASB Statement No. 32.  The primary objectives of this Statement are to (1) 
increase consistency and comparability related to the reporting of fiduciary component units 
in circumstances in which a potential component unit does not have a governing board and 
the primary government performs the duties that a governing board typically would 
perform; (2) mitigate costs associated with the reporting of certain defined contribution 
pension plans, defined contribution other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans, and 
employee benefit plans other than pension plans or OPEB plans (other employee benefit 
plans) as fiduciary component units in fiduciary fund financial statements; and (3) enhance 
the relevance, consistency, and comparability of the accounting and financial reporting for 
Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457 deferred compensation plans (Section 457 plans) 
that meet the definition of a pension plan and for benefits provided through those plans.  
Management does not believe that this Statement, upon implementation, will have a 
material effect on the financial statements.  GASB Statement No. 97 will be effective for 
fiscal year ending September 30, 2022. 

 
Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments 
 
In the ordinary course of business, NMHC has entered into off-balance sheet financial 
instruments consisting of commitments to extend credit and loan guarantees.  Such financial 
instruments are recorded in the financial statements when they become payable. 

 
Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 
 
Reclassification 
 
Certain 2019 balances in the accompanying financial statements have been reclassified to 
conform to the 2020 presentation. 
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(3) Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 
  

NMHC maintains depository accounts with financial institutions in the CNMI which are 
restricted for various purposes, as detailed below.  At September 30, 2020 and 2019, 
restricted cash and cash equivalents consist of amounts held in demand deposit accounts 
which are maintained in financial institutions subject to FDIC.  CNMI law does not require 
component units to collateralize their bank accounts; however, NMHC elects to collateralize 
restricted deposits of $3,372,279 and $3,261,012 with U.S. government obligations at the 
rate of 100% at September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. 

 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents: 
 2020 2019 
Escrow and savings accounts maintained as a guarantee for any 
deficiency in foreclosure proceeds related to USDA RD loans $ 1,365,803 $ 1,364,310 

 
Savings account restricted for Koblerville Section 8 project repairs 
and maintenance expenses, per contract with HUD  230,797  230,625 
 
Savings account maintained as a guarantee of housing loans made 
by a CNMI savings and loan  104  181 

 
Checking account maintained for Section 8 Housing Choice 
Vouchers Program expenses  652,131  722,949 
 
Other depository accounts reserved for various purposes  1,126,566     946,448 

 
 $ 3,375,401 $ 3,264,513 
 
(4) Loans Receivable 

 
NMHC makes loans for the specific purpose of providing residents of the Northern Mariana 
Islands with approved low-cost housing.  The loans have terms from ten to thirty-three years 
in duration at interest rates of 4.5% to 12%.  Loans are restricted to ninety percent (90%) of 
the appraised value of the property or the purchase price, whichever is lower. For 
construction loans, the purchase price of the property is defined as the value of the land plus 
the estimated cost of construction. 

 
Major classifications of economic development loans as of September 30, 2020 and 2019 are 
as follows: 
 2020 2019 

 
HOME Investment Partnerships Act grant $ 7,459,514 $ 7,576,321 
Direct family home loans  3,152,794  2,965,359 
Neighborhood Stabilization Program (NSP) grant  981,383  991,647 
General   478,773  427,371 
Section 8  436,908  450,717 
Tinian turnkey  400,659  420,219 
Housing construction  247,202  254,790 
Veterans Aid   -        145,388  
Housing preservation grant          87,542          87,542 
 
Loan principal receivable  13,244,775  13,319,354 
Less allowance for loan losses   (8,074,814)   (8,405,615) 
 
Net loans receivable $   5,169,961 $   4,913,739 
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(4) Loans Receivable, Continued 
 

Delinquent loans referred to legal counsel for collection totaled $1,759,987 and $1,757,620 
as of September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. 

 
Maturities of the above principal balances subsequent to September 30, 2020 and 2019 will 
be as follows: 
 2020 2019 

 
Fully matured and others $ 1,931,502 $ 1,984,177 
1 - 6 months  751,301  618,147 
7 - 18 months  1,012,378  1,020,729 
19 months - 3 years  1,011,668  1,169,605 
After 3 years    8,537,926    8,526,696 
 
 $ 13,244,775 $ 13,319,354 
 
Allowance for Loan Losses 
 
An analysis of the change in the allowance for loan losses is as follows: 
 
 2020 2019 

 
Balance - beginning of year $ 8,405,615 $ 8,914,655 
Recovery      (330,801)      (509,040) 
 
Balance - end of year $   8,074,814 $   8,405,615 

 
 
(5) Finance Leases 
 

NMHC leases certain foreclosed real estate properties for periods ranging from fifteen to 
thirty years bearing interest at fixed rates ranging from 2% to 6% and with options to 
purchase at $100 plus the outstanding lease receivable and related accrued interest. Finance 
lease income for the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019 amounted to $48,209 and 
$36,513, respectively. Future minimum lease rentals under these arrangements as of 
September 30, 2020 and 2019, are as follows: 

 
 Year ending Minimum Minimum  Net   

 September 30, Lease Rentals Lease Income 2020 2019 
  
 2020 $ -       $ -       $ -       $ 17,527 
 2021  54,014  41,671  12,343  22,619 
 2022  62,272  41,979  20,293  23,905  
 2023  64,302  40,874  23,428  25,422  
 2024  65,220  39,702  25,518  26,810  
 2025  62,236  37,717  24,519  -        
 Thereafter  1,065,183     383,367     681,816     739,202 
 
  $ 1,373,227 $    585,310  787,917  855,485 

 
Less current portion     (12,343)    (17,527) 
 
Noncurrent portion $    775,574 $    837,958  
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(6) Due from Grantor - Disaster Recovery Grant 
 

On October 24, through 25, 2018, the CNMI was devastated by Super Typhoon Yutu.  During 
the year ended September 30, 2019, NMHC is developing a CNMI’s Action Plan for the CDBG-
DR program application to be submitted to HUD. CDBG-DR program provides funds to be 
used for necessary expenses related to disaster relief, long-term recovery, and restoration of 
infrastructure, housing, and economic revitalization.  NMHC recorded receivable from 
grantor and unearned revenue of $474,655 and $137,894 as of September 30, 2020 and 
2019, respectively, for administrative expenses incurred. 

 
 
(7) Other Receivables 

 
A summary of other receivables as of September 30, 2020 and 2019 is as follows: 

 
 2020 2019 
 
Defaulted loans $ 473,900 $ 895,300 
Other       21,425          4,145 
 
 $    495,325 $    899,445 
 
As of September 30, 2020 and 2019, allowance for doubtful accounts for other receivables is 
$-0-. 
 
On October 18, 2016, NMHC entered into a settlement agreement with USDA RD for 
$1,871,000 to pay forty-eight seriously delinquent accounts in full with a principal amount of 
$4,097,440, which was paid on October 24, 2016. USDA RD assigned and transferred all 
interest under the delinquent loans and real estate deeds of trust. NMHC wrote-off other 
loans receivable and the attendant allowance for doubtful accounts of $4,104,170 as of 
September 30, 2017. NMHC recorded USDA RD defaulted loans receivable of $1,871,000 as 
of September 30, 2017 to recognize purchased loans at the lower of each loan’s purchase 
price or the real property’s fair value less costs to sell. To recover costs and gain additional 
revenue, NMHC intends to sell each real property under a deed of trust to third parties and 
thus has recorded the amounts as current other receivables. 

 
 
(8) Capital Assets 
 

Capital assets consist of the following at September 30, 2020 and 2019: 
 

  Balance at   Balance at 
 Estimated October  Transfers/ September 
 Useful Lives 1, 2019 Additions Deletions 30, 2020 
Nondepreciable capital assets: 
 Land  $ 7,288,182 $ -       $  $ 7,288,182 
 Construction in progress      1,359,489             -        (1,359,489)                -        
  Total nondepreciable capital assets      8,647,671             -        (1,359,489)     7,288,182  
 
Depreciable capital assets: 
 Residential Housing Development Projects: 
  Section 8 Mihaville Housing 30 years  2,369,469  -        -        2,369,469 
  Section 8 Koblerville Housing 30 years  1,889,127  -        -        1,889,127 
  Section 8 Rota Housing 30 years  1,120,747  -        -        1,120,747 
  Section 8 Tinian Housing 30 years  1,001,408  -        -        1,001,408 
  Section 8 Housing Phase II 30 years  631,243  -        -        631,243 
  Section 8 Housing Phase I 30 years        600,515             -                   -               600,515  
        7,612,509             -                   -           7,612,509   
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(8) Capital Assets, Continued 

  Balance at   Balance at 
 Estimated October  Transfers/ September 
 Useful Lives 1, 2019 Additions Deletions 30, 2020 
Other: 
 Koblerville infrastructure 30 years  2,214,991  -        -        2,214,991 
 Tinian infrastructure 30 years  608,500  -        -        608,500 
 Building and improvements 20 years  870,024  -        -        870,024 
 Equipment and computers 3 - 8 years  102,521  1,364,391    1,466,912 
 Vehicles 3 years        262,555             -                   -              262,555  
        4,058,591  1,364,391             -           5,422,982  
 
     11,671,100  1,364,391    13,035,491 
 Less accumulated depreciation   (11,078,800)    (308,046)             -        (11,386,846)  
 
  Total depreciable capital assets         592,300  1,056,345             -           1,648,645  
 
    $    9,239,971 $ 1,056,345 $ (1,359,489) $    8,936,827  

 
  Balance at   Balance at 
 Estimated October  Transfers/ September 
 Useful Lives 1, 2018 Additions Deletions 30, 2019 
Nondepreciable capital assets: 
 Land  $ 7,288,182 $ -       $ -       $ 7,288,182 
 Construction in progress      1,359,489             -                   -           1,359,489 
 
  Total nondepreciable capital assets      8,647,671             -                   -           8,647,671 
 
Depreciable capital assets: 
 Residential Housing Development Projects: 
  Section 8 Mihaville Housing 30 years  2,369,469  -        -        2,369,469 
  Section 8 Koblerville Housing 30 years  1,889,127  -        -        1,889,127 
  Section 8 Rota Housing 30 years  1,120,747  -        -        1,120,747 
  Section 8 Tinian Housing 30 years  1,001,408  -        -        1,001,408 
  Section 8 Housing Phase II 30 years  631,243  -        -        631,243 
  Section 8 Housing Phase I 30 years        600,515             -                   -              600,515 
        7,612,509             -                   -           7,612,509 
Other: 
 Koblerville infrastructure 30 years  2,214,991  -        -        2,214,991 
 Tinian infrastructure 30 years  608,500  -        -        608,500 
 Building and improvements 20 years  870,024  -        -        870,024 
 Equipment and computers 3 - 8 years  101,188  1,333  -        102,521 
 Vehicles 3 years        251,620       10,935             -              262,555 
        4,046,323       12,268             -           4,058,591 
 
     11,658,832  12,268  -        11,671,100 
 Less accumulated depreciation   (10,950,697)     (128,103)             -        (11,078,800) 
 
  Total depreciable capital assets         708,135    (115,835)             -              592,300 
 
    $    9,355,806 $   (115,835) $            -       $    9,239,971 

 
Construction in progress consists of costs incurred for the low-income solar project, which 
includes installation of solar arrays on low-income houses managed by NMHC. The project is 
donated by a third-party contractor through a USDA RD grant. Installation of solar panels is 
substantially completed but not in service as of September 30, 2019. Management expects 
the project to be placed in use in fiscal year 2020. 
 
Nondepreciable capital assets consist of the following titles to approximately 335,542 square 
meters of land: 
 
1. Lot 014 R 01, containing an area of 31,407 square meters, more or less, and the 

improvements thereon, located at As Liyo, Rota, CNMI. 
 

2. Lot 021 T 03, containing an area of 143,623 square meters, more or less, located at San 
Jose, Tinian, CNMI. 
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(8) Capital Assets, Continued 
 

3. Lot 021 T 01, containing an area of 26,250 square meters, more or less, and the 
improvements thereon, located at San Jose, Tinian, CNMI. 

 
4. Lot 005 I 001, containing an area of 40,554 square meters, more or less, and the 

improvements thereon, located at Koblerville, Saipan, CNMI. 
 

5. Lot 014 D 75, containing an area of 10,923 square meters, more or less, located at 
Garapan, Saipan, CNMI. 
 

6. Lot 003 D 27, and a portion of Lot 014 D 75, collectively containing an area of 5,824 
square meters, more or less, located at Garapan, Saipan, CNMI. 
 

7. Lot 071 D 01, containing an area of 37,145 square meters, more or less, and the 
improvements thereon, located at Garapan, Saipan, CNMI. 

 
8. Lot 014 D 01, containing an area of 39,816 square meters, more or less, and the 

improvements thereon, located at Garapan, Saipan, CNMI. 
 

The above land was acquired at no cost and was originally held for development of low-
income rental housing or resale to low income families for construction of housing.  The land 
is recorded on NMHC’s financial statements at estimated fair value of $7,288,182 at 
September 30, 2020 and 2019. NMHC recorded an impairment loss on land of $2,262,131 
based on broker’s opinions obtained during the year ended September 30, 2011.  Public Law 
6-34 provides NMHC, subject to certain terms and conditions, the authority to lease for 
commercial development certain land situated in the North Garapan Subdivision Annex No. 
2.  NMHC is currently in the process of promoting the development of the abovementioned 
land to allow NMHC to meet its future commitments. 

 
 
(9) Foreclosed Real Estate 
 

A summary of the changes in foreclosed real estate as of September 30, 2020 and 2019 is as 
follows: 

 
 2020 2019 

 
Balance at beginning of year $ 488,698 $ 594,771 
Additions  101,500  189,500 
Deletions      (59,500)    (295,573) 
 
Balance at end of year $    530,698 $    488,698 
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(10) Contingencies 
 

NMHC participates in a number of federally assisted grant programs funded by the United 
States Government.  These programs are subject to financial and compliance audits to 
ascertain if Federal laws and guidelines have been followed.  Cumulative questioned costs of 
$571,753 have been set forth in NMHC’s Single Audit Report for the year ended September 
30, 2020 and is comprised of questioned costs of $422,705 for fiscal year 2020 and $149,048 
for fiscal year 2019. The ultimate disposition of these questioned costs can be determined 
only by final action of the respective grantor agencies.  Therefore, no provision for any 
liability that may result upon resolution of this matter has been made in the accompanying 
financial statements. 

 
NMHC has entered into an agreement with the USDA RD whereby NMHC assists borrowers 
in obtaining RD financing for housing construction.  The agreement requires NMHC to 
guarantee any deficiency in foreclosure proceeds should borrowers default on RD loans.  As 
of September 30, 2020 and 2019, NMHC has guaranteed outstanding loans of $5,260,950 
and $5,323,173, respectively, and the amount of delinquent loans related to the agreement 
was $2,712,013 and $2,073,063, respectively. As of September 30, 2020 and 2019, total 
delinquent loans with demand notices from RD were $-0-. As of September 30, 2020 and 
2019, NMHC recorded liabilities incorporated in a “reserve for loan guaranty” of $2,023,850 
and $1,653,363, respectively, in the accompanying financial statements inclusive of reserves 
for the remaining non-delinquent and delinquent loans without demand notices of 
$1,989,963 and $1,619,476, respectively. 

 
NMHC entered into a loan agreement and related loan purchase agreement with a savings 
and loan in the CNMI whereby the savings and loan will make available up to $6,000,000 for 
housing loans.  Under the agreements, NMHC is responsible for administering the loan 
purchase program and the savings and loan agrees to purchase qualified loans from NMHC.  
NMHC guarantees the first 25% of the principal balance plus interest on each loan sold to the 
savings and loan.  As of September 30, 2020 and 2019, NMHC was contingently liable for 
$294,321 and $391,440, respectively, of the balance of loans purchased by the savings and 
loan.  In addition, NMHC is required to maintain an account at the savings and loan equal to 
the lesser of 5% of all loans sold to the savings and loan or $100,000.  The balance in the 
account at September 30, 2020 and 2019 was $104 and $181, respectively, which is included 
in “restricted cash and cash equivalents” in the accompanying financial statements.  As of 
September 30, 2020 and 2019, total defaulted loans related to this arrangement was 
$61,112. 

 
NMHC also has similar arrangements with other financial institutions whereby NMHC 
guarantees a varying percentage of loans issued by the banks for housing construction.  At 
September 30, 2020 and 2019, NMHC was contingently liable to these institutions for 
$199,868 and $238,928, respectively.  As of September 30, 2020 and 2019, the total 
defaulted loans related to these arrangements were $-0-. 

 
NMHC is involved in various claims and lawsuits arising in the normal course of business.  
However, the ultimate outcome of the claims and lawsuits are unknown at the present time.  
Accordingly, no provision for any liability that might result has been made in the 
accompanying financial statements. 
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(11) Risk Management 
 
 NMHC is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 

destruction of assets; errors and omissions, injuries to employees; and natural disasters.  
NMHC has elected to purchase commercial insurance from independent third parties for the 
risks of loss to which it is exposed.  Settled claims from these risks have not exceeded 
commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

 
 
(12) COVID-19 

 
Economic uncertainties have arisen as a result of the COVID-19 coronavirus pandemic, which 
are likely to negatively impact NMHC’s financial results. To prevent the spread of the COVID-
19 coronavirus, the CNMI temporarily suspended commercial air travel to the CNMI effective 
April 6, 2020. Although this suspension is temporary, there is considerable uncertainty on its 
duration, which negatively impacted businesses in the CNMI and resulted in employee 
furloughs both in private and public sectors. 
 
To assist their loan borrowers, NMHC has implemented a payment deferral assistance 
program beginning March 1, 2020 until May 31, 2020, which was extended on June 1, 2020 
until further notice. Under the program, interest will not accrue during the period. NMHC 
expects this matter to negatively impact its future financial results; however, the related 
financial impact cannot be reasonably estimated at this time. Other financial impacts could 
occur though such potential impact is unknown at this time. 

 
 
(13) Subsequent Event 
 

In fiscal year 2021, all positions of the NMHC Board of Directors have been appointed and 
confirmed and therefore, operations of NMHC is no longer under the direction and control of 
the CDA Board of Directors. 
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Submission Type:  Audited/Single Audit          Fiscal Year End:  09/30/2020
14.HCC HCV 

CARES Act Funding

14.871 Housing 

Choice Vouchers
Total

$644,009 $644,009

$159,496 $8,122 $167,618

$159,496 $652,131 $811,627

$96,188 $96,188

-$70,433 -$70,433

$0 $25,755 $25,755

$0 $0

$159,496 $677,886 $837,382

$64,387 $64,387

$39,583 $39,583

-$90,502 -$90,502

$0 $13,468 $13,468

$0 $13,468 $13,468

$159,496 $691,354 $850,850

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report.

Northern Marianas Housing Coproration  (TQ901)
Saipan, MP

Program Balance Sheet Summary

 

 290  Total Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources

 

 200  Deferred Outflow of Resources

 176  Investments in Joint Ventures

 180  Total Non-Current Assets

 173  Grants Receivable - Non Current

 174  Other Assets

 171  Notes, Loans and Mortgages Receivable - Non-Current

 172  Notes, Loans, & Mortgages Receivable - Non Current - Past 

 160  Total Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation

 

 167  Construction in Progress

 168  Infrastructure

 165  Leasehold Improvements

 166  Accumulated Depreciation

 163  Furniture, Equipment & Machinery - Dwellings

 164  Furniture, Equipment & Machinery - Administration

 161  Land

 162  Buildings

 150  Total Current Assets

 

 144  Inter Program Due From

 145  Assets Held for Sale

 143  Inventories

 143.1  Allowance for Obsolete Inventories

 135  Investments - Restricted for Payment of Current Liability

 142  Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets

 131  Investments - Unrestricted

 132  Investments - Restricted

 120  Total Receivables, Net of Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

 

 128.1  Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Fraud

 129  Accrued Interest Receivable

 127  Notes, Loans, & Mortgages Receivable - Current

 128  Fraud Recovery

 126.1  Allowance for Doubtful Accounts -Tenants

 126.2  Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Other

 125  Accounts Receivable - Miscellaneous

 126  Accounts Receivable - Tenants

 122  Accounts Receivable - HUD Other Projects

 124  Accounts Receivable - Other Government

 111  Cash - Unrestricted

 112  Cash - Restricted - Modernization and Development

 

 121  Accounts Receivable - PHA Projects

 115  Cash - Restricted for Payment of Current Liabilities

 100  Total Cash

 113  Cash - Other Restricted

 114  Cash - Tenant Security Deposits
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Submission Type:  Audited/Single Audit          Fiscal Year End:  09/30/2020
14.HCC HCV 

CARES Act Funding

14.871 Housing 

Choice Vouchers
Total

Northern Marianas Housing Coproration  (TQ901)
Saipan, MP

Program Balance Sheet Summary

$233,910 $233,910

$159,496 $159,496

$159,496 $233,910 $393,406

$0 $0 $0

$159,496 $233,910 $393,406

$0 $13,468 $13,468

$0 $8,122 $8,122

$0 $435,854 $435,854

$0 $457,444 $457,444

$159,496 $691,354 $850,850

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report.

 

 600  Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Equity - 

 512.4  Unrestricted Net Position

 513  Total Equity - Net Assets / Position

 508.4  Net Investment in Capital Assets

 511.4  Restricted Net Position

 400  Deferred Inflow of Resources

 

 300  Total Liabilities

 

 350  Total Non-Current Liabilities

 

 356  FASB 5 Liabilities

 357  Accrued Pension and OPEB Liabilities

 354  Accrued Compensated Absences - Non Current

 355  Loan Liability - Non Current

 352  Long-term Debt, Net of Current - Operating Borrowings

 353  Non-current Liabilities - Other

 

 351  Long-term Debt, Net of Current - Capital Projects/Mortgage 

 348  Loan Liability - Current

 310  Total Current Liabilities

 346  Accrued Liabilities - Other

 347  Inter Program - Due To

 344  Current Portion of Long-term Debt - Operating Borrowings

 345  Other Current Liabilities

 342  Unearned Revenue

 343  Current Portion of Long-term Debt - Capital 

 333  Accounts Payable - Other Government

 341  Tenant Security Deposits

 331  Accounts Payable - HUD PHA Programs

 332  Account Payable - PHA Projects

 324  Accrued Contingency Liability

 325  Accrued Interest Payable

 321  Accrued Wage/Payroll Taxes Payable

 322  Accrued Compensated Absences - Current Portion

 312  Accounts Payable <= 90 Days

 313  Accounts Payable >90 Days Past Due

 311  Bank Overdraft
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Submission Type:  Audited/Single Audit          Fiscal Year End:  09/30/2020
14.HCC HCV 

CARES Act Funding

14.871 Housing 

Choice Vouchers
Total

$0 $0 $0

$0 $3,127,580 $3,127,580

$7,166 $7,166

$21,556 $21,556

$0 $3,156,302 $3,156,302

$293,423 $293,423

$14,300 $14,300

$42,082 $42,082

$25,242 $25,242

$3,071 $3,071

$784 $784

$67,741 $67,741

$0 $446,643 $446,643

$0 $0 $0

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report.

 93500  Labor

 93600  Sewer

 93300  Gas

 93400  Fuel

 93100  Water

 93200  Electricity

 92500  Total Tenant Services

 92300  Employee Benefit Contributions - Tenant Services

 92400  Tenant Services - Other

 92100  Tenant Services - Salaries

 92200  Relocation Costs

 

 92000  Asset Management Fee

 91900  Other

 91000  Total Operating - Administrative

 91800  Travel

 91810  Allocated Overhead

 91600  Office Expenses

 91700  Legal Expense

 91400  Advertising and Marketing

 91500  Employee Benefit contributions - Administrative

 91300  Management Fee

 91310  Book-keeping Fee

 91100  Administrative Salaries

 91200  Auditing Fees

 70000  Total Revenue

 

 71600  Gain or Loss on Sale of Capital Assets

 72000  Investment Income - Restricted

 71400  Fraud Recovery

 71500  Other Revenue

 71300  Proceeds from Disposition of Assets Held for Sale

 71310  Cost of Sale of Assets

 71100  Investment Income - Unrestricted

 71200  Mortgage Interest Income

 

 70800  Other Government Grants

 70750  Other Fees

 70700  Total Fee Revenue

 70730  Book Keeping Fee

 70740  Front Line Service Fee

 70710  Management Fee

 70720  Asset Management Fee

Northern Marianas Housing Coproration  (TQ901)
Saipan, MP

Program Revenue and Expense Summary

 70600  HUD PHA Operating Grants

 70610  Capital Grants

 70500  Total Tenant Revenue

 

 70300  Net Tenant Rental Revenue

 70400  Tenant Revenue - Other
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Submission Type:  Audited/Single Audit          Fiscal Year End:  09/30/2020
14.HCC HCV 

CARES Act Funding

14.871 Housing 

Choice Vouchers
Total

Northern Marianas Housing Coproration  (TQ901)
Saipan, MP

Program Revenue and Expense Summary

$0 $0 $0

$0 $0 $0

$0 $0 $0

$0 $0 $0

$56,174 $56,174

$0 $56,174 $56,174

$0 $0 $0

$0 $502,817 $502,817

$0 $2,653,485 $2,653,485

$2,916,662 $2,916,662

$12,378 $12,378

$0 $3,431,857 $3,431,857

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report.

 

 97800  Dwelling Units Rent Expense

 90000  Total Expenses

 97600  Capital Outlays  - Governmental Funds

 97700  Debt Principal Payment - Governmental Funds

 97400  Depreciation Expense

 97500  Fraud Losses

 97300  Housing Assistance Payments

 97350  HAP Portability-In

 97100  Extraordinary Maintenance

 97200  Casualty Losses - Non-capitalized

 97000  Excess of Operating Revenue over Operating Expenses

 

 96900  Total Operating Expenses

 

 96700  Total Interest Expense and Amortization Cost

 

 96720  Interest on Notes Payable (Short and Long Term)

 96730  Amortization of Bond Issue Costs

 

 96710  Interest of Mortgage (or Bonds) Payable

 96800  Severance Expense

 96000  Total Other General Expenses

 96500  Bad debt - Mortgages

 96600  Bad debt - Other

 96300  Payments in Lieu of Taxes

 96400  Bad debt - Tenant Rents

 96200  Other General Expenses

 96210  Compensated Absences

 96100  Total insurance Premiums

 

 96130  Workmen's Compensation

 96140  All Other Insurance

 96110  Property Insurance

 96120  Liability Insurance

 95000  Total Protective Services

 

 95300  Protective Services - Other

 95500  Employee Benefit Contributions - Protective Services

 95100  Protective Services - Labor

 95200  Protective Services - Other Contract Costs

 94000  Total Maintenance

 

 94300  Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts

 94500  Employee Benefit Contributions - Ordinary Maintenance

 94100  Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Labor

 94200  Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Materials and 

 93000  Total Utilities

 

 93700  Employee Benefit Contributions - Utilities

 93800  Other Utilities Expense
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Submission Type:  Audited/Single Audit          Fiscal Year End:  09/30/2020
14.HCC HCV 

CARES Act Funding

14.871 Housing 

Choice Vouchers
Total

Northern Marianas Housing Coproration  (TQ901)
Saipan, MP

Program Revenue and Expense Summary

$0 $0 $0

$0 -$275,555 -$275,555

$0 $0 $0

$0 $737,516 $737,516

$0 -$4,517 -$4,517

$449,322 $449,322

$8,122 $8,122

4356 4356

3827 3827

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report.

 13510  CFFP Debt Service Payments

 13901  Replacement Housing Factor Funds

 11650  Leasehold Improvements Purchases

 11660  Infrastructure Purchases

 11630  Furniture & Equipment - Dwelling Purchases

 11640  Furniture & Equipment - Administrative Purchases

 11610  Land Purchases

 11620  Building Purchases

 11210  Number of Unit Months Leased

 11270  Excess Cash

 11180  Housing Assistance Payments Equity

 11190  Unit Months Available

 11170  Administrative Fee Equity

 

 11090  Changes in Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Dwelling 

 11100  Changes in Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Other

 11070  Changes in Unrecognized Pension Transition Liability

 11080  Changes in Special Term/Severance Benefits Liability

 11050  Changes in Compensated Absence Balance

 11060  Changes in Contingent Liability Balance

 11030  Beginning Equity

 11040  Prior Period Adjustments, Equity Transfers and 

 

 11020  Required Annual Debt Principal Payments

 

 10000  Excess (Deficiency) of Total Revenue Over (Under) Total 

 10094  Transfers between Project and Program - Out

 10100  Total Other financing Sources (Uses)

 10092  Inter Project Excess Cash Transfer Out

 10093  Transfers between Program and Project - In

 10080  Special Items (Net Gain/Loss)

 10091  Inter Project Excess Cash Transfer In

 10060  Proceeds from Property Sales

 10070  Extraordinary Items, Net Gain/Loss

 10040  Operating Transfers from/to Component Unit

 10050  Proceeds from Notes, Loans and Bonds

 10020  Operating transfer Out

 10030  Operating Transfers from/to Primary Government

 10010  Operating Transfer In
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Northern Marianas Housing Corporation: 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of 
Northern Marianas Housing Corporation (NMHC), a division of Commonwealth Development 
Authority, which comprise the statement of net position as of September 30, 2020, and the related 
statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, and of cash flows for the year then 
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
April 6, 2022. Our report was qualified due to our inability to determine the effects of Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Pensions on NMHC’s financial statements. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered NMHC’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of NMHC’s 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of NMHC’s internal 
control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance.  
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. We did identify certain deficiencies in internal 
control, described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item 2020-
005 that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
  

Deloitte & Touche LLC 

Isa Drive, Capitol Hill 

P.O. Box 500308 
Saipan, MP  96950-0308 

CNMI 

 

Tel: (670) 322-7337/8 

Fax: (670) 322-7340 

www.deloitte.com 



Deloitte. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether NMHC’s financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which are described in the 
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item 2020-005. 

NMHC’s Response to Findings 

NMHC's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying Schedule 
of Findings and Questioned Costs. NMHC’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scape of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

17M J } M  ’1“- 

mmsmu 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 
FEDERAL PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; 

AND REPORT ON SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

 
 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Northern Marianas Housing Corporation: 
 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
 
We have audited Northern Marianas Housing Corporation’s (NMHC’s) compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct 
and material effect on each of NMHC’s major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 
2020. NMHC’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of 
the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.  
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and 
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility  
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of NMHC’s major federal 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We 
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 
Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about NMHC’s compliance with those 
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. 
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our qualified and unmodified opinions on 
compliance for major federal programs.  However, our audit does not provide a legal determination 
of NMHC’s compliance. 
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Basis for Qualified Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 
As described in Findings 2020-001 and 2020-004 through 2020-009 in the accompanying Schedule 
of Findings and Questioned Costs, NMHC did not comply with requirements regarding the following: 
 

Finding # CFDA # Program Name Compliance Requirement 
2020-001 14.195 Section 8 Housing Assistance Payments Program Eligibility 
2020-004 14.225 Community Development Block Grant/Special 

Purpose Grants/Insular Areas 
Reporting 

2020-005 14.239 Home Investment Partnerships Program Eligibility 
2020-006 14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers Program Allowable Costs/Cost Principles 
2020-007 14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers Program Eligibility 
2020-008 14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers Program Reporting (HUD-52681-B, Voucher for Payment of Annual 

Contributions and Operating Statement) 
2020-009 14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers Program Reporting (Financial Assessment Sub-system, FASS-PH) 

 
Compliance with such requirements is necessary, in our opinion, for NMHC to comply with the 
requirements applicable to each program. 
 
Qualified Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
  
In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, 
NMHC complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year 
ended September 30, 2020. 
 
Other Matters  
 
The results of our auditing procedures disclosed other instances of noncompliance which are 
required to be reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which are described in the 
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as items 2020-002 and 2020-003. Our 
opinion on each major federal program is not modified with respect to these matters. 
 
NMHC’s response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit is described in the 
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. NMHC’s response was not subjected to 
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion 
on the response. 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
Management of NMHC is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and 
performing our audit of compliance, we considered NMHC’s internal control over compliance with 
the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal 
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and 
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of NMHC’s internal control over 
compliance.  



Deloitte. 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. However, as 
discussed below, we did identify certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we 
consider to be material weaknesses and significant deficiencies. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, 
such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely 
basis. We consider the deficiencies in internal control over compliance described in the 
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as items 2020-001 and 2020-004 through 
2020—009 to be material weaknesses. 

Asignificant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings 
and Questioned Costs as items 2020-002 and 2020-003 to be significant deficiencies. 

NMHC’s response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit is described 
in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. NMHC’s response was not 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express 
no apinion on the response. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements 
of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance 

We have audited the financial statements of NMHC as of and for the year ended September 30, 
2020, and have issued our report thereon dated April 6, 2022, which contained a qualified opinion 
on those financial statements due to our inability to determine the effects of GASB Statement No. 
68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions on NMHC’s financial statements. Our audit was 
conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The 
accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the financial statements. 
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to 
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is fairly stated in all material respects in 
relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

flM I ’M 4“- 
April 6, 2022 



Federal Passed
CFDA Through to Federal

Number Subrecipients Expenditures

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Direct Programs

Section 8 Project-Based Cluster:
Section 8 Housing Assistance Payments Program 14.195 -$                  1,371,555$      

Total Section 8 Project-Based Cluster -                    1,371,555        

CDBG - Entitlement Grants Cluster:
Community Development Block Grants/Special Purpose Grants/Insular Areas 14.225 1,238,123        1,430,914        
COVID-19 Community Development Block Grants/Special Purpose Grants/

Insular Areas 14.225 87,869              87,869              

Total CDBG - Entitlement Grants Cluster 1,325,992        1,518,783        

Emergency Solutions Grant Program 14.231 -                    82,432              
COVID-19 Emergency Solutions Grant Program 14.231 -                    4,062                
HOME Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 -                    6,903,974        
Continuum of Care Program 14.267 -                    3,478                

Housing Voucher Cluster:
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 14.871 -                    3,367,822        

Total Housing Voucher Cluster -                    3,367,822        

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 1,325,992        13,252,106      

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 1,325,992$      13,252,106$    

Reconciliation of Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Net Position to expenditures:

Operating expenses:
HOME Investment Partnership Program Grant 107,243$         
CDBG Program 1,518,783        
ESG Program 86,494              
Continuum of Care Program 3,478                
HOME Investment Partnerships Program loans included in loans receivable 6,796,731        
Section 8 HAP expenditures included in operations 4,739,377        

Federal award expenditures per above 13,252,106$    

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended September 30, 2020

Federal Grantor/Program or Cluster Title
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NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Year Ended September 30, 2020 

 
 
(1) Scope of Review 
 
 Northern Marianas Housing Corporation (NMHC), a division of the Commonwealth 

Development Authority (CDA), formerly the Mariana Islands Housing Authority (MIHA), was 
established to assist in the development and administration of low-cost residential housing in 
the Northern Mariana Islands.  On September 24, 2020, the Governor of the CNMI signed 
Executive Order 2020-21 to rescind Section 407 of Executive Order 94-3, pertaining to the 
functions of NMHC and its assignment to CDA and allowing for NMHC to remain the successor 
agency to MIHA pursuant to Public Law 20-87.  The operations of NMHC shall continue under 
the direction and control of the CDA Board of Directors until all positions of the NMHC Board 
of Directors are appointed and confirmed.  All operations of NMHC are included in the scope 
of the Single Audit.  The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development is NMHC’s 
oversight agency for the Single Audit. 

  
(2) Basis of Presentation 
 
 The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the 

federal award activity of NMHC under programs of the federal government for the year ended 
September 30, 2020. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of NMHC, 
it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net position or cash 
flows of NMHC. 

  
(3) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
 a. Basis of Accounting 
 
  For purposes of this report, certain accounting procedures were followed, which help 

illustrate the expenditures of the individual programs.  Expenditures reported on the 
Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are 
recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein 
certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. 
Disbursements made to subrecipients related to grant agreements are reported as 
expenditures. 

   
 b. Subgrantees 
 
  Certain program funds are passed through NMHC to subrecipient organizations.  The 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards does not contain separate schedules 
disclosing how the subrecipients outside of NMHC’s control utilized the funds. 

 
 c. Funds Received 
 
  U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development - Community Development Block 

Grants/Special Purpose Grants/Insular Area; Emergency Solutions Grant Program; 
Continuum of Care; HOME Investment Partnerships Program; - NMHC received these 
funds in a direct capacity in fiscal year 2020; NMHC administers the funds and is 
responsible for compliance with laws and regulations. NMHC was designated 
administrator of Commonwealth Development Block Grants - Disaster Recovery; 
however, no funding was received or presented within the Schedule of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards in Fiscal Year 2020. 
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NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, Continued 
Year Ended September 30, 2020 

 
 
(3) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 
 
 c. Funds Received, Continued 
 
  U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development - Section 8 Housing Assistance 

Payments Program; Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers - NMHC records federal rental 
assistance as Section 8 income. 

 
 d. Indirect Costs 
 
  NMHC does not have an indirect cost negotiation agreement and does not elect to use 

the de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance. NMHC developed 
allocations for indirect costs to programs, which was fully implemented in fiscal year 
2020.  NMHC developed estimates and allocable costs in compliance with the Uniform 
Guidance and Code of Federal Regulations §200.404 Reasonable Costs, and §200.405 
Allocable Costs. 

 
(4) Loan Funds 

 
NMHC, on behalf of the CNMI, has been designated the responsibility of implementing and 
carrying out the objectives of the HOME program. The purpose of the program is to provide 
no-cost or low-cost financing assistance to very low and low-income families. Under NMHC’s 
policies and procedures, HOME loan applicants that have been determined to be eligible for 
financial assistance are required to comply with the terms of the homeowner rehabilitation 
assistance including the NMHC affordability period and principal residency requirements. 
Balances and transactions relating to the HOME program are included in NMHC’s financial 
statements. Loans made during the year and the balances of loans from previous years for 
which the federal government imposes continuing compliance requirements are included in 
the federal expenditures presented in the Schedule. As of September 30, 2020, the HOME 
Program expenditures include $107,243 in current year disbursements and $6,796,731 in 
outstanding HOME loans from previous years with continuing compliance requirements. The 
balance of HOME Investment Partnerships grant loans outstanding and recorded by NMHC at 
September 30, 2020 is $7,027,659 of which $6,990,789 have continuing compliance 
requirements. 
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NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended September 30, 2020 

 
 
SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS 
 

Financial Statements 
 
1. Type of report the auditor issued on whether the financial statements 

audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP: Qualified 
 
 Internal control over financial reporting: 
 
2. Material weakness(es) identified? Yes 
3. Significant deficiency(ies) identified? None reported 
 
4. Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes 
 

Federal Awards 
 
 Internal control over major federal programs: 
 
5. Material weakness(es) identified? Yes 
6. Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes 
 
7. Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major federal 

programs:  Qualified 
 

8. Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in 
accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? Yes 

 
9. Identification of major federal programs: 
 

CFDA 
Numbers 

 
Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

  
 Section 8 Project-Based Cluster: 

14.195 Section 8 Housing Assistance Payments Program 
 CDBG - Entitlement Grants Cluster: 

14.225 Community Development Block Grants/Special Purpose Grants/Insular Areas 
14.239 Home Investment Partnerships Program 

 Housing Voucher Cluster: 
14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 

 
10. Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B 

Programs: $750,000 
 
11. Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? No 
 
 
SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 
 

Reference Number Finding 
  

2020-005 Eligibility 
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NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued 
Year Ended September 30, 2020 

 
 
SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 

Reference 
Number 

CDFA 
Numbers 

 
Finding 

 
Questioned Costs 

    
2020-001 14.195 Eligibility $   14,947 
2020-002 14.195 Special Tests and Provisions (Utility Analysis) - 
2020-003 14.195 Special Tests and Provisions (Housing Quality Standards) 10,152 
2020-004 14.225 Reporting - 
2020-005 14.239 Eligibility 338,177 
2020-006 14.871 Allowable Costs/Cost Principles - 
2020-007 14.871 Eligibility 59,429 
2020-008 14.871 Reporting (HUD-52681-B, Voucher for Payment of Annual 

Contributions and Operating Statement) 
 

- 
2020-009 14.871 Reporting (Financial Assessment Sub-system, FASS-PH)              - 

    
   $ 422,705 
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NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued 
Year Ended September 30, 2020 

 
 
Finding No.: 2020-001 
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
CFDA Program: 14.195 Section 8 Housing Assistance Payments Program 
Area: Eligibility 
Questioned Costs: $14,947 
 
 
Criteria: In accordance with applicable eligibility requirements, the Public Housing Agency (PHA) or 
owner must verify the eligibility of applicants by (a) obtaining signed applications that contain the 
information needed to determine eligibility (including designation as elderly, disabled, or homeless, 
if applicable), income, rent, and order of selection; (b) conducting verifications of family income and 
other pertinent information (such as assets, full time student and immigration status, and unusual 
medical expenses) through third parties; (c) documenting inspections and tenant certifications, as 
appropriate; and, (d) determining that tenant income did not exceed the maximum limit set by HUD 
for the PHA’s jurisdiction, as shown in HUD’s published notice transmitting the Limits for Low-
Income and Very Low-Income Families Under the Housing Act of 1937. 
 
Condition: Of forty tenant files tested, aggregating $41,957 of a total population of $1,371,555, we 
noted deficiencies. Any resulting questioned cost is based on the monthly HAP amount and the 
number of months certified during fiscal year 2020. 
 
1. For one (or 2%) under Section 8 number TQ100016004, the recertification/certification 

interview sheet was signed by the tenant, but was not dated.  
 

Unit No. Period Tested Certification Effective HAP Calculation Questioned Costs 
     

K04 01/01/20 01/01/20 $ 994 x 9 months $ 8,946 

 
2. For one (or 2%) under Section 8 number TQ100006004, the fraud affidavit, the statement of 

unemployment, the affidavit of child support, the affidavit of zero income, the affidavit as to 
assets and assets disposition were not on file.  

 
Unit No. Period Tested Member No. HAP 

    
R17 05/01/20 11 $ 1,197 

 
No questioned costs result as the tenant did not exceed the income limit threshold. 
 

3. For one (or 2%) under Section 8 number TQ100011001, the following tenant reported other 
income. No third-party verification documentation was on file. Further, documentation for 
why a third-party verification was not possible or documentation indicating that efforts were 
made to obtain third-party verification was not evident. 

 
Unit No. Period Tested Household Member No. Other Income Reported (Monthly Income) 

    
T20 05/01/20 Head $ 200 

 
No questioned costs result as the tenant did not exceed the income limit threshold. 
 

4. For one (or 2%) under Section 8 number TQ100011001, the Housing Specialist notarized an 
affidavit of support; however, the document was not dated. 

 
Unit No. Period Tested Certification Effective Amount Notarized 

    
T20 08/01/20 07/01/20 $ 200 
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NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued 
Year Ended September 30, 2020 

 
 
Finding No.: 2020-001, Continued 
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
CFDA Program: 14.195 Section 8 Housing Assistance Payments Program 
Area: Eligibility 
Questioned Costs: $14,947 
 
 
Condition, Continued: 

 
No questioned costs result as the tenant did not exceed the income limit threshold. 
 

5. For one (or 2%) under Section 8 number TQ100016004, income from assets reported in the 
Form HUD 50059 did not agree to the third-party verification, as follows:  

 
Unit No. Period Tested Income Per Form HUD 50059 Income Per Third-Party Verification 

    
K08 06/01/20 $ 56 $ 41 

 
No questioned costs result as the tenant did not exceed the income limit threshold. 
 

6. For eleven (or 27%) under Section 8 numbers TQ100011005, TQ100011001 and TQ100016004, 
the affidavit as to assets was not notarized. 

 
 

Unit No. 
Period 
Tested 

Certification 
Effective Date 

 
Member # 

 
HAP Calculation 

 
Questioned Costs 

      
M30 01/01/20 01/01/20 1, 2 and 3 $ 748 x 9 months  $ 6,732 
T19 04/01/20 04/01/20 1 $ 923 x 6 months $ 5,538 
K08 06/01/20 06/01/20 1, 2 and 3 $ 1,028 x 4 months $ 4,112 
K20 07/01/20 07/01/20 8 $ 1,136 x 3 months $ 3,408 
K20 08/01/20 08/01/20 8 $ 1,203 x 2 months $ 2,406 
T19 06/01/20 06/01/20 1 $ 1,330 x 3 months $ 3,990 
K03 09/01/20 09/01/20 1 $ 1,178 x 1 month $ 1,178 
K11 08/01/20 08/01/20 1, 2, 6 and 7  $ 1,191 x 2 months $ 2,382 
K04 01/01/20 01/01/20 1, 2 and 4 $ 994 x 9 months $ 8,946 
M15 09/01/20 09/01/20 1 and 2 $ 1,152 x 1 month $ 1,152 
M08 08/01/20 08/01/20 1 and 2 $ 1,024 x 2 months $ 2,048 

 
No questioned costs result as the tenants did not exceed the income limit threshold. 

 
7. For one (or 2%) (Unit No. K16) under Section 8 number TQ100016004, the income reported 

per HUD-50059 of $5,100 did not agree to income on file of $5,200, resulting in excess HAP 
payment and tenant rent of $2.  

 

 
Certification 

Effective 
Form HUD 50059/ 

Tenant Rent 
Form HUD 50059/ 

Tenant Rent Should Be HAP Calculation 
Questioned 

Costs 
      

HAP payment 06/01/20 $ 1,159 $ 1,157 $ 2 x 4 months $     8 
Tenant rent 06/01/20 $   (110) $   (108) $ 2 x 4 months     8 

      
     $   16 

 
8. For three (or 7%) under Section 8 number TQ100006004 and TQ100016004, the verification 

of citizenship status of a household member indicated in Form HUD 50059 noted 
inconsistencies in the name and gender to the supporting document (birth certificate).  
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NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued 
Year Ended September 30, 2020 

 
 
Finding No.: 2020-001, Continued 
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
CFDA Program: 14.195 Section 8 Housing Assistance Payments Program 
Area: Eligibility 
Questioned Costs: $14,947 
 
 
Condition, Continued: 
 

Unit No. Certification Effective Member # Inconsistent Information HAP Calculation Questioned Costs 
      

R17 05/01/20 1 and 9 First name; gender  $ 1,197 x 5 months $ 5,985 
K25 07/01/20 2 First name $ 1,191 x 3 months $          - 
K25 03/01/20 2 First name $ 1,191 x 7 months $          - 

 
No questioned cost is presented for K25 as the error was corrected during field work. 

 
Cause: NMHC did not effectively apply controls over compliance with applicable eligibility 
requirements, did not obtain third-party verifications or document instances when third-party 
verifications could be obtained. 
 
Effect: NMHC is in noncompliance with applicable eligibility requirements and questioned costs of 
$14,947 exist, as the projected questioned costs exceed the threshold. 
 

Condition Questioned Costs 
  

1 $   8,946 
7 16 
8   5,985 
  

 $ 14,947 
 
Identification as a Repeat Finding: Finding No. 2019-001 
 
Recommendation: NMHC should strengthen controls over compliance with applicable eligibility 
requirements by having a checklist and reviewing it against the tenant files to ascertain that all 
required forms and information were completed and filed accordingly. 
 
Views of Responsible Officials: 
 
NMHC’s Corrective Action Plan describes affirmations and corrective actions.  
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NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued 
Year Ended September 30, 2020 

 
 
Finding No.: 2020-002 
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
CFDA Program: 14.195 Section 8 Housing Assistance Payments Program 
Area: Special Tests and Provisions (Utility Analysis) 
Questioned Costs: $-0- 
 
 
Criteria: Owners must make changes to the utility allowances effective the same date as the rent 
effective date for the annual analysis submitted at the time of the rent adjustment. In cases where 
the utility analysis is completed mid-year due to a 10% or greater rate increase, the effective date 
of the utility allowance must be the first day of the first month following approval by HUD or the 
Contract Administrator. 
 
Condition:  NMHC did not complete the utility analysis schedule for FY 2020 within a reasonable 
period before the family’s next reexamination. The analysis was submitted to the grantor in May 
2021 which resulted in untimely gross rent changes affecting all projects. 
 
Cause: The COVID-19 pandemic and the unresponsiveness by the utility company in submitting the 
tenant utility rates contributed to the delay in the completion of the analysis.  
 
Effect: NMHC is in noncompliance with applicable special tests and provisions requirements for 
utility analysis. No questioned costs are presented as we are unable to determine the extent of 
noncompliance. 
 
Recommendation: NMHC should strengthen controls over compliance with applicable special tests 
and provisions requirements for utility analysis by completing the analysis early on in the year. 
Responsible personnel should monitor timeliness and completion of the utility analysis so that the 
gross rent changes will not be affected. 
 
Views of Responsible Officials: 
 
NMHC’s Corrective Action Plan describes affirmations and corrective actions. 
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NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued 
Year Ended September 30, 2020 

 
 
Finding No.: 2020-003 
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
CFDA Program: 14.195 Section 8 Housing Assistance Payments Program 
Area: Special Tests and Provisions (Housing Quality Standards) 
Questioned Costs: $10,152 
 
 
Criteria: The PHA or owner must provide housing that is decent, safe, and sanitary.  To achieve this 
end, the PHA must perform unit inspections at the time of initial occupancy.  Although annual 
inspection is not required per HUD’s Handbook No.: 4350.3 REV-1 and 24 CFR 880.612, NMHC 
performs annual inspections to assure that the units are decent, safe, and sanitary.  The PHA must 
document these inspections, as well as actions taken to address deficiencies, if any, noted during 
inspections. 
 
Condition: Of forty tenant files tested, aggregating $40,041 of a total population of $1,371,555, we 
noted the following deficiencies, resulting in questioned costs based on the monthly HAP amount 
and the number of months certified during fiscal year 2020: 
 
1. For one (or 2%) under Section 8 number TQ10-0011-001, the NMHC inspector report for the 

following unit did not indicate deficiencies on the unit. Instead, it referred to work order (WO) 
# 006261. Further, the WO had a start date of 10/15/19, or seventeen days before the actual 
inspection date of the unit on 11/01/19. During fieldwork, we were provided a “Note to File” 
which stated that the repairs were not completed prior to annual inspection of 11/01/19, and 
that instead of duplicating the repairs needed, the Housing Specialist referred to the WO on 
the annual inspection work. Annual inspection of the unit did not occur. 
 

Unit No. 
Certification 

Effective Date Date of Inspection 
Work Order 
Start Date HAP Amount 

 
Questioned Costs 

      
T12 04/01/20 11/01/19 10/15/19 $ 769 x 6 months $ 4,614 

 
2. For one (or 2%) under Section 8 number TQ10-0011-001, the NMHC inspector report for the 

following unit did not indicate deficiencies on the unit. Instead, it referred to work order (WO) 
# 005677. Further, the WO had a start date of 11/09/18, or five and a half months prior to the 
actual inspection of the unit on 04/25/19. During fieldwork, we were provided a “Note to File” 
which stated that the WO was issued due to damages sustained by Typhoon Yutu. Annual 
inspection of the unit did not occur. 
 

Unit No. 
Certification 

Effective Date Date of Inspection 
Work Order 
Start Date HAP Amount 

 
Questioned Costs 

      
T19 04/01/20 04/25/19 11/09/18 $ 923 x 6 months $ 5,538 

 
Cause: NMHC did not properly perform annual inspections on the units. 
 
Effect: NMHC is in noncompliance with applicable special tests and provisions requirements for 
housing quality standards, and questioned costs of $10,152 exist. 
 

Condition Questioned Costs 
  

1 $   4,614 
2   5,538 
  
 $ 10,152 
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NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued 
Year Ended September 30, 2020 

 
 
Finding No.: 2020-003, Continued 
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
CFDA Program: 14.195 Section 8 Housing Assistance Payments Program 
Area: Special Tests and Provisions (Housing Quality Standards) 
Questioned Costs: $10,152 
 
 
Identification as a Repeat Finding: Finding No. 2019-002 
 
Recommendation: NMHC should strengthen controls over compliance with applicable special tests 
and provisions requirements for housing quality standards by completing the unit’s scheduled 
inspections. Responsible personnel should monitor housing quality inspection procedures so that 
any deficiencies noted during inspections are documented and addressed. 
 
Views of Responsible Officials: 
 
NMHC’s Corrective Action Plan describes affirmations and corrective actions. 
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NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued 
Year Ended September 30, 2020 

 
 
Finding No.: 2020-004 
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
CFDA Program: 14.225 Community Development Block Grants/Special Purpose 

Grants/Insular Areas 
Federal Award Nos.: B-17-ST69-0001 and B-19-ST69-0001 
Area: Reporting 
Questioned Costs: $-0- 
 
 
Criteria: In accordance with applicable reporting requirements, each recipient that administers 
covered public and Indian housing assistance, regardless of the amount expended, and each 
recipient that administers covered housing and community development assistance in excess of 
$200,000 in a program year, must submit HUD 60002 information using the automated Section 3 
Performance Evaluation and Registry System (SPEARS). 
 
Further, if the recipient (or its covered contractors, subcontractors and subrecipients) did not hire 
any new employees during the reporting period, and/or if no covered construction or non-
construction contracts were awarded, the recipient must indicate this in Part III of form HUD-60002 
and certify that this information is true and accurate by penalty of law. 
 
Condition: 
 
1. Part III, Summary of Efforts, was left blank of the Section 3 Summary Report and not certified 

for grant award no. B-19-ST-69-0001 for contract no. 683101-OC. Additionally, Part II, 
Contracting Opportunities, at Block 1, Item D was also not completed. 

 
2. Form HUD 60002 Section 3 Summary Report for grant award no. B-17-ST-69-0001 for contract 

no. 675782-OC was not prepared and submitted to HUD. 
 
Cause: NMHC did not effectively monitor its submission requirement for Form HUD 60002 Section 
3 Summary Report. 
 
Effect: NMHC is in noncompliance with applicable reporting requirements. No questioned cost is 
presented as we are unable to quantify the noncompliance. 
 
Identification as a Repeat Finding: Finding No. 2019-004 
 
Recommendation:  NMHC should adhere to Form HUD 60002 Section 3 Summary Report compliance 
requirements. 
 
Views of Responsible Officials: 
 
NMHC’s Corrective Action Plan describes affirmations and corrective actions. 
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NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued 
Year Ended September 30, 2020 

 
 
Finding No.: 2020-005 
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
CFDA Program: 14.239 HOME Investment Partnerships Program 
Federal Award Nos.: M02ST690203, M03ST690203, M04ST690203, M05ST690203, 

M06ST690203, M07ST690203, M08ST690203, M09ST690203, 
M10ST690203, M11ST690203, M12ST690203, M14ST690203, 
M15ST690203 and M16ST690203 

Area: Eligibility 
Questioned Costs: $338,177 
 
 
Criteria: In accordance with applicable eligibility requirements, existing borrowers must satisfy 
annual requirements, and initial applicants must be qualified homebuyers or homeowners in order 
to receive HOME funds. For homeownership housing projects imposing recapture/resale 
restrictions, records must be retained for five years after the affordability period terminates. 
 
Annual Requirements: 
 
1. Upon completion of the HOME assisted project and during the term of the loan, the 

homebuyer shall be required to maintain, at personal expense, property insurance on the 
mortgaged property for fire, earthquake, typhoon, and flood damage covering the 
replacement value of all properties at a minimum equal to the loan amount. 
 

2. All HOME-assisted borrowers, regardless of the type of assistance provided, shall be recertified 
annually to demonstrate compliance with the affordability restrictions. 

 
3. All existing borrowers whose loans have been partially or entirely deferred prior to or on 

December 31, 2007, shall cease to be recertified for financial and eligibility requirement 
purposes. This provision shall apply and be made effective after each borrower(s) has/have 
been recertified for his/her/their last annual recertification due date and completed prior to 
or on July 28, 2018; and shall therefore be considered the last and final financial and eligibility 
recertification.    

 
Application Requirements: 
 
4. NMHC must perform income eligibility prior to providing HOME loan assistance and must use 

verification methods that are acceptable to HUD.  Verification must be made in writing, from 
a reliable third party, including verification of birth, unemployment status, monthly income, 
social security income, income from assets and tax compliance.  Such verifications shall be 
considered valid for a period of ninety calendar days from the date the verification was 
completed for loans executed prior to July 23, 2009 or one hundred eighty calendar days for 
loans executed on or after July 23, 2009.  In addition, prior to verification, NMHC shall obtain 
written authorization from the applicant through the HOME Eligibility Release form or 
Authorization to Release Information.  

 
5. NMHC must determine an applicant’s credit worthiness and repayment ability. NMHC shall 

request and obtain a written credit report from a recognized credit bureau.  Poor repayment 
of credit obligations shall be considered a credit risk and shall be a reason for denial of 
assistance.  
 

6. All approved applicants must attend a counseling session that will be provided by NMHC.  The 
counseling session shall coincide with the day that NMHC issues a Commitment Letter to the 
applicant.  Failure to attend a counseling session is grounds for denial of the assistance. 
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NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued 
Year Ended September 30, 2020 

 
 
Finding No.: 2020-005, Continued 
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
CFDA Program: 14.239 HOME Investment Partnerships Program 
Federal Award Nos.: M02ST690203, M03ST690203, M04ST690203, M05ST690203, 

M06ST690203, M07ST690203, M08ST690203, M09ST690203, 
M10ST690203, M11ST690203, M12ST690203, M14ST690203, 
M15ST690203 and M16ST690203 

Area: Eligibility 
Questioned Costs: $338,177 
 
 
Criteria, Continued: 
 
7. HOME rehabilitation activities to be undertaken by NMHC are subject to the environmental 

review requirements at 24 CFR Part 58.  Environmental review and assessment forms must be 
documented in the Environmental Review Record as evidence of compliance before HOME 
funds are committed to a specific project site. 

 
Condition: Of twenty loan files tested for compliance with annual requirements, aggregating 
$802,754 of a total population of $6,444,232, we noted deficiencies, as enumerated below.  
Questioned costs, if any, are based on outstanding loan balances as of September 30, 2020 for loan 
files that lack sufficient documentation to demonstrate compliance with Federal requirements and 
therefore, might no longer satisfy conditions to continue as a Federal investment. 
 
1. For three (or 15%), the homeowner’s property insurance coverages were not on file. 

 
 
 

Loan No. 

 
Date of Loan 
Agreement 

 
Date of Certificate 

of Occupancy 

 
 

Loan Amount 

Outstanding 
Loan Amounts and 
Questioned Costs 

     
DHNC-460 04/08/11 07/21/11 $ 56,000 $   56,000 

HL-180 03/23/05 08/12/05 $ 50,000 46,385 
HL-199 07/19/05 11/18/05 $ 50,000   34,958 

     
    $ 137,343 

 
2. For three (or 15%), the homeowner’s property insurance coverage was obtained; however, 

the property was partially insured. 
 

 
Loan No. 

Date of Loan 
Agreement 

 
Loan Amount 

Outstanding 
Loan Amount 

Insurance 
Coverage Limit 

     
DHP-529 06/05/12 $ 47,830 $ 47,830 $ 40,000 

DHNC-500 03/27/12 $ 54,400 $ 54,400 $ 54,000 
HR-499 01/27/12 $ 40,000 $ 31,795 $ 25,540 

 
No questioned costs are presented for DHNC-500 and HR-499 as the property insurance 
coverages were increased to $54,400 and $45,540, when the property insurance policies were 
renewed on December 29, 2021 and June 9, 2021, respectively, and the insurance policy for 
DHP-529 was subsequently amended on February 18, 2022 to increase the insurance coverage 
to $47,830.  
 

3. For one (or 5%), the property’s description on the homeowner’s property insurance policy 
differ from the description on the loan agreement and the property’s warranty deed. 
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NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued 
Year Ended September 30, 2020 

 
 
Finding No.: 2020-005, Continued 
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
CFDA Program: 14.239 HOME Investment Partnerships Program 
Federal Award Nos.: M02ST690203, M03ST690203, M04ST690203, M05ST690203, 

M06ST690203, M07ST690203, M08ST690203, M09ST690203, 
M10ST690203, M11ST690203, M12ST690203, M14ST690203, 
M15ST690203 and M16ST690203 

Area: Eligibility 
Questioned Costs: $338,177 
 
 
Condition, Continued: 
 

 
 

Loan No. 

 
Date of Loan 
Agreement 

 
Property Description 
on Insurance Policy 

Property Description 
on Loan Agreement 
and Warranty Deed 

 
 

Loan Amount 
     

DHP-529 06/05/12 010K 226 H226NEW-1-R1 $ 47,830 

 
No questioned costs are presented as the insurance policy was subsequently amended on 
December 30, 2021 to correct the property description as H226NEW-1-R1. 

 
4. For one (or 5%), NMHC was not able to substantiate that the borrower is not required to obtain 

homeowner's property insurance coverage. 
 

 
Loan No. 

 
Date of Loan Agreement 

 
Loan Amount 

Outstanding Loan Amount 
and Questioned Costs 

    
DHL-242 02/22/07 $ 30,000 $ 30,000 

   
5. For four (or 20%), affidavits of principal residence signed by the borrowers or the borrower’s 

surviving relatives were not on file.  NMHC conducted a field visit on June 15, 2020 for DHNC-
460; however, NMHC was not able to substantiate that the surviving relative is residing at the 
property at the time the field visit was conducted. 

 
 

Loan No. 
 

Date of Loan Agreement 
 

Loan Amount 
Outstanding Loan Amounts 

and Questioned Costs 
    

HR-634 04/15/16 $ 40,000 $             - 
DHNC-460 04/08/11 $ 56,000 - 
DHP-596 09/22/15 $ 57,000 - 
PIHL-33 06/29/05 $ 25,000 11,619 

    
   $ 11,619 

 
No questioned costs are presented for HR-634 and DHP-596 as NMHC subsequently performed 
the recertifications of principal residence on August 23, 2021 and March 1, 2021, respectively, 
for which the borrowers affirmed to have been residing at the HOME assisted properties as 
their principal residence during FY2020 and NMHC subsequently was able to substantiate that 
the living relative of the deceased borrower for DHNC-460 has been residing at the HOME 
assisted property based on a court document dated September 8, 2021 (Civil Action No 19-
0366). 
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NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued 
Year Ended September 30, 2020 

 
 
Finding No.: 2020-005, Continued 
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
CFDA Program: 14.239 HOME Investment Partnerships Program 
Federal Award Nos.: M02ST690203, M03ST690203, M04ST690203, M05ST690203, 

M06ST690203, M07ST690203, M08ST690203, M09ST690203, 
M10ST690203, M11ST690203, M12ST690203, M14ST690203, 
M15ST690203 and M16ST690203 

Area: Eligibility 
Questioned Costs: $338,177 
 
 
Condition, Continued: 
 
6. For two (or 10%), documentation substantiating that the borrowers, whose loans have been 

partially or entirely deferred prior to or on December 31, 2007, were recertified for financial 
and eligibility requirement purposes prior to or on July 28, 2018, were not on file.  Accordingly, 
NMHC was not able to substantiate that the last and final financial and eligibility 
recertifications were performed. 

 
 
 

Loan No. 

 
 

Date of Loan Agreement 

Last Financial 
and Eligibility 

Recertification on File 

 
 

Loan Amount 

Outstanding 
Deferred Loan Amounts 
and Questioned Costs 

     
HL-237 01/25/07 02/01/16 $ 30,000 $    6,000 
PIHL-33 06/29/05 03/07/14 $ 25,000  10,900 

     
    16,900 

Less amount questioned at Condition 5 for PIHL-33 (10,900) 
  

    $    6,000 

 
7. For one (or 5%), the signed affidavit of principal residence was signed by a surviving household 

member on February 12, 2020, however, the borrower passed away since April 9, 2016 and 
documentation of the status of the property’s probate was not on file or equivalent 
documentation to substantiate that the surviving household member has legal rights to the 
property and/or whether the surviving household member can assume the HOME grant 
assistance. 

 
 

Loan No. 
 

Date of Loan Agreement 
 

Loan Amount 
Outstanding Loan Amount 

and Questioned Costs 
    

DHR-505 02/17/12 $ 40,000 $ 40,000 

 
8. For one (or 5%), the annual recertification was not performed as the borrower is not residing 

at the HOME-funded home/property as the principal residence, as documented by NMHC on 
a memo to file dated November 9, 2017.  Grantor approval was not provided. 
 

Loan No. Date of Loan Agreement Loan Amount Outstanding Loan Amount  
    

HL-199 07/19/05 $ 50,000 $ 34,958 

 
No questioned costs are presented as the amount is questioned at Condition 1. 

 
Of twenty-two loan files tested for compliance with application requirements, aggregating $786,790 
of a total population of $6,444,232, we noted the following: 
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NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued 
Year Ended September 30, 2020 

 
 
Finding No.: 2020-005, Continued 
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
CFDA Program: 14.239 HOME Investment Partnerships Program 
Federal Award Nos.: M02ST690203, M03ST690203, M04ST690203, M05ST690203, 

M06ST690203, M07ST690203, M08ST690203, M09ST690203, 
M10ST690203, M11ST690203, M12ST690203, M14ST690203, 
M15ST690203 and M16ST690203 

Area: Eligibility 
Questioned Costs: $338,177 
 
 
Condition, Continued: 
 
9. For one (or 5%), the household income per third party verifications on file exceeded the 

income limit and borrower is therefore ineligible for HOME loan assistance; the loan review 
conclusion report indicated that the borrower had satisfactory credit history; however, the 
borrower had prior delinquent loans per the third party credit history report; and the Letter of 
Tax Compliance was not on file. 

 
 
 
 

Loan No. 

 
 
 

Date of Loan Agreement 

Total 
Household Income 

Per Third Party 
Verifications 

 
 

Income Limit 
Threshold 

 
 
 

Loan Amount 

 
Outstanding 

Loan Amount and 
Questioned Costs 

      
PIHL-42 11/14/06 $ 39,337 $ 37,800 $ 30,000 $ 30,000 

 
10. For two (or 9%), the potential household income does not agree with third party verifications 

on file. 
 

 
 
 
 

Loan No. 

 
 
 
 

Date of Loan Agreement 

 
Household 

Income 
Per NMHC’s 
Calculation 

Household 
Income per 
Third Party 

Income 
Verification 

 
 
 
 

Loan Amount 

 
 
 

Outstanding 
Loan Amounts 

      
PIHL-42 11/14/06 $ 15,794 $ 39,337 $ 30,000 $ 30,000 
HL-210 08/30/05 $ 42,612 $ 45,186 $ 50,000 $ 31,636 

 
No questioned costs are presented as the amount is questioned at Condition 9 for PIHL-42 and 
the potential household income per third party verifications on file for HL-210 is within the 
income limit.  

 
11. For one (or 5%), the property’s lot number 011 G 996 on the appraisal report and 

environmental review and assessment form differ from lot number 011 G 966 on the land 
document and loan agreements. 

 
Loan No. Date of Loan Agreement Loan Amount Outstanding Loan Amount  

    
PIHL-33 06/29/05 $ 25,000 $ 11,619 

 
No questioned costs are presented as NMHC subsequently corrected the lot number on the 
appraisal report and environmental review and assessment form on January 18, 2022. 
 

12. For one (or 5%), the property title report or equivalent documentation substantiating that the 
property was owned by NMHC at the time NMHC sold the property to the borrower was not 
on file.  In addition, the lender title policy insuring NMHC’s interest on the property was also 
not on file.  
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NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued 
Year Ended September 30, 2020 

 
 
Finding No.: 2020-005, Continued 
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
CFDA Program: 14.239 HOME Investment Partnerships Program 
Federal Award Nos.: M02ST690203, M03ST690203, M04ST690203, M05ST690203, 

M06ST690203, M07ST690203, M08ST690203, M09ST690203, 
M10ST690203, M11ST690203, M12ST690203, M14ST690203, 
M15ST690203 and M16ST690203 

Area: Eligibility 
Questioned Costs: $338,177 
 
 
Condition, Continued: 
 

 
Loan No. 

 
Date of Loan Agreement 

 
Loan Amount 

Outstanding Loan Amount 
and Questioned Costs  

    
HP-636 03/04/16 $ 56,000 $ 51,579 

 
13. For two (or 9%), the environmental review and assessment forms were not on file. 
 

 
Loan No. 

 
Date of Loan Agreement 

 
Loan Amount 

   
HL-199 07/19/05 $ 50,000 
HL-210 08/30/05 $ 50,000 

 
No questioned costs are presented as the properties are not located on restrictive locations 
based on the environmental review and assessment process that were subsequently 
performed for the properties on February 22, 2022.  
 

14. For two (or 9%), third-party income verifications from the Social Security Administration (SSA) 
were not on file.  

 
 

Loan No. 

 
Date of Loan 
Agreement 

 
 

Loan Amount 

 
 

Household Members 

Outstanding 
Loan Amounts and 
Questioned Costs 

     
PIHL-42 11/14/06 $ 30,000 Spouse and two dependents $  30,000 
HL-210 08/30/05 $ 50,000 Borrower, co-borrower and two dependents  31,636 

     
    61,636 
  Less amount questioned at Condition 9 for PIHL-42 (30,000) 
     
    $  31,636 

 
15. For three (or 14%), the borrowers declared cash in bank on the loan applications, however, 

third-party verifications were not in file; therefore, NMHC was not able to substantiate 
whether the borrowers had potential income from assets that should be included in the 
household income for PIHL-42 and HL-210.  For PIHL-33, NMHC included $50 as income from 
assets in the household income; however, no third-party verification was on file to 
substantiate the amount. 

 
Loan No. 

 
Date of Loan Agreement 

 
Amount Declared 

 
Loan Amount 

Outstanding 
Loan Amounts 

     
PIHL-42 11/14/06 $         10 $ 30,000 $ 30,000 
HL-210 08/30/05 $ 26,000 $ 50,000 $ 31,636 
PIHL-33 06/29/05 $   5,083 $ 25,000 $ 11,619 

 
No questioned costs are presented as amounts are questioned at Condition 9 for PIHL-42, at 
Condition 14 for HL-210 and at Condition 5 for PIHL-33. 
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NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued 
Year Ended September 30, 2020 

 
 
Finding No.: 2020-005, Continued 
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
CFDA Program: 14.239 HOME Investment Partnerships Program 
Federal Award Nos.: M02ST690203, M03ST690203, M04ST690203, M05ST690203, 

M06ST690203, M07ST690203, M08ST690203, M09ST690203, 
M10ST690203, M11ST690203, M12ST690203, M14ST690203, 
M15ST690203 and M16ST690203 

Area: Eligibility 
Questioned Costs: $338,177 
 
 
Cause: NMHC did not effectively apply controls over compliance with applicable eligibility 
requirements.  
 
Effect: NMHC is in noncompliance with applicable eligibility requirements, and questioned costs 
exist, as follows: 
 

Condition Questioned Costs 
  

1 $ 137,343 
4 30,000 
5 11,619 
6 6,000 
7 40,000 
9 30,000 

12 51,579 
14   31,636 

  
 $ 338,177 

 
Identification as a Repeat Finding: Finding No. 2019-005 
 
Recommendation: NMHC should strengthen controls over compliance with applicable eligibility 
requirements.   
 
Views of Responsible Officials: 
 
NMHC’s Corrective Action Plan describes affirmations and corrective actions, but includes 
disagreements, as follows: 
 
Condition 4:  
Response: The effective policy and loan agreement did not require procurement of insurance 
policy.  Although commitment letter for DHL-242 isn’t in file, the format for all commitment letters 
for loans made during the time did not indicate the requirement.  (Sample of Commitment Letter 
for HL-237 is provided herewith to prove so).  In any case, the effective policy should be the 
prevailing guidance in determining whether an insurance policy is required or not.  
 
Corrective Action: Findings unjustifiable; Effective policy as reflected in the loan agreement did not 
require insurance coverage for this loan.  No action is necessary and NMHC requests that this finding 
and question cost be removed.  
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NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued 
Year Ended September 30, 2020 

 
 
Finding No.: 2020-005, Continued 
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
CFDA Program: 14.239 HOME Investment Partnerships Program 
Federal Award Nos.: M02ST690203, M03ST690203, M04ST690203, M05ST690203, 

M06ST690203, M07ST690203, M08ST690203, M09ST690203, 
M10ST690203, M11ST690203, M12ST690203, M14ST690203, 
M15ST690203 and M16ST690203 

Area: Eligibility 
Questioned Costs: $338,177 
 
 
Views of Responsible Officials, Continued: 
 
Condition 9:  
Response: HUD Income Limits for 2006 was $34,020 (60%) for household of 3persons. Request to 
remove question cost as borrower would still be income eligible for assistance. Affirm derogatory 
items on credit report including NMHC account of not more than 3 payments past due (I3). Affirm 
that tax compliance is not in file, however Borrower's filed 1040 was provided and such items will 
not have a profound effect on income eligibility.  
 
Corrective Action: No actions warranted since client was eligible for assistance based on household 
size per loan write-up.  Further, NMHC affirms all other findings. 
 
Condition 12:  
Response: NMHC has provided a copy of the Quitclaim Deed showing ownership of the property 
through a foreclosure sale.  The lender’s title policy does not show ownership of the property, 
rather, it covers claims that affect the lender’s loan.  NMHC does not request for a lender’s title 
policy with any property it owns because all mortgages it makes the agency requires that a 
Preliminary Title Research (PTR) be completed before it assists any client.  When the agency 
extended a mortgage loan to the previous owners (DFHL-1497), it requested for a PTR to ensure 
that there were no liens against the property.  Any other filings with respect to the property after 
NMHC had mortgaged the same up until it foreclosed on it will be considered null and void as NMHC 
had first rights to it.  
 
Corrective Action: NMHC has provided documentation showing ownership of the property on 
January 25, 2022.   
 
Auditor Response: 
 
Condition 4: Without the commitment letter, we are unable to determine the borrower’s 
requirement for Homeowner’s property insurance coverage.   
 
Condition 9: The household income of $39,337 per third party verifications on file also exceeded the 
disputable income limit provided by NMHC of $34,020 for a household of three.  Borrower is 
therefore ineligible for HOME loan assistance. 
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NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued 
Year Ended September 30, 2020 

 
 
Finding No.: 2020-005, Continued 
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
CFDA Program: 14.239 HOME Investment Partnerships Program 
Federal Award Nos.: M02ST690203, M03ST690203, M04ST690203, M05ST690203, 

M06ST690203, M07ST690203, M08ST690203, M09ST690203, 
M10ST690203, M11ST690203, M12ST690203, M14ST690203, 
M15ST690203 and M16ST690203 

Area: Eligibility 
Questioned Costs: $338,177 
 
 
Auditor Response, Continued: 
 
Condition 12: In addition to the quitclaim deed, NMHC utilizes third party verification such as a 
property title report to verify the legal owner of the property and whether the property has lien 
against it.  Although the quitclaim deed, dated 01/27/15, stated the property was deeded to NMHC, 
it was also stated on the deed that another borrower (DFHL-1497) mortgaged the property to NMHC 
back on 08/27/98 for which the CNMI Superior Court entered a judgment against the borrower in 
favor of NMHC on 03/21/12 and subsequently entered an order on 03/28/14, approving the sale of 
the property to NMHC.  However, the judgment and order from the CNMI Superior Court was not 
provided.  In addition, the property title report substantiating that the borrower (DFHL-1497) is the 
legal owner of the property and had no lien against it at the time the property was mortgaged to 
NMHC on 08/27/98, was not provided.  Accordingly, other than the quitclaim deed dated 01/27/15, 
NMHC was not able to substantiate that it has legal rights to the property at the time NMHC sold 
the property to HP-636 on 03/04/16. 
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NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued 
Year Ended September 30, 2020 

 
 
Finding No.: 2020-006 
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
CFDA Program: 14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 
Area: Allowance Costs/Cost Principles 
Questioned Costs: $-0- 
 
 
Criteria:  In accordance with applicable allowable costs/cost principles requirements, costs must be 
adequately documented in order to be allowable under Federal awards. 
 
Condition:  For one (or 3%) of thirty-one HAP rental expenses tested, aggregating $26,951 of a total 
population of $2,674,341, HAP rental payments amounting to $4,517 (Batch ID 56177, dated 
07/23/20) pertain to October 2018 HAP rent expenses; however, the expenses were not recorded 
in FY2019 and instead were recorded as FY2020 expenses in July 2020, resulting in an 
understatement and overstatement of FY2019 and FY2020 SEFA, respectively.  No questioned costs 
are presented as amounts received from HUD for October 2018 and July 2020 HAP rental payments 
agreed to HUD’s monthly disbursements schedule.  
 
Cause:  NMHC processed the October 2018 rent payments on 09/28/18 and recorded the amount 
as FY2018 rent expense and later reclassed the amount to deferred outflow on 09/30/18 with the 
intention to later reclass the amount to rent expense in October 2018.  However, it was not until 
July 2020 when NMHC discovered that the expense was still recorded as deferred outflow while 
performing a reconciliation of its general ledger accounts.  NMHC reclassed the amount from 
deferred outflow and recorded the amount as FY2020 HAP rent expense.  NMHC lacks monitoring 
controls over timely reconciliation of its general ledger accounts.   
 
Effect:  The effect of the above condition is the understatement and overstatement of federal 
expenditures amounting to $4,517 for FY2019 and FY2020, respectively. Finding is reportable as the 
projected questioned costs exceeded the $25,000 threshold.   
 
Recommendation: We recommend that NMHC timely reconciles its general ledger accounts and 
record expenses in the period incurred.  We further recommend that NMHC properly monitor and 
account for federal program expenditures. 
 
Views of Responsible Officials: 
 
NMHC’s Corrective Action Plan describes affirmations and corrective actions. 
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NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued 
Year Ended September 30, 2020 

 
 
Finding No.: 2020-007 
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
CFDA Program: 14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 
Area: Eligibility 
Questioned Costs: $59,429 
 
 
Criteria: In accordance with applicable eligibility requirements, the Public Housing Agency (PHA) or 
owner must: 
 
1. Information provided by the applicant will be verified including information related to family 

composition, income, allowances and deductions, assets, eligible immigration status, full-time 
student status and other factors related to preferences, eligibility and rent calculation.  

 
2. Only accept information verified and dated 60 days preceding the actual receipt of the 

aforesaid documents which is normally received when the certification/recertification 
procedure is performed and/or preceding the issuance of voucher.  Information exceeding 60 
days must be updated and re-verified.  In addition, at the annual reexamination, PHAs use the 
same procedures for obtaining and verifying information that were used at admission.   

 
3. Use the Enterprise Income Verification (EIV) System to obtain verification of employment, 

gross wages, unemployment compensation and social security benefits.  For new admissions, 
the EIV Income Report is used to confirm/validate family reported income within 120 days of 
the PIC submission date.  A copy of the EIV Income Report is required to be maintained in the 
tenant file. 

 
4. Use current balance in saving accounts and the average monthly balance in checking accounts 

for last 6 months to verify current net family assets. 
 
5. The amount of federal assistance paid on behalf of a family is calculated using the family’s 

annual income less allowable deductions. Owners must verify all deductions claimed by the 
tenant/applicant to determine the level of federal assistance. 

 
Condition: Of forty tenant files tested, aggregating $28,863 of a total population of $2,921,179, we 
noted deficiencies.  Resulting questioned costs are based on the monthly HAP amount and number 
of months certified during fiscal year 2020. 
 
1. For one (or 3%), the annual recertification was not timely performed, resulting in an excess 

HAP amount for two months. 
 

Unit No. 
Period 
Tested 

Certification 
Effective 

 
Type of 
Action 

Date 
Recertification 

Performed 

Effective 
HAP 

Amount 

HAP 
Amount 
Provided 

 
 

Variance 
Questioned 

Costs 
         

H01564 11/20/19 07/01/19 Annual 08/28/19 $ 663 $ 796 $ 133 $ 266 

 
2. For three (or 8%), dates of signed affidavits/statements supporting family income exceeded 

the 60 days preceding the dates of when the certifications/recertifications were performed 
and/or 120 days from the effective recertification date. 
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Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued 
Year Ended September 30, 2020 

 
 
Finding No.: 2020-007, Continued 
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
CFDA Program: 14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 
Area: Eligibility 
Questioned Costs: $59,429 
 
 
Condition, Continued: 
 

 
 

Unit No. 

 
Period 
Tested 

Certification 
Effective 

Date 

 
 

Type of Action 

Date 
Certification 
Performed 

Third-Party 
Verification 

Date 

 
 

HAP Amount 

 
Questioned 

Costs 
        

H01882 05/01/20 02/10/20 New admission 02/10/20 05/31/19 $318 for 3 months/$601 for 5 months $   3,959 
H01889 01/01/20 10/15/19 New admission 10/15/19 04/24/19 $390 for 3 months /$600 for 9 months 6,570 
H01101 11/01/19 11/01/19 Annual 09/13/19 09/09/18 $396             - 

        
       $ 10,529 

 
Outdated documents include signed affidavits/statements of zero income, child support, 
childcare expenses, and statement of unemployment for H01882 and H01889 and childcare 
expenses for H01101. 
 
No questioned costs result for H01101 as no childcare allowance was claimed. 

 
3. For one (or 3%), the EIV income report for household #5 was not on file.   
 

 
Unit No. 

 
Period Tested 

Certification 
Effective Date 

 
Type of Action 

 
HAP Amount 

Questioned 
Costs 

      
H01285 11/20/19 08/01/19 Annual $ 736 $ 8,832 

 
4. For four (or 10%), the EIV reports were either not signed by adult household members and/or 

the adult household members were not included in the EIV reports. 
 

 
 

Unit No. 

 
Period 
Tested 

Certification 
Effective 

Date 

 
Type of 
Action 

 
 

Deficiency 

 
HAP 

Amount 

 
Questioned 

Costs 
       

H01564 11/20/19 07/01/19 Annual Adult household #5 did not sign and is 
also not included in the EIV report 

 
$ 663 

 
$   7,956 

H01769 12/03/19 09/01/19 Annual Adult household #4 did not sign and is 
also not included in the EIV report 

 
$ 900 

 
10,800 

H01885 07/01/20 07/01/20 Annual Adult household #2 did not sign the EIV 
report 

 
$ 559 

 
- 

H01334 01/01/20 01/01/20 Annual Adult household #3 is not included in 
the EIV report 

 
$ 680 

 
  6,120 

       
      24,876 

Less amount questioned at Condition 1 for H01564     (266) 
       
      $ 24,610 

 
No questioned costs are presented for H01885 as the household member was included in the 
EIV reports. 
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NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued 
Year Ended September 30, 2020 

 
 
Finding No.: 2020-007, Continued 
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
CFDA Program: 14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 
Area: Eligibility 
Questioned Costs: $59,429 
 
 
Condition, Continued: 
 
5. For seven (or 18%), NMHC obtained the tenant’s most recent savings account and the last six 

months checking account bank statements; however, NMHC only used the most recent savings 
and checking account bank statements to determine the tenant's current net family assets 
instead of averaging the checking account balances for the last six months, which resulted in 
a variance of the net family assets and/or potential income from assets. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Unit No. 

 
 
 
 

Period 
Tested 

 
 
 

Certification 
Effective 

Date 

 
 
 
 
 

Type of Action 

 
 

Total 
Family 
Assets 

Per NMHC 

 
 

Total Family 
Assets Per 
Third-Party 
Verification 

 
 
 
 
 

Variance 

 
Potential 
Income 

from 
Assets Per 

NMHC 

Potential 
Income 

from Assets 
Per Third 

Party 
Verification 

 
 
 
 
 

Variance 
          

H01882 05/01/20 05/01/20 Interim $       81 $       164 $       83 $       - $       - $       - 
H01885 07/01/20 07/01/20 Annual $     220 $       471 $     251 $      1 $      1 $       - 
H01783 12/18/19 11/01/19 Annual $     120 $       127 $         7 $       - $       - $       - 
H01042 12/01/19 12/01/19 Interim $ 5,386 $ 10,472 $ 5,086 $ 108 $ 209 $ 101 
H01795 05/01/20 05/01/20 Interim $     114 $       915 $     801 $       - $       - $       - 
H01809 05/01/20 05/01/20 Interim $         1 $         41 $       40 $       - $       - $       - 
H01693 09/01/20 09/01/20 Other Change of Unit $       69 $       264 $     195 $       - $       - $       - 

 
No questioned costs are presented as the potential income from assets per third party 
verifications would still be within the income limit. 

 
6. For three (or 8%), only one checking account bank statement was obtained to determine the 

tenant’s current net family assets. 
 

 
Unit No. 

 
Period Tested 

Certification 
Effective Date 

 
Type of Action 

 
HAP Amount 

Questioned 
Costs 

      
H01597 08/01/20 08/01/20 Annual $ 532 $   1,064 
H01785 08/25/20 10/01/19 Annual $ 600 7,200 
H01526 06/01/20 06/01/20 Annual $ 670   2,680 

      
   $ 10,944 

 
7. For two (or 5%), documentation on the validity of the immigration status of a household 

member, who is a non-U.S. citizen and is receiving federal benefits, was not on file.   
 

 
 
 
 
 

Unit No. 

 
 
 
 

Period 
Tested 

 
 
 

Certification 
Effective 

Date 

 
 
 
 
 

Type of Action 

 
 

HAP and Utility 
Reimbursement 

Amount 
Per NMHC 

Prorated HAP 
and Utility 

Reimbursement 
Amount Per 

Audit 
Expectation 

 
 
 
 
 

Variance 

 
 
 
 

Questioned 
Costs 

        
H01179 01/01/20 01/01/20 Annual $ 940 $ 630 $ 310 $     310 
H01179 06/17/20 01/08/20 Other change of unit $ 743 $ 498 $ 245 1,960 

        
       $ 2,270 
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NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued 
Year Ended September 30, 2020 

 
 
Finding No.: 2020-007, Continued 
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
CFDA Program: 14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 
Area: Eligibility 
Questioned Costs: $59,429 
 
 
Condition, Continued: 
 
8. For one (or 3%), deductions claimed included an allowance for one dependent which is not the 

legal child of the household head/co-head. There was no court order (appointed legal 
guardianship by the court) on file approving such legal guardianship for the minor, only an 
appointment of guardianship from the biological parent. 

 
 

Unit No. 
 

Period Tested 
Certification 

Effective Date 
 

Type of Action 
Household 
Member 

 
HAP Amount 

      
H01042 12/01/19 12/01/19 Interim 4 $ 1,100 

 
No questioned costs are presented as the total household income would still be within the 
income limit if the allowance was not claimed. 

 
9. For one (or 3%), a deduction claimed includes a disabled allowance for which a third party 

verification was not on file. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Unit No. 

 
 
 
 
 

Period 
Tested 

 
 
 
 

Certification 
Effective 

Date 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Type of Action 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Allowance Claimed 

 
HAP and 

Utility 
Reimburse-

ment 
Amount 

Per NMHC 

HAP and 
Utility 

Reimburse-
ment 

Amount Per 
Audit 

Expectation 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Variance 
        

H01285 11/20/19 08/01/19 Annual Disabled for household #3 $ 736 $ 736 $           - 

 
No questioned costs result as the third-party disability verification was subsequently obtained 
on July 20, 2021 covering the August 1, 2019 certification effective date. 

 
10. For one (or 3%), deductions claimed include allowances for two dependents who were not 

verifiable as to whether they are the biological children of the head of household. 
 

Unit No. Period Tested 
Certification 

Effective 

 
 
 
 

Type of 
Action 

Unverifiable 
Dependents 

Claimed 
(Household 

Member 
Ref No.) 

HAP Amount 
Per NMHC  

HAP Amount 
Per Audit 

Expectation 

 
 
 
 
 

Variance 

 
 
 
 

Questioned 
Costs 

         
H01212 10/01/19 10/01/19 Annual 4 and 5 $ 866 $ 842 $ 24 $ 288 

 
11. For two (or 5%), the effective utility allowance for a three-bedroom unit at the time 

recertifications were performed was $198; however, $199 was reported on form HUD 50058, 
resulting in an overage in monthly utility reimbursements. 
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NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued 
Year Ended September 30, 2020 

 
 
Finding No.: 2020-007, Continued 
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
CFDA Program: 14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 
Area: Eligibility 
Questioned Costs: $59,429 
 
 
Condition, Continued: 
 

Unit No. Period Tested 
Certification 

Effective 

 
 

Type of 
Action 

Excess 
Monthly Utility 
Reimbursement 

Amount Questioned Costs 
      

H01098 07/20/20 07/01/20 Interim $ 1 $   3 
H01145 12/01/19 12/01/19 Annual $ 1 10 

      
     $ 13 

 
12. For one (or 3%), the signed affidavits/signed statements of zero income, child support, 

childcare expenses, criminal history and fraud, statement of unemployment and family 
obligation to report interim change was not on file for an adult household member. 

 
 

Unit No. 
 

Period Tested 
Certification 

Effective Date 
 

Type of Action 
Household 
Member 

 
HAP Amount 

Questioned 
Costs 

       
H01885 07/01/20 07/01/20 Annual 2 $ 559 $ 1,677 

 
13. For one (or 3%), due to data input typographically error in the EIV system, the social security 

number for one household member was not found in the Social Security Administration 
records as noted on the EIV income report dated April 16, 2020; and accordingly, verification 
of the household member was noted as "failed" on the EIV summary report.   

 
 

Unit No. 
 

Period Tested 
Certification 

Effective Date 
 

Type of Action 
Household 
Member 

 
HAP Amount 

      
H01882 05/01/20 05/01/20 Interim 2 $ 318 

 
No questioned cost is presented as NMHC subsequently corrected and verified the social 
security number in the EIV system on October 8, 2020 and January 28, 2021, respectively. 

 
Cause: NMHC did not effectively apply controls over compliance with applicable eligibility 
requirements. 
 
Effect: NMHC is in noncompliance with applicable eligibility requirements, and questioned costs 
exist, as follows: 
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NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued 
Year Ended September 30, 2020 

 
 
Finding No.: 2020-007, Continued 
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
CFDA Program: 14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 
Area: Eligibility 
Questioned Costs: $59,429 
 
 
Effect, Continued: 
 

Condition Questioned Costs 
  

1 $      266 
2 10,529 
3 8,832 
4 24,610 
6 10,944 
7 2,270 

10 288 
11 13 
12   1,677 

  
 $ 59,429 

 
Identification as a Repeat Finding: Finding No. 2019-007 
 
Recommendation: NMHC should strengthen controls over compliance with applicable eligibility 
requirements. 
 
Views of Responsible Officials: 
 
NMHC’s Corrective Action Plan describes affirmations and corrective actions, but includes 
disagreements with Conditions 2, 3, 4, 6, 8, 10, 12 and 13, as follows: 
 
Condition 2:  
Response: Finding should be removed. Certification form (color sheet) was completed, signed & 
notarized during the eligibility interview, and HS did obtain updated income documents (pay stubs 
and employment certification) prior to Admission. Certification form is only done once a year, 
therefore, should still be valid. Certification forms is used during eligibility and annual re-
certifications.  
 
Corrective Action: Housing Specialists and Field Office Representative must review and verify all 
inputted information including dates of affidavits/signed statements and/or third-party verifications 
supporting family income and assets within the time allotted of 60 days preceding dates of when 
the certifications/re-certifications were performed and/or 120 days from the effective 
recertification date. All income information that are outdated must be updated to determined 
continued eligibility.  Special Assistant for Program and Housing will assist in quality check/control 
of completed documents.   
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NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued 
Year Ended September 30, 2020 

 
 
Finding No.: 2020-007, Continued 
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
CFDA Program: 14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 
Area: Eligibility 
Questioned Costs: $59,429 
 
 
Views of Responsible Officials, Continued: 
 
Condition 3:  
Response: Finding should be removed.  EIV report printed in timely manner on 06/24/2019, 
however EIV system did not print out HHM #5’s income information. Possibly system glitch. 
However previous EIV report dated 04/26/2018 and EIV reported dated 04/16/2020 did print HHM 
#5’s income information.  
 
Corrective Action: Housing specialist must review all printed EIV report to determine all household 
members’ information and income are completed. In the event of a glitch, Housing Specialist must 
go back and reprint the most current EIV report. 
 
Condition 4: 
H01564 - Finding should be removed. Adult member #5 was a New Household Member at the time, 
therefore, the household member’s name/information will not appear right away on the EIV report, 
which is why HS did not have the individual sign the report. 
 
H01769 - Finding should be removed. Adult member #4 was a New Household Member at the time, 
therefore, the household member’s name/information will not appear right away on the EIV report, 
which is why HS did not have the individual sign the report. 
 
Corrective Action: H01564 & H01769: Housing specialist must review all printed EIV report to 
determine all household members’ information and income are verified/completed within 120 days.  
 
H01885 - Finding should be removed. Recertification completed on a timely manner along with EIV 
report. However, Household Member did not sign due to limited face to face appointments with 
clients. When family subsequently came in to sign, HOH reported that HHM had move off island. 
Finding should be removed as family would have signed had face-to-face interaction not been 
limited due to pandemic.  
 
Corrective Action: H01885: Housing specialist must inquire from the tenant if any of the household 
members had relocated or moved out from the unit.  Furthermore, an affidavit from the head should 
obtained as to when the household member left the unit. As outreach to tenants, Housing 
Specialist/Field Office Representatives will educate head of household about the reporting 
immediately of household members moving/relocating and will no longer be participating in the 
HCV Program.  
 
H01334 - Finding should be removed. Adult member #3 was a New Household Member at the time, 
therefore, the household member’s name/information will not appear right away on the EIV report. 
 
Corrective Action: Housing specialist must review all printed EIV report within 120 days to determine 
all household members’ information and income are completed. Also, Housing Specialist must 
review all certification forms that requires signatures of all HCV Adult members.  
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NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued 
Year Ended September 30, 2020 

 
 
Finding No.: 2020-007, Continued 
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
CFDA Program: 14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 
Area: Eligibility 
Questioned Costs: $59,429 
 
 
Views of Responsible Officials, Continued: 
 
Condition 6: 
Response: H01597 - Finding should be removed. Families were not able to procure additional 
statements, due to Covid-19 lockdown of the community, and there was limited access to 
businesses.  
 
Corrective Action: NMHC Housing Specialist & Field Office Representative will reach out to tenants 
to provide with the required additional bank statements to determine if income will be adjusted 
during their annual re-certifications. Special Assistant for Program and Housing will assist in quality 
check/control of completed documents. 
 
Response: H01526 - Finding should be removed. Families were not able to procure additional 
statements, due to Covid-19 lockdown of the community, and there was limited access to 
businesses.   
 
Corrective Action: NMHC Housing Specialist & Field Office Representative will reach out to tenants 
to provide with the required additional bank statements to determine if income will be adjusted 
during their annual re-certifications. Special Assistant for Program and Housing will assist in quality 
check/control of completed documents.    
 
Condition 8: 
Response: Finding should be removed. Household member #4 has been in the household since 
11/2007. Appointment of guardianship/Power of Attorney was acceptable during the time and 
continued to be allowed thereafter.  
 
Corrective Action: A notice will be issued out to the head of hold to obtain the required court 
appointed guardianship. Failure for the tenant to obtain the required court appointed guardianship 
will result in termination of the participant. NMHC had been practicing that all minor children must 
have a legal document from the courts or through birth certificate.  The tenant will be informed that 
corrections must be made in order to continue in the program.   
 
Condition 10: 
Response: Finding should be removed for 1 Dependent. HHM#5 has the correct order of the HoH’s 
(mother) name, whereas HHM#4 is the opposite.  
 
Corrective Action: NMHC will further inquire from the HoH to correct the information on the 
dependents identified as the biological parent. Furthermore, NMHC will require the HoH to provide 
legal documentation if the information does not match. NMHC had been practicing that all minor 
children must have a legal document from the courts or through birth certificate.  The tenant will 
be informed that corrections must be made in order to continue in the program.   
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NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued 
Year Ended September 30, 2020 

 
 
Finding No.: 2020-007, Continued 
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
CFDA Program: 14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 
Area: Eligibility 
Questioned Costs: $59,429 
 
 
Views of Responsible Officials, Continued: 
 
Condition 12: 
Response: Finding should be removed. Recertification completely in timely manner along with EIV 
report. However, HHM did not sign due to limited face to face appointments with clients. When 
family subsequently came in to sign, HOH reported that HHM had move off island. Finding should 
be removed as family would have signed had face-to-face interaction not been limited due to 
pandemic.  
 
Corrective Action: Housing specialist must inquire from the tenant if any of the household members 
had relocated or moved out from the unit.  Furthermore, an affidavit from the head should obtained 
as to when the household member left the unit.  As outreach to tenants, Housing Specialist/Field 
Office Representatives will educate head of household about the reporting immediately of 
household members moving/relocating and will no longer be participating in the HCV Program.   
 
Condition 13:  
Response: Finding should be removed. SSN Erroneously inputted by Housing Specialist 02/10/2020. 
Housing Specialist ran EIV verification report on 04/16/2020 and found that CoH SSN information 
flagged as “FAILED”. Housing Specialist would have still had time to correct SSN within 120 days’ 
time frame from new admission however EIV website not accessible from 04/30/2020 until 
07/28/2020 due to non-recertification of users. Correction subsequently ran and applied 
10/08/2020.  
 
Corrective Action: Housing Specialists and Field Office Representative must review and verify all 
inputted information before finalizing. Special Assistant for Program and Housing will assist in 
quality check/control of completed documents. 
 
Auditor Response: 
 
Condition 2:  
Per Section 8 Administrative Plan, §100-90-330 Changes in Eligibility Prior to Signing of HAP 
Contract, changes that occur during the period between placement on the waiting list and issuance 
of a voucher may affect the family’s eligibility or Total Tenant Payment (TIP).  For example, if a family 
exceeds the income limit prior to lease up (getting housed), the applicant will no longer be eligible 
for the assistance under program.  In addition, the initial term of a voucher must be at least 60 
calendar days.   
 
For H01882, the voucher that was issued on  06/28/19 had exceeded the 60 calendar days and 
although the term of the voucher was extended up through 12/25/19, the outdated documents 
dated 05/31/19, affecting the adjusted income eligibility determination, which include the signed 
affidavits/statements of zero income, child support, childcare expenses and the statement of 
unemployment should have also been updated when NMHC performed an updated adjusted 
income eligibility determination on 02/10/20 prior to housing the tenant on 02/10/20.  
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NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued 
Year Ended September 30, 2020 

 
 
Finding No.: 2020-007, Continued 
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
CFDA Program: 14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 
Area: Eligibility 
Questioned Costs: $59,429 
 
 
Auditor Response, Continued: 
 
Condition 2, Continued:  
For H01889, the voucher that was issued on  07/05/19 expired on 09/03/19 and although the tenant 
submitted the Request for Tenancy Approval on 08/27/19, prior to the expiration date of the 
voucher, the outdated documents dated 04/24/19, affecting the adjusted income eligibility 
determination, which include the signed affidavits/statements of zero income, child support, 
childcare expenses and the statement of unemployment should have also been updated when 
NMHC performed an updated adjusted income eligibility determination on 10/15/19 prior to 
housing the tenant on 10/15/19.  
 
For H01101, period tested pertains to annual recertification.  The outdated document was dated 
09/09/18, while the annual recertification was performed on 09/13/19.  
 
Condition 3:   
No printed EIV report for the 08/01/19 recertification period was provided. 
 
Condition 4:  
H01564 and H01769 - For new admission, PHA is required to review the EIV Income Report to 
confirm/validate family-reported income within 120 days of the PIC submission date and print and 
maintain a copy of the EIV Income Reports in the tenant’s file. 
 
H01885 - Period tested is for the 07/01/20 annual recertification that was performed on 05/28/20, 
while the tenant’s email correspondence dated 05/25/21, notifying NMHC that adult household #2 
had relocated off-island, was for the 07/01/21 annual recertification. The relocation date was not 
stated on the email correspondence. 
 
H01334 - For new admission, PHA is required to review the EIV Income Report to confirm/validate 
family-reported income within 120 days of the PIC submission date and print and maintain a copy 
of the EIV Income Reports in the tenant’s file. 
 
Condition 6:  
H01597 and H01526 - In accordance with the COVID-19 Statutory and Regulatory Waivers and 
Alternative Requirements, Notices PIH 2020-05 and PIH 2020-13, all annual recertifications due in 
Calendar Year (CY) 2020 must be completed by December 31, 2020.  Accordingly, the required 
additional checking account bank statements should have been obtained by December 31, 2020 for 
NMHC to determine any impact to the tenant’s adjusted income. 
 
Condition 8:  
Only an appointment of guardianship from the biological parent was on file.  There was no 
documentation on file that NMHC performed further verification that the child is a valid 
dependent.  In addition, for similar finding raised in previous audits, NMHC stated in its corrective 
action plan that NMHC will ensure that only court appointed guardianship documentation will be 
accepted and that specific instructions have been given to the PHD Housing Specialists and Field 
Office Representatives to only accept court appointed guardianship documentation and that all 
allowances and deductions are verified.  
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NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued 
Year Ended September 30, 2020 

 
 
Finding No.: 2020-007, Continued 
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
CFDA Program: 14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 
Area: Eligibility 
Questioned Costs: $59,429 
 
 
Auditor Response, Continued: 
 
Condition 10:  
The date of birth on the birth certificate for the head of household is 10/14/78 whereas the date of 
birth of the biological parent on the birth certificates for dependents #4 and #5 is 10/25/78.  NMHC 
was not able to substantiate that both dependents are the biological children of the head of 
household. 
 
Condition 12:  
H01885 - Period tested is for the 07/01/20 annual recertification that was performed on 05/28/20, 
while the tenant’s email correspondence dated 05/25/21, notifying NMHC that adult household #2 
had relocated off-island, was for the 07/01/21 annual recertification. The relocation date was not 
stated on the email correspondence. 
 
Condition 13:  
Since the EIV website was accessible after 07/28/2020, the correction and verification should have 
been completed by 08/16/2020, instead of in October. 
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Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued 
Year Ended September 30, 2020 

 
 
Finding No.: 2020-008 
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
CFDA Program: 14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 
Area: Reporting (HUD-52681-B, Voucher for Payment of Annual Contributions 

and Operating Statement) 
Questioned Costs: $-0- 
 
 
Criteria: The PHA submits HUD-52681-B form monthly to HUD electronically via the VMS.  HUD uses 
VMS data to determine renewal funding levels and for other funding, monitoring, and SEMAP-
related decisions.   
 
Condition:  Tests of HAP rental expenses noted NMHC erroneously did not record October 2018 HAP 
rent expense amounting to $4,517 (Batch ID 56177, dated 07/23/20) in fiscal year 2019, and instead, 
recorded the amount as a fiscal year 2020 expense in July 2020, resulting in an underreporting and 
overreporting of HAP rent expenses in VMS for the months of October 2018 and July 2020, 
respectively.  No questioned costs are presented as amounts received from HUD for October 2018 
and July 2020 HAP rental payments agreed to HUD’s monthly disbursements schedule.   
 
Cause: NMHC untimely reconciled the general ledger accounts. 
 
Effect: Underreported and overreported HAP rent expenses for the months of October 2018 and 
July 2020, respectively. Finding is reportable as the projected questioned costs exceed the 
threshold.   
 
Recommendation: NMHC should timely reconcile general ledger accounts and report HAP rental 
expenses in VMS in the period incurred. 
 
Views of Responsible Officials: 
 
NMHC’s Corrective Action Plan describes affirmations and corrective actions. 
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NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued 
Year Ended September 30, 2020 

 
 
Finding No.: 2020-009 
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
CFDA Program: 14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 
Area: Reporting (Financial Assessment Sub-system, FASS-PH) 
Questioned Costs: $-0- 
 
 
Criteria:  The Uniform Financial Reporting Standards require PHAs to submit timely GAAP-based 
unaudited financial information electronically to HUD that is accurately prepared. 
 
Condition:  Tests of the unaudited single audit financial information for the year ended September 
30, 2020 that was electronically submitted to HUD noted the following. 
 
Program Balance Sheet Summary: 
 

Per REAC Submission Per Underlying General Ledger  
 
 
 

Line Item 

 
14.HCC HCV 
CARES Act 

Funding 

14.871 
Housing 
Choice 

Vouchers 

 
 
 

Total 

 
14.HCC HCV 
CARES Act 

Funding 

14.871 
Housing 
Choice 

Vouchers 

 
 
 

Total 

 
 
 

Variance 
111 $              - $ 644,009 $ 644,009 $              - $ 481,337 $    481,337 $ 162,672 
113 $ 159,496 $     8,122 $ 167,618 $ 159,496 $ 170,794 $    330,290 $ (162,672) 
124 $              - $              - $              - $              - $ 239,356 $    239,356 $ (239,356) 
120 $              - $   25,755  $   25,755 $              - $ 265,111 $    265,111 $ (239,356) 
150 $ 159,496 $ 677,886 $ 837,382 $ 159,496 $ 917,242 $ 1,076,738 $ (239,356) 
290 $ 159,496 $ 698,125 $ 857,621 $ 159,496 $ 937,481 $ 1,096,977 $ (239,356) 
333 $              - $   81,184 $   81,184 $              - $ 240,680 $    240,680 $ (159,496) 
342 $              - $              - $              - $ 159,496 $              - $    159,496 $ (159,496) 
310 $              - $   81,184 $   81,184 $ 159,496 $ 240,680 $    400,176 $ (318,992) 
300 $              - $   81,184 $   81,184 $ 159,496 $ 240,680 $    400,176 $ (318,992) 

511.4 $ 159,496 $     8,122 $ 167,618 $              - $ 170,794 $    170,794 $     (3,176) 
512.4 $              - $ 588,580 $ 588,580  $              - $ 505,768 $    505,768 $    82,812 
513 $ 159,496 $ 616,941 $ 776,437 $              - $ 696,801  $    696,801 $    79,636 
600 $ 159,496 $ 698,125 $ 857,621 $ 159,496 $ 937,481 $ 1,096,977 $ (239,356) 

 
Program Revenue and Expense Summary: 
 

Per REAC Submission Per Underlying General Ledger  
 
 
 

Line Item 

 
14.HCC HCV 
CARES Act 

Funding 

14.871 
Housing 
Choice 

Vouchers 

 
 
 

Total 

 
14.HCC HCV 
CARES Act 

Funding 

14.871 
Housing 
Choice 

Vouchers 

 
 
 

Total 

 
 
 

Variance 
70600 $ 159,496 $ 3,127,580 $ 3,287,076 $              - $ 3,366,936 $ 3,366,936 $   (79,860) 
71500 $              - $      20,670 $       20,670 $              - $      21,556 $       21,556 $         (886) 
70000 $ 159,496 $ 3,155,416 $ 3,314,912 $              - $ 3,395,658 $ 3,395,658 $   (80,746) 
97000 $ 159,496 $ 2,652,599 $ 2,812,095 $              - $ 2,892,851 $ 2,892,851 $   (80,756) 
97300 $              - $ 2,921,179 $ 2,921,179 $              - $ 2,916,662 $ 2,916,662 $       4,517 
90000 $              - $ 3,436,373 $ 3,436,373 $              - $ 3,431,856 $ 3,431,856 $       4,517 
10000 $ 159,496 $   (280,957) $   (121,461) $              - $     (36,198) $     (36,198) $   (85,263) 
11040 $              - $    160,382 $    160,382 $              - $       (4,517) $       (4,517) $  164,899 
11170 $              - $    608,819 $    608,819 $              - $    526,007 $    526,007 $    82,812 
11180 $              - $        8,122 $        8,122 $              - $    170,794 $    170,794 $ (162,672) 

 
Amount of $(4,517) that should have been reported on FDS line item 11040 pertains to October 
2018 HAP rent expense that was not recorded as a FY2019 expense, but was instead recorded as an 
FY2020 expense in July 2020, resulting in an under- and over-reporting of HAP rent expense in fiscal 
year 2019 and 2020, respectively. This also explains the variance of $4,517 noted on FDS Line 97300 
and 90000.  
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NORTHERN MARIANAS HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued 
Year Ended September 30, 2020 

 
 
Finding No.: 2020-009, Continued 
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
CFDA Program: 14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 
Area: Reporting (Financial Assessment Sub-system, FASS-PH) 
Questioned Costs: $-0- 
 
 
Condition, Continued: 
 
For the $159,496 reported under 14.HCC HCV CARES Act Funding column for FDS line item 70600, 
amount pertains to Cares Act HCV Funding that NMHC received in FY2020, however, did not incur 
eligible expenses and have not expended the Cares Act HCV funding as of 09/30/20.  Accordingly, 
since there were no eligible associated expenses incurred in FY2020, the Cares Act HCV funding 
should not be reported as grant revenue but rather as unearned revenue at FDS Line 342 per the 
revenue recognition guideline on HUD's Notice PIH-2020-24 and the $3,127,580 reported under 
14.871 Housing Choice Vouchers column did not include $239,356 in accrued revenues, which also 
resulted in variances for the Admin Equity, HAP Equity and Net Positions FDS Line items. 
 
No questioned costs are presented as variances pertain to misallocations of the amounts within the 
FDS line items and amounts received from HUD for October 2018 and July 2020 HAP rental payments 
agreed to HUD’s monthly disbursements schedule. 
 
Cause:  The cause of the above condition is the lack of monitoring controls over the Uniform 
Financial Reporting Standards reporting and untimely reconciliation of its general ledger accounts.  
In addition, NMHC not including the accrued revenues at FDS Line 70600 is due to comments that 
NMHC received from REAC reviewer that the FDS and VMS should totally agree or closely match.  
Accordingly, as the VMS reporting is on a cash basis, amount reported at FDS Line 70600 was based 
on a modified cash basis to agree amounts to the VMS reporting and facilitate approval from the 
REAC reviewer.  
 
Effect:  NMHC is in noncompliance with the Uniform Financial Reporting Standards reporting 
requirements.   
 
Recommendation: NMHC should strengthen controls over compliance with applicable Uniform 
Financial Reporting Standards reporting requirements and the timely reconciliation of its general 
ledger accounts.  We also recommend for NMHC to seek clarification and/or concurrence from the 
REAC reviewers as to whether the amount to report at FDS Line 70600 should be on accrual basis or 
modified cash basis.  
 
Views of Responsible Officials: 
 
NMHC’s Corrective Action Plan describes affirmations and corrective actions. 
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Finding 2020-001 

 

Name of Contact Person: David T. Chargualaf, Program and Housing Manager 

 

Condition: Of forty tenant files tested, aggregating $41,957 of a total population of $1,371,555, we noted 

deficiencies. Any resulting questioned cost is based on the monthly HAP amount and the number of months 

certified during fiscal year 2020.  

 

Condition 1 

K04 

Response: Finding Remains 
 
Corrective Action:  Housing Specialist must properly calculate total income. All certifications, interview 

sheets must be signed and dated by tenant.  

 

Proposed Completion Date: Immediately 

 
Condition 2 

R17  

Response: Findings remains. NMHC staff oversighted to have other adult member no. 11 visit the office 

to fill out all annual recertification forms. Member did not show-up and PHA overlook the non-

compliance of household member. Staff representative filed all certifications without verifying that all 

adult members completed the Certification forms. 

 

Corrective Action: Field Office Representative must review document before finalizing and filing. Special 

Assistant will assist in quality check of completed documents. 

 

Proposed Completion Date: Immediately 
 

 

Condition 3  

T20 

Response: Finding Remains. The interim was to report that the tenant had loss of income because of 

school closure due to COVID-19.  Tenant signed NMHC’s affidavit of child support of $200 per month 

(our threshold to report income if $200 or more increase per month). 

 

Corrective Action: Field Office Representative must review document before finalizing and filing. Special 

Assistant will assist in quality check of completed documents. 

 

Proposed Completion Date: Immediately 

mailto:nmhc@nmhc.gov.mp
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Condition 4  

             T20 

Response: The affidavit of support was not dated but it was signed on the same day as the other 

documents because we do process all documents on the same date.  A copy of the notary public journal 

would have been evidence that it was signed on June 22, 2020 (have to be present in front of notary 

public). Field Office Representative (FOR) oversight.  The document was not stamped and notarized. 

FOR must review all certification documents before finalizing. 

 

Corrective Action: FOR must review document before finalizing. Special Assistant will assist in quality check 

of completed documents.   

 

Proposed Completion Date: Immediately 

 

Condition 5 

            K08 

            Response: Finding stays. 

 

Corrective Action: FOR/Housing Specialist must review document before finalizing. Special Assistant 

will assist in quality check of completed documents.   

 

 

Proposed Completion Date: Immediately 

 

Condition 6 -  

            M30, T19, K08, K20, K20, T19, K03, K11, K04, M15, M08, 

            Response: Finding Remains - Affidavits as to assets were not notarized due to Covid-19.  

 

Corrective Action: FOR/Housing Specialist must review document before finalizing. A follow-up must be 

done within a reasonable time for documents to be notarized.  Special Assistant will assist in quality 

check of completed documents.   

 

Proposed Completion Date: Immediately 

 

Condition 7 

            K16 

            Response: finding stays, income calculated 12 months should be 52 weeks 

 

Corrective Action: FOR/Housing Specialist must review document before finalizing. Special Assistant 

will assist in quality check of completed documents.   

  

 

Proposed Completion Date: Immediately 

 

Condition 8 Remain 

            R17 

Response: Finding stays, Staff did not re-verify the information before finalizing and submitting of 

certification. Questioned costs remained: $5,985 
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            K25 Finding Remains 

            Response: Error was corrected during field work. No questioned cost. 

 

Corrective Action: FOR must review document before finalizing. Special Assistant will assist in quality check 

of completed documents.   

 

Proposed Completion Date: Immediately 

 

 

Finding 2020-002 

 

Name of Contact Person: David T. Chargualaf, Program and Housing Manager 

 

Condition: NMHC did not complete the utility analysis schedule for FY 2020 within a reasonable period 

before the family's next reexamination. The analysis was submitted to the grantor in May 2021 which 

resulted in untimely gross rent changes affecting all projects.   

 

Response: Finding Remains  

 

Corrective Action: NMHC will follow-up and document that the requests from CUC is made on a timely 

manner. The information provided by CUC was delayed on this case and is beyond NMHC’s control. 

Once information was received from CUC it will be analyzed and sent to HUD for Review and approval.    

  

 

Proposed Completion Date: Immediately 

 

 

Finding 2020-003 

 

Name of Contact Person: David T. Chargualaf, Program and Housing Manager 

 

Condition: Of forty tenant files tested, aggregating $40,041 of a total population of $1,371,555, we noted 

the following deficiencies, resulting in questioned costs based on the monthly HAP amount and the number 

of months certified during fiscal year 2020:   

 

Condition 1 

            T12 

            Response: Finding remains.  

 

Corrective Action: Field Office Representative must conduct an Annual Inspection, even while the unit is 

under work order.  Work order are  not considered inspection. Memorandum will be issued to remind all 

inspectors on the required annual inspection .    

 

Proposed Completion Date: Immediately 

 

T19  
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Response: Finding stays. After Super typhoon Yutu (October 2018), an assessment was done after staff 

returned back to work.  An assessment was done for all units and work orders were issued by Rota Rep 

since power was out on 11/09/2018.  Work started but due to the substantial damages sustained by the 

typhoon, the contractor had not completed the repairs (by typhoon) by the time the annual inspection 

was due.  An annual inspection was completed but the damages or repairs needed were the same as the 

assessment since repairs were not completed.  If staff had issued a work order during the annual 

inspection, it would have been duplicated.  Therefore, when staff conducted the annual inspection, the 

staff referred the damages to the previous work order which was issued on November 9, 2018.  An 

inspection report was in file, therefore, the annual inspection did occur but did not issue another work 

order in order to avoid. 

 

Corrective Action: Field Office Representative must conduct an Annual Inspection, even while the unit is 

under work order.  Work order are not considered inspection. Memorandum will be issued to remind all 

inspectors on the required annual inspection .    

 

Proposed Completion Date: Immediately 

 

 

Finding 2020-004 

 

Name of Contact Person: Jacob Jon Muna, Office Manager/Procurement Officer 

 

Condition: 1. Part 111, Summary of Efforts, was left blank of the Section 3 Summary Report and not 

certified for grant award no. B-19-ST-69-0001 for contract no. 683101-OC. Additionally, Part 11, 

Contracting Opportunities, at Block 1, Item D was also not completed. 

2. Form HUD 60002 Section 3 Summary Report for grant award no. B-17-ST-69-0001 for contract no. 

675782-OC was not prepared and submitted to HUD. 

 

Response: Admin Division will accept the finding, please see corrective action. 

 

Corrective Action:  The Administrative shall maintain a log of all contracts whether it be issued by NMHC or 

another agency that is receiving funds from NMHC program. Quarterly review of all contract logs will be 

implemented so that we do not miss any contracts. 

 

Proposed Completion Date: Immediately 

 

 

Finding 2020-005 

 

Name of Contact Person: Christopher B. Pangelinan, Mortgage and Credit Manager 

 

Condition 1: 

1.  For three (or 15%), the homeowner’s property insurance coverage were not on file. 
 

Response:  Affirm finding that no insurance was in file for DHNC-460, HL-180, and HL-199.  For DHNC-460 

borrower is deceased and probate is on-going.  For HL-180 the account was forwarded to Attorney Michael A. 



“NMHC is an equal employment and fair housing public agency” 
 

Rota Field Office:  Tel. (670) 532-9410                                                                                                           Tinian Field Office: Tel. (671) 433-9213 

                                 Fax. (670) 532-9441                                                                                                                                             Fax. (670) 433-3690 

White and was in the foreclosure process.  For HL-199 we have been unable to reach borrower to request for the 

procurement of insurance. 

 

Corrective Action:  For DHNC-460 probate decree has identified heir, therefore NMHC will be working with 

the heir for the assumption of loan.  For HL-180 the Certificate of Sale has been issued to NMHC.  NMHC will 

procure insurance for the unit.  For HL-199 NMHC will contact the borrower and/or tenant to procure insurance.  

  

Proposed Completion Date:  Immediately 

 

 

 

Condition 2: 

2. For three (or 15%), the homeowner’s property insurance coverage was obtained; however, the property 

was partially insured. 

 

Response:  For DHNC-500 and HR-499 NMHC Affirmed findings and has been corrected.  

DHP-529 – insurance amount is only $40K compared to $47,830.20 loan amount. NMHC has procured the 

additional coverage of $7,830.20 to address this finding. 

 

Corrective Action:  Findings have been addressed. 

 

Proposed Completion Date: Findings have been addressed. 

 

 

 

Condition 3: 

3. For one (or 5%), the property's description on the homeowner's property insurance policy differ from 

the description on the loan agreement and the property's warranty deed. 

 

Response:  NMHC has requested for an endorsement of the policy to reflect the correct lot number.  

  

Corrective Actions:  Policy has been amended to reflect the correct lot number. 

 

Proposed Completion Date:  Corrections has been addressed.  NMHC requests to remove finding. 

 

 

 

Condition 4: 

4. For one (or 5%), NMHC was not able to substantiate that the borrower is not required to obtain 

homeowner's property insurance coverage.  

 

Response:  The effective policy and loan agreement did not require procurement of insurance policy.  Although 

commitment letter for DHL-242 isn’t in file, the format for all commitment letters for loans made during the time 

did not indicate the requirement.  (Sample of Commitment Letter for HL-237 is provided herewith to prove so).  

In any case, the effective policy should be the prevailing guidance in determining whether an insurance policy is 

required or not. 
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Corrective Action:  Findings unjustifiable; Effective policy as reflected in the loan agreement did not require 

insurance coverage for this loan.  No action is necessary and NMHC requests that this finding and question cost 

be removed.  

 

Proposed Completion Date:  Not applicable; should not be a finding to begin with. 

 

 

 

Condition 5: 

5.  For four (or 20%), affidavits of principal residence signed by the borrowers or the borrower's surviving 

relatives were not on file.  NMHC conducted a field visit on June 15, 2020 for DHNC-460; however, NMHC 

was not able to substantiate that the surviving relative is residing at the property at the time the field visit 

was conducted. 

 

Response:  For HR-634 and DHP-596 The annual recertifications were untimely. For DHNC-460 - NMHC 

conducted a field visit on 06/15/2020 and had indicated that the house was maintained.  A third party court 

document was provided stating that the living relative continues to reside at the deceased borrower’s house.  

NMHC affirms finding for PIHL-33 as borrower was incarcerated and then released to a third-party custodian per 

court orders.   

 

Corrective Action:  No actions needed for HR-634, DHP-596, for DHNC-460 since a third party court document 

(usually a sworn statement) was provided, this should equate to an affidavit that relative was residing at the 

property and that no action is further needed.  For PIHL-33 NMHC will collect deferred portion of assistance 

since borrower cannot comply with annual recertification requirements. 

 

Proposed Completion Date: PIHL-33 Account has been forwarded to Attorney Michael A. White for collection. 

 

 

 

Condition 6: 

6. For two (or 10%), documentation substantiating that the borrowers, whose loans have been partially or 

entirely deferred prior to or on December 31, 2007, were recertified for financial and eligibility 

requirement  purposes prior to or on July 28, 2018, were not on file.  Accordingly, NMHC was not able to 

substantiate that the last and final financial and eligibility recertification were performed. 

 

Response:  NMHC affirms findings. 

 

Corrective Action:  NMHC will continue to ensure that clients are recertified annually per principal residency 

requirements. 

 

Completion Date:  On-going 

 

 

 

Condition 7: 

7. For one (or 5%), the signed affidavit of principal residence was signed by a surviving household member 

on February 12, 2020, however the borrower passed away since April 9, 2016 and documentation of the 

status of the property's probate was not on file or equivalent documentation to substantiate that the 
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surviving household member has legal rights to the property and/or whether the surviving household 

member can assume the HOME grant assistance. 

 

Response:  NMHC affirms findings.  Surviving household member was part of household at the time to present 

and was the court appointed legal guardian for borrower, legal rights will be determined when probate is finalized.  

Legal guardian and household member to borrower is residing at the property and therefore, NMHC requests that 

this questioned costs be removed. 

 

Corrective action:  Account was referred to Attorney Michael White on February 4, 2022 for probate initiation.  

 

Completion Date:  Corrections has been addressed. 

 

 

 

Condition 8: 

8. For one (or 5%), the annual recertification was not performed as the borrower is not residing at the 

HOME-funded home/property as the principal residence, as documented by NMHC on a memo to file 

dated November 9, 2017.  Grantor approval was not provided. 

 

Response:  NMHC Affirms this finding. 

Corrective Action:  NMHC will obtain grantor approval for low income family to reside at the unit. 

 

Completion Date:   Immediately 

 

 

 

Condition 9: 

9. For one (or 5%), the household income per third party verifications on file exceeded the income limit 

and borrower is therefore ineligible for HOME loan assistance; the loan review conclusion report indicated 

that the borrower had satisfactory credit history; however, the borrower had prior delinquent loans per 

the third party credit history report; and the Letter of Tax Compliance was not on file. 

 

Response:  HUD Income Limits for 2006 was $34,020 (60%) for household of 3persons. Request to remove 

question cost as borrower would still be income eligible for assistance. Affirm derogatory items on credit report 

including NMHC account of not more than 3 payments past due (I3). Affirm that tax compliance is not in file, 

however Borrower's filed 1040 was provided and such items will not have a profound effect on income eligibility. 

 

Corrective Actions:  No actions warranted since client was eligible for assistance based on household size per 

loan write-up.  Further, NMHC affirms all other findings. 

 

Completion Date: Not applicable 

 

 

 

Condition 10: 

10. For two (or 9%), the potential household income does not agree with third party verifications on file. 

 

Response:  NMHC Affirms findings for PIHL-42 and HL-210.  Although third party verifications did not agree, 

HL-210 was within the income eligibility requirements. 
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Corrective Actions:  Corrective actions for PIHL-42 is not applicable since the assistance have already been 

extended. 

 

Completion Date:  Not applicable 

 

 

 

 

Condition 11: 

11. For one or (5%), the property's lot number 011 G 996 on the appraisal report and environmental review 

and assessment for differ from lot number 011 G 966 on the land document and loan agreements. 

 

Response:  The lot numbers indicated in the appraisal and environmental review are typographical errors hand- 

written by staff. NMHC Affirms that the recorded mortgage documents reflected the correct lot numbers as 

indicated in the Quitclaim Deed.  

 

Corrective Actions:  NMHC staff who conducted the appraisal and environmental review has confirmed that the 

reviews were for lot number 011 G 966 and has made the proper corrections on the appraisal and the 

environmental review.   

 

Completion Date:  Corrections have been addressed. 

 

 

 

Condition 12: 

12. For one or (5%), the property title report or equivalent documentation substantiating that the property 

was owned by NMHC at the time NMHC sold the property to the borrower was not on file. In addition, 

the lender title policy insuring NMHC’s interest on the property was also not on file. 

 

Response:  NMHC has provided a copy of the Quitclaim Deed showing ownership of the property through a 

foreclosure sale.  The lender’s title policy does not show ownership of the property, rather, it covers claims 

that affect the lender’s loan.  NMHC does not request for a lender’s title policy with any property it owns 

because all mortgages it makes the agency requires that a Preliminary Title Research (PTR) be completed before 

it assist any client.  When the agency extended a mortgage loan to the previous owners (DFHL-1497), it requested 

for a PTR to ensure that there were no liens against the property.  Any other filings with respect to the property 

after NMHC had mortgaged the same up until it foreclosed on it will be considered null and void as NMHC had 

first rights to it. 

 

Corrective Actions:  NMHC has provided documentation showing ownership of the property on January 

25, 2022.   

 

Completion Date:  Corrections has been addressed. 
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Condition 13: 

13. For two or (9%), the environmental review and assessment forms were not on file. 

 

Response:  NMHC affirms this finding.   

 

Corrective Actions:  NMHC has completed and provided the Environmental Reviews for both files.  We request 

that this findings be removed. 

 

Completion Date:  Completed 

 

 

 

Condition 14: 

14. For two (or 9%), the third-party income verifications from the Social Security Administration (SSA) 

were not on file. 

 

Responses:  NMHC affirms this finding. 

 

Corrective Actions:  Corrective actions are not applicable since the assistance have already been extended and 

SS benefits (if any) at the time are not available since it has been more than ten years ago. 

 

Completion Date: Not applicable 

 

 

 

Condition 15: 

15.  For three (or 14%), the borrowers declared cash in bank on the loan applications, however, third-

party verifications were not in file; therefore, NMHC is not able to substantiate whether the borrower had 

potential income from assets that should be included in the household income for PIHL-42 and HL-210.  

For PIHL-33, NMHCS included $50 as income from assets in the household income; however, no third-

party verifications was on file to substantiate the amount. 

 

Responses:  NMHC affirms this finding. 

 

Corrective Actions:  Corrective actions are not applicable since the assistance have already been extended and 

documentations are not available since it has been more than ten years ago. 

 

Completion Date:  Not applicable 

 

Finding 2020-006 

 

Name of Contact Person: Roger A. Dris, Chief Accountant, Jeffrey Q. Deleon Guerrero, CFO 

 

For one (or 3%) of thirty-one HAP rental expenses tested, aggregating $26,951 of a total population of 

$2,674,341, HAP rental payments amounting to $4,517 (Batch ID 56177, dated 07/23/20) pertain to October 

2018 HAP rent expenses; however, the expenses were not recorded in FY2019 and instead were recorded as 

FY2020 expenses in July 2020, resulting in an understatement and overstatement of FY2019 and FY2020 
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SEFA, respectively. No questioned costs are presented as amounts received from HUD for October 2018 

and July 2020 HAP payments agreed to HUD's monthly disbursements schedule. 

 

Response: NMHC will do the timely reconciliation of the general ledger accounts and record expenses in the 

period incurred and properly monitor the accounts that applies for federal program expenditures. 

 

Corrective Action:  NMHC will do the monthly reconciliation of the accounts that applies for the federal 

program expenditures. 

 

Proposed Completion Date: Immediately 

 

Finding 2020-007 

 

Name of Contact Person: David T. Chargualaf, Program and Housing Manager 

 

Condition: Of forty tenant files tested, aggregating $28,863 of a total population of $2,921,179, we noted 

deficiencies. Resulting questioned costs are based on the monthly HAP amount and number of months 

certified during fiscal year 2020. 

 

Condition 1 

            H01564 

Response: Findings remains.  Late Annual Re—examination. This is an oversight by the Housing 

Specialist.  

            Questioned Cost: $266 

 

Corrective Action:  Housing Specialist must complete all Annual Re-examination before the effective of the 

annual re-examination. Special Assistant for Program and Housing will assist in quality check/control of 

completed documents.   

 

Proposed Completion Date: Immediately 

 

Condition 2 

            H01882 

Response: Finding should be removed.  Certification form (color sheet) was completed, signed & 

notarized during the eligibility interview, and HS did obtain updated income documents (pay stubs and 

employment certification) prior to Admission. Certification form is only done once a year, therefore, 

should still be valid. Certification forms is used during eligibility and annual re-certifications. 

 

H01889 

Response: Finding should be removed.  Certification form (color sheet) was completed, signed & 

notarized during the eligibility interview, and HS did obtain updated income documents (pay stubs and 

employment certification) prior to Admission. Certification form is only done once a year, therefore, 

should still be valid. Certification forms is used during eligibility and annual re-certifications. 

 

Corrective Action:  Housing Specialists and Field Office Representative must review and verify all inputted 

information including dates of affidavits/signed statements and/or third-party verifications supporting family 

income and assets within the time allotted of 60 days preceding dates of when the certifications/re-certifications 
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were performed and/or 120 days from the effective recertification date. All income information that are outdated 

must be updated to determined continued eligibility.  Special Assistant for Program and Housing will assist in 

quality check/control of completed documents.   

 

Proposed Completion Date: Immediately 

 

H01101 

Response: Finding should be removed. Certification form (color sheet) was completed, signed & 

notarized during the eligibility interview, and HS did obtain updated income documents (pay stubs and 

employment certification) prior to Admission. Certification form is only done once a year, therefore, 

should still be valid. Certification forms is used during eligibility and annual re-certifications. 

 

Corrective Action:  Housing Specialists and Field Office Representative must review and verify all inputted 

information including dates of affidavits/signed statements and/or third-party verifications supporting family 

income and assets within the time allotted of 60 days preceding dates of when the certifications/re-certifications 

were performed and/or 120 days from the effective recertification date. All income information that are 

outdated must be updated to determined continued eligibility.  Special Assistant for Program and Housing will 

assist in quality check/control of completed documents.   

 

Proposed Completion Date: Immediately 

 

Condition 3 

            H01285 

Response: Finding should be removed.  EIV report printed in timely manner on 06/24/2019, however 

EIV system did not print out HHM #5’s income information. Possibly system glitch. However previous 

EIV report dated 04/26/2018 and EIV reported dated 04/16/2020 did print HHM #5’s income 

information.  

Corrective Action:  Housing specialist must review all printed EIV report to determine all household 

members’ information and income are completed. In the event of a glitch, Housing Specialist must go back and 

reprint the most current EIV report.  

 

Proposed Completion Date: Immediately 

 

Condition 4 

            H01564 

Response: Finding should be removed. Adult member #5 was a New Household Member at the time, 

therefore, the household member’s name/information will not appear right away on the EIV report, which 

is why HS did not have the individual sign the report. 

 

            H01769 

Response: Finding should be removed. Adult member #4 was a New Household Member at the time, 

therefore, the household member’s name/information will not appear right away on the EIV report, which 

is why HS did not have the individual sign the report. 

 

Corrective Action:  H01564 & H01769: Housing specialist must review all printed EIV report to determine all 

household members’ information and income are verified/completed within 120 days.  



“NMHC is an equal employment and fair housing public agency” 
 

Rota Field Office:  Tel. (670) 532-9410                                                                                                           Tinian Field Office: Tel. (671) 433-9213 

                                 Fax. (670) 532-9441                                                                                                                                             Fax. (670) 433-3690 

 

Proposed Completion Date: Immediately 

 

            H01885 

Response: Finding should be removed. Recertification completed on a timely manner along with EIV 

report. However, Household Member did not sign due to limited face to face appointments with clients. 

When family subsequently came in to sign, HOH reported that HHM had move off island.  

Finding should be removed as family would have signed had face-to-face interaction not been limited 

due to pandemic.  

Corrective Action:  H01885: Housing specialist must inquire from the tenant if any of the household members 

had relocated or moved out from the unit.  Furthermore, an affidavit from the head should obtained as to when 

the household member left the unit.  As outreach to tenants, Housing Specialist/Field Office Representatives 

will educate head of household about the reporting immediately of household members moving/relocating and 

will no longer be participating in the HCV Program.  

 

Proposed Completion Date: Immediately 

 

H01334 

Response: Finding should be removed. Adult member #3 was a New Household Member at the time, 

therefore, the household member’s name/information will not appear right away on the EIV report. 

 

Corrective Action:  Housing specialist must review all printed EIV report within 120 days to determine 

all household members’ information and income are completed. Also, Housing Specialist must review 

all certification forms that requires signatures of all HCV Adult members.  

 

Proposed Completion Date: Immediately 

 

Condition 5 

            H01882 

Response: Finding stays 

 

H01885 

Response: Finding stays. Latest SVS acct information used is correction, however not for Checking 

account. 

 

H01783 

Response: Finding Stays.  HS used the current balance on the BOG checking statement. 

 

H01042 

Response: Finding Stays.  HS used the ending balance on the BOH checking statement instead of using 

the average balance. 

 

H01795 

Response: Finding stays 
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H01809 

Response: Finding stays 

 

H01693 

Response: Finding stays 

 

Corrective Action: NMHC Housing Specialist & Field Office Representative will average out the balances for 

the last six months of the savings/checking account. Special Assistant for Program and Housing will assist in 

quality check/control of completed documents.    

 

Proposed Completion Date: Immediately 

 

Condition 6 

H01597 

Response: Finding should be removed. Families were not able to procure additional statements, due to 

Covid-19 lockdown of the community, and there was limited access to businesses. 

 

Corrective Action: NMHC Housing Specialist & Field Office Representative will reach out to tenants to 

provide with the required additional bank statements to determine if income will be adjusted during their annual 

re-certifications. Special Assistant for Program and Housing will assist in quality check/control of completed 

documents.    

 

Proposed Completion Date: Immediately 

 

H01785 

Response: Finding remains.  

 

Corrective Action: NMHC Housing Specialist & Field Office Representative will reach out to tenants to 

provide with the required additional bank statements to determine if income will be adjusted during their annual 

re-certifications. Special Assistant for Program and Housing will assist in quality check/control of completed 

documents.    

 

Proposed Completion Date: Immediately 

 

H01526 

Response: Finding should be removed. Families were not able to procure additional statements, due to 

Covid-19 lockdown of the community, and there was limited access to businesses. 

 

Corrective Action:  NMHC Housing Specialist & Field Office Representative will reach out to tenants to 

provide with the required additional bank statements to determine if income will be adjusted during their annual 

re-certifications. Special Assistant for Program and Housing will assist in quality check/control of completed 

documents.    

 

Proposed Completion Date: Immediately 

 

Condition 7 
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H01179 

Response: Finding Stays. HS tried numerous times to obtain documents of current immigration status 

from the head of household, but was unsuccessful. 

 

Corrective Action:  As implemented all participants must obtain and provide current immigration status 

to NMHC. Failure will result in the termination process.  

 

Proposed Completion Date: Immediately 

 

Condition 8 

H01042 

Response: Finding should be removed. Household member #4 has been in the household since 11/2007. 

Appointment of guardianship/Power of Attorney was acceptable during the time, and continued to be 

allowed thereafter. 

 

Corrective Action:  A notice will be issued out to the head of hold to obtained the required court appointed 

guardianship. Failure for the tenant to obtained the required court appointed guardianship will result in 

termination of the participant. NMHC had been practicing that all minor children must have a legal document 

from the courts or through birth certificate.  The tenant will be informed that corrections must be made in order 

to continue in the program.   

  

 

Proposed Completion Date: Immediately 

 

 

Condition 9 

H01285 

Response: Finding corrected 

 

Condition 10 

H01212 

Response: Finding should be removed for 1 Dependent. HHM#5 has the correct order of the HoH’s 

(mother) name, whereas HHM#4 is the opposite. 

 

Corrective Action:  NMHC will further inquire from the HoH to correct the information on the dependents 

identified as the biological parent. Furthermore, NMHC will require the HoH to provide legal documentation if 

the information does not match. NMHC had been practicing that all minor children must have a legal document 

from the courts or through birth certificate.  The tenant will be informed that corrections must be made in order 

to continue in the program.   

 

 

Proposed Completion Date: Immediately 

 

 

Condition 11 

H01098 
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Response: Finding stays. Utility Analysis calculation was inadvertently rounded up when calculated 

which subsequently added an additional $1.00 to Utility allowance. 

 

H01145 

Response: Finding Stays. Incorrect UA. 

 

Corrective Action: H01098 & H01098: Housing Specialists and Field Office Representative must review and 

verify all inputted information before finalizing. Special Assistant for Program and Housing will assist in 

quality check/control of completed documents.    

 

Proposed Completion Date: Immediately 

 

 

Condition 12 

            H01885 

Response: Finding should be removed. Recertification completely in timely manner along with EIV 

report. However, HHM did not sign due to limited face to face appointments with clients. When family 

subsequently came in to sign, HOH reported that HHM had move off island.  

Finding should be removed as family would have signed had face-to-face interaction not been limited 

due to pandemic.  

Corrective Action: H01885: Housing specialist must inquire from the tenant if any of the household members 

had relocated or moved out from the unit.  Furthermore, an affidavit from the head should obtained as to when 

the household member left the unit.  As outreach to tenants, Housing Specialist/Field Office Representatives 

will educate head of household about the reporting immediately of household members moving/relocating and 

will no longer be participating in the HCV Program.   

Proposed Completion Date: Immediately 

 

Condition 13 

            H01882 

Response: Finding should be removed. SSN Erroneously inputted by Housing Specialist 02/10/2020. 

Housing Specialist ran EIV verification report on 04/16/2020 and found that CoH SSN information 

flagged as “FAILED”. Housing Specialist would have still had time to correct SSN within 120 days’ 

time frame from new admission however EIV website not accessible from 04/30/2020 until 07/28/2020 

due to non-recertification of users. Correction subsequently ran and applied 10/08/2020. 

Corrective Action:  Housing Specialists and Field Office Representative must review and verify all inputted 

information before finalizing. Special Assistant for Program and Housing will assist in quality check/control of 

completed documents. 

 

Proposed Completion Date: Immediately 

 

Finding 2020-008 

 

Name of Contact Person: Roger A. Dris, Chief Accountant, Jeffrey Q. Deleon Guerrero, CFO 



“NMHC is an equal employment and fair housing public agency” 
 

Rota Field Office:  Tel. (670) 532-9410                                                                                                           Tinian Field Office: Tel. (671) 433-9213 

                                 Fax. (670) 532-9441                                                                                                                                             Fax. (670) 433-3690 

 

Condition: Tests of HAP rental expenses noted NMHC erroneously did not record October 2018 HAP rent 

expense amounting to $4,517 (Batch ID 56177, dated 07/23/20} in fiscal year 2019, and instead, recorded 

the amount as a fiscal year 2020 expense, resulting in an underreporting and overreporting of HAP rent 

expenses in VMS for the months of October 2018 and July 2020, respectively. No questioned costs are 

presented as amounts received from HUD for October 2018 and July 2020 HAP rental payments agreed to 

HUD's monthly disbursements schedule.  

Response: NMHC will do the timely reconciliation of the general ledger accounts and record expenses in the 

period incurred and properly monitor the accounts that applies for federal program expenditures. 

 

Corrective Action:  NMHC will do the monthly reconciliation of the accounts that applies for the federal program 

expenditures. 

 

Proposed Completion Date: Immediately 

 

Finding 2020-009 

 

Name of Contact Person: Roger A. Dris, Chief Accountant, Jeffrey Q. Deleon Guerrero, CFO 

 

Condition: Tests of the unaudited single audit financial information for the year ended September 30, 2020 

that was electronically submitted to HUD noted the following. 
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Response: NMHC will strengthen controls over compliance with applicable uniform financial reporting 

standards reporting requirements, and responsible personnel will timely reconcile the general ledger accounts. 

 

Corrective Action:  At present, NMHC Fiscal Division staff is already reconciling the Voucher management 

system, Financial Assessment of Public Housing (FASS-PH REAC) data information reported versus the 

general ledger accounts. 

 

Proposed Completion Date: Immediately 

 

 

 



SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS: FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

Ref. No.
CFDA 

No. Findings
Questioned 

Costs Status Corrective Action Plan Remarks
QC 

Resolved

$Amt Bal 
Carry 

Forward
Fiscal Year 2017
2017-001 n/a Loans 

Receivable
$0 Finding closed.  

NMHC has 
concluded that 
the finding will 

close as two 
years has passed 
from the date of 

acceptance 
(09/05/18) of the 
FY2017 audit in 

the Federal Audit 
Clearinghouse.  

QC has been 
removed.

To continue on the path to progress in decreasing the deliquency rate. 
NMHC recently created and filled a Collector position. Due to the 
increased oversight and collection efforts from this addition to the NMHC 
team, we are now in an improved position to perform evaluation of loans 
and whether legal action should be taken for those considered 
unserviceable. We agree with the audit adjustment to correct the 
allowance and in conjunction with the corrective action noted in Finding 
No. 2017-002, adjustments to allowances will occur on a quarterly basis.  
Finding closed, as two years have passed since 09/15/2018, date of 
acceptance of the FY 2017 audit in the Federal Audit Clearinghouse.

Finding closed.  NMHC 
has concluded that the 

finding will close as 
two years has passed 

from the date of 
acceptance (09/05/18) 
of the FY2017 audit in 

the Federal Audit 
Clearinghouse.  QC has 

been removed.

-$          -$               
2017-002 n/a Loan 

Guarantee 
Agreements

$0 Finding closed.  
NMHC has 

concluded that 
the finding will 

close as two 
years has passed 
from the date of 

acceptance 
(09/05/18) of the 
FY2017 audit in 

the Federal Audit 
Clearinghouse.  

QC has been 
removed.

The CFO, MCD Manager and Chief Accountant will develop a quarterly 
loan guaranty reserve analysis based on: 1. Current period reports 
available from financial institutions. 2. Loan deliquencies, foreclosure 
notices, and estimated settlements for the current period provided by the 
MCD Manager or his designate. 3. Deliquency performance and 
settlements for previous 5 years. 4. Monthly collectability meetings with 
the CFO, CHief Accountant, MCD Manager and Collector. NMHC began the 
review process on a test basis for May 2018. The first quarterly review will 
be in place for September 2018.  Finding closed, as two years have passed 
since 09/15/2018, date of acceptance of the FY 2017 audit in the Federal 
Audit Clearinghouse.

Finding closed.  NMHC 
has concluded that the 

finding will close as 
two years has passed 

from the date of 
acceptance (09/05/18) 
of the FY2017 audit in 

the Federal Audit 
Clearinghouse.  QC has 

been removed.

-$          -$               
2017-003 14.195 Eligibility $0 Finding closed.  

NMHC has 
concluded that 
the finding will 

close as two 
years has passed 
from the date of 

acceptance 
(09/05/18) of the 
FY2017 audit in 

the Federal Audit 
Clearinghouse.  

QC has been 
removed.

NMHC will ensure that the Resident Rights and Documentation brochure is 
provided to tenants at annual recertification. NMHC has made a drastic 
improvements from last year's findings related to the condition (94% of 
the files tested in FY 16 resulted in a finding and for FY 17, only 57% of the 
files tested resulted in a finding). Further, NMHC will ensure that original 
Document Packages are in file for all tenants. NMHC will also ensure EIV 
reports are included in the tenant file.  NMHC has concluded that the 
finding will close, as two years have passed, since September 5, 2018,  the 
date of acceptance of the FY 2017 audit in the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. 

Finding closed.  NMHC 
has concluded that the 

finding will close as 
two years has passed 

from the date of 
acceptance (09/05/18) 
of the FY2017 audit in 

the Federal Audit 
Clearinghouse.  QC has 

been removed.

-$          -$          



SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS: FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

Ref. No.
CFDA 

No. Findings
Questioned 

Costs Status Corrective Action Plan Remarks
QC 

Resolved

$Amt Bal 
Carry 

Forward
2017-004 14.195 Special Tests 

and Provisions - 
 Housing 
Quality 

Standards 
(HQS)

$56,732 Finding closed.  
NMHC has 

concluded that 
the finding will 

close as two 
years has passed 
from the date of 

acceptance 
(09/05/18) of the 
FY2017 audit in 

the Federal Audit 
Clearinghouse.  

QC has been 
removed.

First, NMHC  will ensure that when the work order indicates that the 
damage is due to tnenant negligence, then the tenant must be indeed 
charged for the cost of the damage. NMHC has made a drastic 
improvement from last year's findings related to the condition (22% of the 
files tested in FY 2016 resulted in a finding and for FY 2017, only 14% of 
the files tested resulted in a finding.) Second, NMHC will ensure that work 
orders are completed within 30 days after inspection and that work orders 
indicate whether the deficiencies were tenant-related or wear/tear. Third, 
NMHC will ensure that all work orders indicate whether deficiencies in the 
Multi-Family units were fixed and corrected. NMHC has concluded that the 
finding will close, as two years have passed, since September 5, 2018,  the 
date of acceptance of the FY 2017 audit in the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. 

Finding closed.  NMHC 
has concluded that the 

finding will close as 
two years has passed 

from the date of 
acceptance (09/05/18) 
of the FY2017 audit in 

the Federal Audit 
Clearinghouse.  QC has 

been removed.

56,732$    -$          
2017-005 14.225 Equioment 

and Real 
Property 

Management

$0 Finding closed.  
NMHC has 

concluded that 
the finding will 

close as two 
years has passed 
from the date of 

acceptance 
(09/05/18) of the 
FY2017 audit in 

the Federal Audit 
Clearinghouse.  

QC has been 
removed.

NMHC's correction plan related to equipment and real property 
management are as follows: 1) NMHC will ensure that a reconciliation is 
performed between Fiscal Division's records and the Administrative 
Division records. 2) NMHC will ensure that tags for assets in the Fiscal 
Division match the Master Listing records, and that the Valley Inn asset is 
included in the Master Listing. 3) NMHC will ensure that inventory and 
reconciliation is performed every two years to monitor the conditiion of 
transferred properties.  NMHC has concluded that the finding will close, as 
two years have passed, since September 5, 2018,  the date of acceptance 
of the FY 2017 audit in the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. 

Finding closed.  NMHC 
has concluded that the 

finding will close as 
two years has passed 

from the date of 
acceptance (09/05/18) 
of the FY2017 audit in 

the Federal Audit 
Clearinghouse.  QC has 

been removed.

-$          

$0



SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS: FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

Ref. No.
CFDA 

No. Findings
Questioned 

Costs Status Corrective Action Plan Remarks
QC 

Resolved

$Amt Bal 
Carry 

Forward
2017-006 14.239 Eligibility $183,995 Finding closed.  

NMHC has 
concluded that 
the finding will 

close as two 
years has passed 
from the date of 

acceptance 
(09/05/18) of the 
FY2017 audit in 

the Federal Audit 
Clearinghouse.  

QC has been 
removed.

Condition 1 - The Mortgage and Credit Division (MCD) have subsequently 
taken the necessary corrective actions to retrieve or provide the required 
insurance policy, thus removing the associated questioned costs. For those 
specific item findings, DHR-368 and HNC-367 will not be disputed and will 
remain a stay. Condition 5 - MCD had subsequently provided a declaration 
and statement of unemployment for loan client/account number DHL-240, 
QC amount of $30,000 in support to remove questioned cost amount. This 
supporting documentation was provided to the auditor in the June 28, 
2018 email and attachment. Condition 11 - For the two files, the 
environmental review docs were subsequently obtained/found and 
submitted for the auditor's review in the June 28, 2018 email and 
attachment in support of removing the QC and the entire condition. MCD 
will work to ensure that continuing compliance requirements as those 
findings in annual recertifications and homeowner insurance policy are 
carefully tracked and monitored for timeliness and that the information 
and documents are reflected in the borrower loan file. This shall require 
advanced notices, demand letters, as well as appropriate client contacts 
and field visits as appropriate.NMHC has concluded that the finding will 
close, as two years have passed, since September 5, 2018,  the date of 
acceptance of the FY 2017 audit in the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. 

Finding closed.  NMHC 
has concluded that the 

finding will close as 
two years has passed 

from the date of 
acceptance (09/05/18) 
of the FY2017 audit in 

the Federal Audit 
Clearinghouse.  QC has 

been removed.

183,995$  

$0

2017-007 14.239 Program 
Income

$70,976 Finding closed.  
NMHC has 

concluded that 
the finding will 

close as two 
years has passed 
from the date of 

acceptance 
(09/05/18) of the 
FY2017 audit in 

the Federal Audit 
Clearinghouse.  

QC has been 
removed.

We agree with this finding. NMHC will follow the HUD requirement to 
record the receipt in IDIS and the local account when received. The finding 
was noted previously in the Fiscal Year 2016 audit; whereupon, NMHC 
agreed with the finding and implemented the corrective plan. This was 
evidenced by no exceptions noted subsequent to December 5, 2016.  
NMHC has concluded that the finding will close, as two years have passed, 
since September 5, 2018,  the date of acceptance of the FY 2017 audit in 
the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. 

Finding closed.  NMHC 
has concluded that the 

finding will close as 
two years has passed 

from the date of 
acceptance (09/05/18) 
of the FY2017 audit in 

the Federal Audit 
Clearinghouse.  QC has 

been removed.

70,976$    

$0

$311,703 $311,703 $0



SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS: FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

Ref. No.
CFDA 

No. Findings
Questioned 

Costs Status Corrective Action Plan Remarks
QC 

Resolved

$Amt Bal 
Carry 

Forward
Fiscal Year 2018

2018-002 14.195 Eligibility $37,321 Finding closed.  
NMHC has 

concluded that 
the finding will 

close as two 
years has passed 
from the date of 

acceptance 
(06/25/19) of the 
FY2018 audit in 

the Federal Audit 
Clearinghouse.  

QC has been 
removed.

The Progarm and Housing Division (PHD) will develop and implement a 
checklist to verify the tenant's files are complete with related signoffs 
during the annual recertification.  NMHc continues to show great 
improvements from last year's findings.  NMHC has concluded that the 
finding will close, as two years have passed, since June 25, 2019, the date 
of acceptance of the FY 2018 audit in the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. 

Finding closed.  NMHC 
has concluded that the 

finding will close as 
two years has passed 

from the date of 
acceptance (06/25/19) 
of the FY2018 audit in 

the Federal Audit 
Clearinghouse.  QC has 

been removed.

37,321$    

$0

2018-003 14.195 Special Tests 
and Provisions-

Housing 
Quality 

Standards

$10,841 Finding closed.  
NMHC has 

concluded that 
the finding will 

close as two 
years has passed 
from the date of 

acceptance 
(06/25/19) of the 
FY2018 audit in 

the Federal Audit 
Clearinghouse.  

QC has been 
removed.

PHD manager will work with AMD Manager to develop procedures to 
improve ongoing monitoring and ensure:  Work orders indicate damage is 
due to tenant negligence or wear and tear, and charged for the cost of 
damage if tenant related, work orders are completed within 30 days after 
inspection, fixed and corrected deficiencies are closed in the system. 
PHDM will obtain the latest HUD HQS compliance supplement to ensure 
guidance related to multifamily is incorporated in future policy. NMHC 
notes the number of files tested showing exceptions remains consistent 
with prior year; however, the questioned costs dropped from $56,732 in 
FY 2017 to $10,841 in FY 2018 which indicates reduced deficiencies in the 
tested files.  NMHC has concluded that the finding will close, as two years 
have passed, since June 25, 2019, the date of acceptance of the FY 2018 
audit in the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. 

Finding closed.  NMHC 
has concluded that the 

finding will close as 
two years has passed 

from the date of 
acceptance (06/25/19) 
of the FY2018 audit in 

the Federal Audit 
Clearinghouse.  QC has 

been removed.

10,841$    

$0

2018-004 14.239 Eligibility $172,669 Finding closed.  
NMHC has 

concluded that 
the finding will 

close as two 
years has passed 
from the date of 

acceptance 
(06/25/19) of the 
FY2018 audit in 

the Federal Audit 
Clearinghouse.  

QC has been 
removed.

MCD Manager will develop a checklists to address deficiencies in the 
finding.  MCD staff will update checklists regularly on a shared drive and 
update status as needed.  On a monthly basis, or more often as deemed 
necessary, the MCD Manager will review the checklists to ensure timely 
follow up and/or provide guidance to staff on resolving deficiencies or 
missing support. NMHC notes questioned costs have dropped from 
$183,995 in FY 2017 to $172,669 in FY 2018.  NMHC also notes that 
substantially most of the findings and related questioned costs are prior to 
NMHC’s Home Policies and Procedures implemented July 23, 2009.  MCD 
will use the checklists to review previous files, assess noted deficiencies, 
and document the results of their research in completing compliance 
requirements.  NMHC believes the action plan will ensure NMHC can 
improve file monitoring and resolution of related potential deficiencies.  
NMHC has concluded that the finding will close, as two years have passed, 
since June 25, 2019, the date of acceptance of the FY 2018 audit in the 
Federal Audit Clearinghouse. 

Finding closed.  NMHC 
has concluded that the 

finding will close as 
two years has passed 

from the date of 
acceptance (06/25/19) 
of the FY2018 audit in 

the Federal Audit 
Clearinghouse.  QC has 

been removed.

172,669$  

$0



SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS: FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

Ref. No.
CFDA 

No. Findings
Questioned 

Costs Status Corrective Action Plan Remarks
QC 

Resolved

$Amt Bal 
Carry 

Forward
2018-005 14.239 Period of 

Availability of 
Federal Funds

$0 Finding closed.  
NMHC has 

concluded that 
the finding will 

close as two 
years has passed 
from the date of 

acceptance 
(06/25/19) of the 
FY2018 audit in 

the Federal Audit 
Clearinghouse.  

The Chief Accountant will contact the CFO as needed to review CFR and
related guidelines under such circumstances as described in the findings.
The CFO notes NMHC appreciates Deloitte's due diligence in identifying
such potential weaknesses; however, the circumstances around the
finding should be considered: 1) NMHC provided emails showing the
almost constant communication with HUD Hawaiiing reviewing the
committment 2) During the period of time of the subsequent
drawdowns, HUD was unavailable for guidance or review as the Federal
government was shut down for 35 days starting December 21st, 2018. The
website was online for such drawdowns and deadlines were not changed.
Prior to, and subsequently after the shutdown gap, NMHC and HUD were
wholly focused on recovery activities related to Super Typhoon Yutu.
NMHC has concluded that the finding will close, as two years have passed,
since June 25, 2019, the date of acceptance of the FY 2018 audit in the
Federal Audit Clearinghouse. 

Finding closed.  NMHC 
has concluded that the 

finding will close as 
two years has passed 

from the date of 
acceptance (06/25/19) 
of the FY2018 audit in 

the Federal Audit 
Clearinghouse.  

-$          

$0

2018-006 14.239 Reporting $0 Finding closed.  
NMHC has 

concluded that 
the finding will 

close as two 
years has passed 
from the date of 

acceptance 
(06/25/19) of the 
FY2018 audit in 

the Federal Audit 
Clearinghouse.  

QC has been 
removed.

Office Manager will ensure to submit the required report timely. NMHC
has concluded that the finding will close, as two years have passed, since
June 25, 2019, the date of acceptance of the FY 2018 audit in the Federal
Audit Clearinghouse. 

Finding closed.  NMHC 
has concluded that the 

finding will close as 
two years has passed 

from the date of 
acceptance (06/25/19) 
of the FY2018 audit in 

the Federal Audit 
Clearinghouse.  

-$          

$0

2018-007 14.871 Eligibility $52,227 Finding closed.  
NMHC has 

concluded that 
the finding will 

close as two 
years has passed 
from the date of 

acceptance 
(06/25/19) of the 
FY2018 audit in 

the Federal Audit 
Clearinghouse.  

QC has been 
removed.

The 60-day timeframe is NMHC's policy, accordingly, the Corporate
Director and PHDM will revisit the policy to determine if it is still
reasonable with the timely completion of eligibility reviews and associated
risks related to an extension; the PHDM will remind housing staff 60 days
applies unless a new time frame has been determined.NMHC has
concluded that the finding will close, as two years have passed, since June
25, 2019, the date of acceptance of the FY 2018 audit in the Federal Audit
Clearinghouse. 

Finding closed.  NMHC 
has concluded that the 

finding will close as 
two years has passed 

from the date of 
acceptance (06/25/19) 
of the FY2018 audit in 

the Federal Audit 
Clearinghouse.  QC has 

been removed.

52,227$    

$0



SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS: FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

Ref. No.
CFDA 

No. Findings
Questioned 

Costs Status Corrective Action Plan Remarks
QC 

Resolved

$Amt Bal 
Carry 

Forward
2018-008 14.871 Special Tests 

and Provisions-
Utility 

Allowance

$0 Finding closed.  
NMHC has 

concluded that 
the finding will 

close as two 
years has passed 
from the date of 

acceptance 
(06/25/19) of the 
FY2018 audit in 

the Federal Audit 
Clearinghouse.  

QC has been 
removed.

The PHDM will remind PHD staff that six stubs are required; and, any
deficiencies or exceptions are to be approved by the PHDM, documented
and retained in file. NMHC has concluded that the finding will close, as
two years have passed, since June 25, 2019, the date of acceptance of the
FY 2018 audit in the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. 

Finding closed.  NMHC 
has concluded that the 

finding will close as 
two years has passed 

from the date of 
acceptance (06/25/19) 
of the FY2018 audit in 

the Federal Audit 
Clearinghouse.  

-$          

$0

$273,058 $273,058 $0
Fiscal Year 2019
2019-001 14.195 Eligibility $6,224 Unresolved NMHC will ensure the following: 1) Certification forms will be revised to

remove the applicable or not applicable wording, and the tenant will
initial the "fill-in" blanks and initial certification forms. 2) Field Office
representatives review documents before finalizing. Additionally, the
Special Assistant will assist in quality checks of completed documents.  

Unresolved

-$          

$6,224

2019-002 14.195 Special Tests 
and Provisions- 

Housing 
Quality 

Standards

$7,120 Unresolved Field Office Representatives will confirm that all appliances are in working
order before anyh new tenant moves in. The FOR will also ensure that
work orders indicate whether the tenant deficiecies were corrected and
charged properly.

Unresolved

-$          

$7,120

2019-003 14.225 Equipment 
and Real 
Property 

Management

$0 Unresolved NMHC will ensure the following: 1) inventory records reconciliations are
completed timely 2) Inventory master listing in the Fiscal Division reflects
all costs 3) Subrecipient monitoring, specifically related to federally-
funded inventory are strengthened

Unresolved

-$          -$          
2019-004 14.225 Reporting $0 Unresolved NMHC will submit the HUD Form 60002 Section 2 Summary Report on a

timely basis
Unresolved

-$          -$          
2019-005 14.239 Eligibility $60,923 Unresolved NMHC will ensure the following: 1) Accounts with the lack of cooperation

be referred to the collection attorney 2) Insurance information is
included in the MCD annual recertification monitoring to ensure there is
no future oversight in coverage 3) MCD will be proactive in conducting
field visits prior to annual recertification deadline, "if the required
completed form has not been provided". For Condition 4, NMHC has done
corrective measures to ensure that the forms in question are obtained for
all loan applications, accordingly

Unresolved

-$          

$60,923



SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS: FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

Ref. No.
CFDA 

No. Findings
Questioned 

Costs Status Corrective Action Plan Remarks
QC 

Resolved

$Amt Bal 
Carry 

Forward
2019-006 14.871 Allowance 

Cost/Cost 
Principles

$149 Unresolved NMHC will ensure that recordkeeping controls are in accordance with
applicable allowable costs/cost principle requirements. NMHC also stated
that no further action is necessary since this was corrected within FY 2019.

Unresolved

-$          

$149

2019-007 14.871 Eligibility $74,632 Unresolved NMHC will ensure the following: 1) The Housing Specialists and Field
Office Representatives must review all outdated third party verification
documents which include affidavit of child support, notarized in-kind
monetary contribution and the EIV summary and income reports. All
documents that exceed 60 days must be updated for any
certification/recertification or voucher issuance. 2) EIV summary and
income report will be printed out and place in file 3) The Housing
Specialists and Field Office Representatives will review and and verity all
third party verifications before finalizing. 4) The Housing Specialists and
Field Offie Representatives will review and use all reported income to
determine family income. Emloyment verifications, affidavit of child
support, notarized in-kind monetary contribution and check stubs will be
used to verify all income 5) Tenants will be informed of any corrections
that must be made to their forms in order to continue in the program

Unresolved $74,632

6) The Housing Specialists and Field Office Representatives will review and
verify all inputted information before finalizing. 

2019-008 14.871 Special Tests 
and Provisions- 

Rolling 
Forward Equity 

Balances

$0 Unresolved NMHC will timely monitor, review, and reconcile revenues and
expenditure transactions, as well as the HAP and Administrative Fee equity 
account balances before closing of the fiscal year. NMHC will record grant
revenue at the time the expense is incurred.

Unresolved

-$          -$          
$149,048 $0 $149,048

Summary for FY 2017, 2018, 2019 $733,809 $584,761 $149,048

-$          


